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C I T Y   C O U N C I L

1520 AVENUE K

 DATE: 1/11/2010

 CALL TO ORDER: 7:00 p.m.

 INVOCATION: Steve Sharp, Worship Pastor
Meadows Baptist Church

 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Cub Scout Pack 18
Saigling Elementary

ITEM
NO. EXPLANATION ACTION

TAKEN

THE MISSION OF THE CITY OF PLANO IS TO PROVIDE OUTSTANDING
SERVICES AND FACILITIES, THROUGH COOPERATIVE EFFORTS WITH OUR
CITIZENS THAT CONTRIBUTE TO THE QUALITY OF LIFE IN OUR
COMMUNITY.

The City Council may convene into Executive Session to discuss posted
items in the regular meeting as allowed by law.

PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITION

Special Recognition: Richard Butterly – Poor Richard’s Cafe

Special Recognition: 2009 MP3 Graduates

Presentation:  To Rod Hogan, Deputy City Manager, for 35 Years of Service to the
City of Plano.

COMMENTS OF PUBLIC INTEREST
This portion of the meeting is to allow up to five (5) minutes per speaker with
thirty (30) total minutes on items of interest or concern and not on items that
are on the current agenda.  The Council may not discuss these items, but
may respond with factual or policy information.  The Council may choose to
place the item on a future agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be acted upon in one motion and contains items
which are routine and typically noncontroversial.  Items may be removed
from this agenda for individual discussion by a Council Member, the City
Manager or any citizen.  Citizens are limited to two (2) items and discussion
time of three (3) minutes each.
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CITY COUNCIL - Monday, January 11, 2010

ITEM
NO. EXPLANATION ACTION

TAKEN

Approval of Minutes

(a) December 7, 2009
December 10, 2009
December 14, 2009
December 22, 2009

Approval of Expenditures

Award/Rejection of Bid/Proposal:  (Purchase of products/services through
formal procurement process by this agency)

(b) Bid No. 2010-31-B for Erosion Control Briarwood - Eight Locations to ARK
Contracting Services, LLC in the amount of $996,155.

Purchase from an Existing Contract

(c) To approve the purchase of three (3) Rear Loader Bodies and three (3) Automated
Side Loader Bodies in the amount of $517,175 from Heil of Texas, through an
existing contract/agreement with Texas Association School Buyboard Program,
and authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents. (#280-07).

(d) To approve the purchase of three (3) Rear Loader Chassis and three (3) Automated
Side Loader Chassis in the amount of $869,527 from Bond Equipment Company,
through an existing contract/agreement with Texas Association School Buyboard
Program, and authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents.
(#281-07).

Adoption of Resolutions

(e) To approve the terms and conditions of a Professional Services Agreement by and
between Alternative Service Concepts, LLC, and the City of Plano; authorizing its
execution of all necessary documents by the City Manager; and providing an
effective date.

(f) To accept the findings and opinions of the Annual Audit; authorizing the City
Manager to publish the results thereof; and providing an effective date.

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION:

Public Hearing Items:  Applicants are limited to fifteen (15) minutes

presentation time with a five (5) minute rebuttal, if needed.  Remaining

speakers are limited to thirty (30) total minutes of testimony time, with three

(3) minutes assigned per speaker.  The presiding officer may extend these

times as deemed necessary.
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CITY COUNCIL - Monday, January 11, 2010

ITEM
NO. EXPLANATION ACTION

TAKEN

Non-Public Hearing Items:  The Presiding Officer may permit limited public
comment for items on the agenda not posted for a Public Hearing.  The
Presiding Officer will establish time limits based upon the number of speaker
requests, length of the agenda, and to ensure meeting efficiency, and may
include a cumulative time limit.  Speakers will be called in the order cards
are received until the cumulative time is exhausted.

(1) Public Hearing and consideration of an Ordinance as requested in Zoning Case
2009-20 to amend Section 3.300 (Exterior Wall Construction Standards for
Structures) and Section 3.1200 (Landscaping Requirements) of Article 3
(Supplementary Regulations) and related sections of the Comprehensive Zoning
Ordinance of the City, Ordinance No. 2006-4-24, as heretofore amended,
pertaining to above ground and/or at-grade parking structures; and providing a
penalty clause, a repealer clause, a savings clause, a severability clause, and an
effective date.  Applicant:  City of Plano

(2) Public Hearing and consideration of an Ordinance as requested in Zoning Case
2009-21 to amend the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City, Ordinance
No. 2006-4-24, as heretofore amended, so as to rezone 9.3± acres located at the
southeast corner of Spring Creek Parkway and Communications Parkway, in the
City of Plano, Collin County, Texas, from Agricultural to Regional Employment;
directing a change accordingly in the official zoning map of the City; and
providing a penalty clause, a repealer clause, a savings clause, a severability
clause, and an effective date.  Applicant:  Rutledge Haggard

(3) Public Hearing and consideration of an Ordinance as requested in Zoning Case
2009-22 to amend the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City, Ordinance
No. 2006-4-24, as heretofore amended, granting Specific Use Permit No. 603 so as
to allow the additional use of Long-term Care Facility on 6.1± acres of land
located on the east side of Communications Parkway, 290± feet south of Spring
Creek Parkway, in the City of Plano, Collin County, Texas, presently zoned
Agricultural; directing a change accordingly in the official zoning map of the City;
and providing a penalty clause, a repealer clause, a savings clause, a severability
clause, and an effective date.  Applicant:  Acres of Sunshine, Ltd.

(4) A Resolution to approve the terms and conditions of an Economic Development
Incentive Agreement by and between the City of Plano, Texas and Scarbrough,
Medlin & Associates, Inc., a Texas corporation; authorizing its execution by the
City Manager and providing an effective date.

Municipal Center is wheelchair accessible.  A sloped curb entry is available at the main entrance

facing Municipal Avenue, with specially marked parking spaces nearby.  Access and special

parking are also available on the north side of the building.  Training Room A/Building

Inspections Training Room are located on the first floor.  Requests for sign interpreters or

special services must be received forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting time by calling the

City Secretary at 972-941-7120.
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PLANO CITY COUNCIL 
CORE BUSINESS WORK SESSION 

DECEMBER 7, 2009 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Phil Dyer, Mayor 
Harry LaRosiliere, Mayor Pro Tem 
Lee Dunlap, Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Pat Miner  
Ben Harris 
Mabrie Jackson (resigned) 
Lissa Smith 
Jean Callison 
 
STAFF 
Thomas H. Muehlenbeck, City Manager 
Frank Turner, Deputy City Manager 
Bruce Glasscock, Deputy City Manager 
Rod Hogan, Deputy City Manager 
Mark Israelson, Assistant City Manager 
LaShon Ross, Assistant City Manager 
Diane C. Wetherbee, City Attorney 
Diane Zucco, City Secretary 
 
 
 

Mayor Dyer convened the Council into the open session at 8:31 a.m. on Monday, December 7, 2009, in 
Training Room A of the Plano Municipal Center, 1520 K Avenue.  All Council Members were present.  Council 
Member Callison arrived at 8:49 a.m. 

 
Opening Comments  

 
 City Manager Muehlenbeck recognized department heads for their efforts in holding down expenditures 
and developing the core business matrix, advising that revenue enhancements will be addressed at a later time 
and requesting Council direction on priorities for October 1, 2010 – September 30, 2011.  Lyle Sumek, of Lyle 
Sumek Associates, Inc. facilitated the worksession and spoke to increased demand for services and to 
considering the responsibilities of the City as well as priorities.  Director of Budget and Research Rhodes-
Whitley spoke to the forecasted decrease of 8% in commercial property values, a projected budget deficit of $20 
million, continued low sales tax revenues, declines in water/sewer revenue, and the need for a 1.5 cent increase 
for the debt rate due to projects coming online.  Mr. Sumek spoke to the categories of “no choice,” “choice,” 
“quality of life,” and “add-ons” for services.  Ms. Rhodes-Whitley spoke to salaries making up 67.7% of the 
General Fund ($219 million) and to Public Safety accounting for 65% of salaries.  She advised that “no choice” 
items comprise approximately 8% of expenditures, “choice” 64%, “quality of life” 27% and “add-ons” 0.7%.  
She provided information on the transfer of funds for economic development, capital reserve, 
insurance/workman’s comp and Plano Television Network and spoke to categories of service provided from 
enterprise funds.   

 
Council discussion and direction on the core business services for the following City service areas and 
departments: 
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Public Safety Services Business Center 
 
 Police Chief Rushin spoke to the budget of $53 million, 494 full-time and 90 part-time positions, 
advised that court security services are funded through fees and Ms. Rhodes-Whitley advised she would meet 
with the Municipal Judge regarding paying administrative fees associated with court security to determine if the 
account is neutral.  Chief Rushin spoke to the cost of false alarms (99% of calls) and Deputy City Manager 
Glasscock advised regarding timeframes for response and stated that state law regulates fees collected.  Council 
Member Callison spoke to providing public education on the cost of false alarms.   Chief Rushin advised that the 
Red Light Camera Program is self-funded with monies reinvested into the community and City Manager 
Muehlenbeck spoke to the percentage of revenues forwarded to the state.  Chief Rushin spoke to the value of 
accreditation and compliance with directives and standards and advised regarding the School Liaison Officer 
Program costs and his recommendation that the program be discontinued from Plano locations, continued in 
Frisco locations (where the school district pays 100% of costs) and retaining three officers and one sergeant for 
call response.  Mayor Dyer requested further information regarding the level of contribution by school districts 
in other cities and City Manager Muehlenbeck requested direction from the Council to stay in the program or to 
require a minimum participation level from the school district.  The Council stated a consensus to work toward a 
50/50 split of costs for a savings of $332,296.   
 

Chief Rushin spoke to officers assigned to the Canine Program, Neighborhood Police Officer Program 
and Crime Prevention all of which were identified as “quality of life.”  He spoke to Warrant Services and 
advised that Detention Services is operating with minimum staff.  Police Budget Analyst Smith advised that 
Crossing Guard services are covered by revenue from the Child Safety Fund.  Chief Rushin advised that Plano 
has one of the best SWAT teams in the state, spoke to equipment costs, grants received and benefits of the 
program.  He reviewed the Professional Standards Unit, Traffic Enforcement Program, Training Services and 
Records Management.   
 
 Fire Chief Esparza spoke to an updated internal strategic plan and departmental reorganization to 
include five divisions with a budget of $42 million and 333 positions.  He spoke to Community Outreach and 
Childhood Safety as “quality of life” programs, cited their benefits and stated that if Staff were cut, the programs 
would be discontinued.  Chief Esparza spoke to the Technical Rescue and Hazardous Material/WMD Programs 
staffed by line fire fighters with costs related to equipment.  He spoke to prevention programs including annual 
inspections for commercial sites, false-alarm tracking, investigations and plan review.  Assistant Fire Chief/Fire 
Marshal Kerr advised that annual commercial inspections are provided at no charge and Mayor Dyer requested 
information regarding the number of such inspections as a possible source of revenue.  Chief Esparza spoke to 
Ambulance Transport/EMS Services and staffing; the need for mandated training; and advised regarding mutual 
aid where Plano would provide services to neighboring communities at no charge.  He spoke to the equipment 
costs of $12.8 million costs associated with the retention of the ISO1 rating including Station #13 coming 
online, a 5th ladder truck with personnel and equipment, a 14th engine and $5 million in annual operating costs.  
City Manager Muehlenbeck requested information regarding the impact on tax revenues if the ISO1 rating were 
lost.  Deputy City Manager Glasscock spoke to possible grant funds to offset some costs.   
 

Director of Emergency Management Stovall spoke to capital outlay for the new training facility and 
operations center which will be one-time costs.  He advised that emergency/disaster preparedness along with 
response/recovery are driven by state mandates and spoke to the impact on grant funding.  Mr. Stovall 
responded to the Council, stating that some existing furnishings are being utilized for the new center and 
reductions have been made from the original cost estimates.  He spoke to lack of other training space, the center 
providing education for City Staff and Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Dunlap spoke to possible opportunities for 
revenue.   
 
 The Council recessed at 10:30 a.m. and resumed at 10:39 a.m. 
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 Director of Public Safety/Communications Timmons spoke to transition of some services to wire-line 
funds which come to the City from telephone bills, future funding needs for “next generation” technology, and 
transition of some personnel to these purposes.  He spoke to providing public education and responded to City 
Manager Muehlenbeck regarding annual draws in preparation for new equipment anticipated in two-three years.  
Mr. Timmons spoke to support functions provided for emergency departments, 24-hour operations, regional 
voice/data public safety radio system and the expertise of Staff.  He advised that $81,000 in revenue for the 
radio systems maintenance and operation is from agencies serviced by the system and that $4.2 million is spent 
on alert functions (emergency phone and dispatch services).   
 
 Director of Health Collins spoke to the department having a combined staff of 44 with a composite 
budget of $3.5 million (down 8.5%) and the elimination of positions and services.  He spoke to implications if 
further programs were eliminated and the county not having the capacity or means to accomplish the tasks 
provided.  Mr. Collins spoke to programs including response to illumination requests, reduced funding for 
promotion of Clean Air initiatives, investigation of noise complaints, the importance of education for food 
handlers/managers, and benefits of enforcing the City’s smoking ordinance, and communicable disease 
surveillance.  He spoke to the success of the mosquito/rodent control programs, environmental remediation/spill 
response program to assist the Fire Department, inspections of non-hazardous liquid waste (grease traps), and 
water quality program with over 400 pools under inspection.  Mr. Collins spoke to department enforcement of 
federal/state/local laws to reduce the level of pollutants discharged in the sewer system and inspection of 
13,000-14,000 food establishments.  He advised that the only “no choice” area of the department is inspection 
and monitoring of storm water inlets and outlets which is mandated by federal/state law and advised that 44% of 
programs are budget neutral.    Mr. Collins responded to the Council regarding the cost for food permitting and 
comparisons to other area cities, and advised that Health Department inspection services are conducted after 
buildings are constructed.  He further stated that while disease surveillance may be done by the county, they do 
not track migration or provide education to slow/stop the outbreaks and spoke to enforcement of the smoking 
ordinance on a complaint basis.   
 

Director of Health Collins spoke to Animal Services field operations, off-site adoptions and education 
programs, revenues generated from licensing and the possibility new software would generate higher 
compliance, and responded to the Council regarding the number of Staff presentations provided annually.  He 
spoke to the need for veterinary services to prevent the spread of illness, assistance provided to citizens, and 
contracting for sterilization services.  Mr. Collins spoke to adoptions (2,500 per year) providing 92% cost 
recovery, the number of animals dropped off at the center, and reviewed field and shelter operations.  He 
advised that local rabies control would revert to the county if not done by the City and City Manager 
Muehlenbeck spoke to possible public reaction should services be reduced.  The Council requested Staff look 
into efforts to encourage registration of all animals in the City and to review possible hiring of a veterinarian to 
reduce costs.   
 
Customer Utility Services, Library, Technology Services & Public Information Office 
 
 Assistant City Manager Israelson spoke to monies derived mainly from the Water and Sewer Fund with 
utility management funded additionally through the General Fund.  He spoke to resolving issues with 
franchisees and their revenue collection, right-of-way management and legislative representation.  Mr. Israelson 
spoke to the highest priority service being field services and upgrade of the meter system.  He spoke regarding 
the billing and systems areas including the issuance of statements, management of inserts and quality control as 
well as the revenue and collections area where a payment kiosk has been installed.  Mr. Israelson advised that 
56% of customers utilize electronic payment and spoke to the cost for “high touch” services including the call 
center(s), notification tags and after-hours collections and restarts.  He spoke to services provided at the Davis 
Library location and Council requested usage figures for this site.  The Council requested information regarding 
possible charges for services conducted on weekends/holidays.   
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 Director of Libraries Baumbach spoke to the costs and services provided by the Municipal Reference 
Library whose librarian also acts as the department web master advising that if eliminated, the savings would be 
$18,000 in materials.  She spoke to the libraries providing income tax forms to the public and service time 
expenses should this be discontinued.  Ms. Baumbach spoke regarding program room administration, adult 
education programs and increased usage of the genealogy area.  She spoke to Plano’s inter-library loan program, 
enrichment activities, technical services/administration, and the use of “pools” for librarians, clerks and pages to 
fill in where needed.    Ms. Baumbach spoke to the state-mandated 64 hours of operation for libraries, which 
does not need to be met by every location and to the lightest service day as Friday.  She spoke to collection 
management and community education services including reference librarians, children’s education services, 
increased computer usage, program changes implemented on October 1 to limit holds and lock book drops 
during holidays, and funds received from the county and state.  The Council spoke to receiving information on 
the impact of rolling closures; fees for genealogy services and non-residents; and provision of income tax forms.   
 
 Mayor Dyer adjourned the session for lunch at 12:22 and resumed the session at 12:34 p.m. 
 

Director of Technology Services Stephens spoke to service provided to all departments, management of 
cell phone and wireless data services, and desktop support for over 2,000 users.  He advised regarding utilization 
of the Moto-mesh system beyond the Public Safety area and spoke to operations management costs for 
equipment and personnel, main internet connectivity in providing citizens with access to information and the 
need for highly secure networks.  Mr. Stephens advised that Staff provides support for in-house developed 
software and maintenance of the telecommunications and data network along with the City’s e-mail services.  
He further advised regarding support provided to the Fire, Police and Public Safety Communications 
Departments and responded to Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Dunlap that Staff will evaluate all maintenance and 
support service agreements providing more detailed information to the Council.   
 

Assistant City Manager Israelson advised that the Joint Use Facility of Customer Utility Billing receives 
21,000 payments per month while the Municipal Center Facility receives 51,000.  
 

Assistant City Manager Israelson spoke to service changes in the Public Information Department 
including the outsourcing of printing, reassignment of publishing duties and moving mail services and action 
center responsibilities to the City Secretary’s office.  He spoke to the role of Public Information to provide press 
releases and publications mandated by state and federal authorities and the creation of annual reports, inserts, 
resident guides and to further study of the department.  Mr. Israelson spoke to the role of Plano Television 
Network including emergency communications, televised meetings and agenda postings, and the level of grants. 
City Manager Muehlenbeck responded to Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Dunlap regarding Staff consideration of 
programming and the need for a long-term strategy for funding as $134,000 was transferred in from the General 
Fund to offset expenses.  Mr. Dunlap spoke to selling air time to other entities to increase revenues.  Staff was 
directed to evaluate their mission and responsibilities going forward including the number of productions and 
billing other departments for their efforts.   
 

Mr. Israelson spoke to the web site providing a link for communications, including postings and live 
streaming of meetings, web-based forms, and citizen response.  He advised that design is accomplished in-house 
with the exception of a small contract.  Ms. Rhodes-Whitley advised that the $250,000 in revenues noted is a 
transfer from the Technology Fund to pay web site expenses and Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Dunlap spoke to the 
importance of the web site and the possibility of revenue by charging organizations for posting to the City’s 
calendar.   
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Public Works & Engineering Business Center 
 

Director of Public Works/Engineering Upchurch spoke to Utility Operations, paid by the Water/Sewer 
Fund providing water main services and repair, right-of-way management, review of contractual rehabilitation 
and community outreach.  He spoke to Pumping Facilities including flow testing, inspection of contractor 
services, and contractual mowing of facilities.  Mr. Upchurch spoke to Municipal Drainage paid from drainage 
funds, administration costs spread to various business areas, and to street operations paid partially from the 
General Fund and including repairs, patching, screening walls and alleyways.  Deputy City Manager Hogan 
advised that the Capital Reserve Fund was established to fund repairs and Mr. Upchurch advised that while most 
maintenance is an in-house function, major construction is contracted out.  City Manager Muehlenbeck spoke to 
possible consolidation of graffiti removal efforts between the Engineering and Property Standards Departments.   
 
 Mr. Upchurch spoke to continued maintenance, design and operation required for traffic signals, the 
uninterruptable power supply system, quality of life issues such as lighted signs and “no choice” items including 
traffic signs and markings.  Mr. Hogan spoke to federal guidelines requiring specific size lettering and 
reflexivity on signage as mandates passed to the City.   
 

Mr. Upchurch spoke to the Engineering Department’s responsibility for Community Investment Projects 
including street design, construction and inspection.  The Council expressed no interest in charging inspection 
costs against projects to move revenue to the General Fund.  Mr. Upchurch spoke to right-of-way management, 
operations/maintenance of facilities, contract services, energy management and pest control.  He spoke to 
FEMA’s publication of new maps with slight variations in topography indicating some homes are now in the 
flood plains.  The Council requested Staff provide public information regarding the map changes to advise 
citizens.  Mr. Upchurch spoke to traffic management, operations, and signals. 
 

Director of Parks and Recreation Fortenberry advised the Council that the department is responsible for 
maintaining grounds/buildings, providing programs to the public and offering “quality of life” programs 
including special event permit processing and senior transportation.  Mayor Pro Tem LaRosiliere requested 
information regarding the number of riders at which the senior transportation program reaches a “break even” 
point and the Council concurred to evaluate the program and consider possible discontinuation.  Ms. Fortenberry 
spoke to community events, and the Council stated a consensus to look into corporate sponsorship of events.  
Staff spoke to input received following changes to the parks mowing/maintenance program and the Council 
spoke to the opportunity for cost recovery with partnerships from those utilizing the ball fields.  Staff reviewed 
use of recreation centers and cost recovery, advising that there is neighborhood interest in providing service at 
Douglass Center.  The Council discussed attendance at the centers and revenues and stated a consensus not to 
implement rolling closures.  Ms. Fortenberry advised regarding performing arts venues, the interurban rail 
station, public arts program, and volunteer program.  She advised that costs reflected for the Aerobats 
Gymnastics program include administrative costs and that the program typically covers its costs and City 
Manager Muehlenbeck spoke to the use of both General and Recreation Funds.   
 

Director of Sustainability and Environmental Services Nevil spoke to the department’s funding through 
an enterprise fund with costs recouped by fees, advising that Plano offers a high value of services at low rates.  
She spoke to “no choice” programs including refuse collection, commercial disposal and solid waste and to 
“quality of life” programs including yard trimming, bulky waste and household chemical collection and to the 
decline in revenues from recycling services from $1.3 million to $150,000 in two years.  Ms. Nevil spoke to 
Texas Pure Processing’s goal to become self sufficient, savings gained through the sustainability program, costs 
associated with the Live Green Expo and the Commercial Recycling Team and organic recycling which results 
in cost savings by diverting 47,000 tons from the land fill.   
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 Ms. Nevil responded to Mayor Dyer, advising that mulch products are selling as soon as they are 
processed and rated the lowest priority items in the department as the Live Green Expo and special paid 
collection.  She advised that the water district is having difficulty locating a site for transfer station #4 and to 
expansion of a City of Richardson station for the region.  She responded to the Council that administrative costs 
have been spread across the expenditures and spoke to the funding of communications through the Enterprise 
Fund rather than the General Fund.  Ms. Nevil advised that approximately 70% of the attendees at the Expo are 
residents.   
 
 The Council recessed at 2:41 p.m. and resumed at 2:47 p.m. 
 
Development Services Business Center 
 
 Director of Planning Jarrell spoke to the geographic information system/mapping, advising that there 
has been some staff reduction in this area; spoke to the phases of commercial development and redevelopment; 
customer assistance provided; demographics and census support; the regulatory role of heritage preservation and 
to “quality-of-life” issues including the day labor center, community building, and neighborhood enhancement 
programs.  She spoke to discussions related to the day labor center, posting notice that activities are prohibited 
on other properties and advised that 200-250 workers per day utilize the site.   
 
 Chief Building Official Mata spoke to “no choice” items including inspections/plan review/permit 
services and records and information management. He spoke regarding sign enforcement as a “quality of life” 
issue and City Manager Muehlenbeck spoke regarding the cost of the program.  The Council discussed 
continuation of the program and fines and stopping sign pick up to determine the impact.  Mr. Mata spoke to 
departmental vacancies, contractor meetings, dispute resolution, community benefits and the waiver of fees for 
other entities including the county, school district, etc.  He responded to Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Dunlap 
regarding contractor luncheons and the Council requested consideration of expansion to include realtors.   
 

Director of Property Standards O’Banner spoke to Staff preparation and testifying for administrative 
and judicial hearing of cases and to neighborhood assessment and education.  She advised regarding 
enforcement officer education and offering classes to other communities for fees and clarified state legislation 
regarding graffiti.  Ms. O’Banner spoke to the lack of interest in retailers recouping abandoned shopping carts 
and exploration of ways to recycle them and to Staff time in bringing sub-standard property cases before the 
Building Standards Commission.  She spoke to liens placed on public nuisance property, the rental inspection 
program as self-sustaining and challenges in expanding the program to single family locations.  City Manager 
Muehlenbeck spoke to waiting to move forward on a new program during the current economic times.  Ms. 
O’Banner spoke to Staff providing community service spruce up and to participation in professional 
organizations to further legislative needs and garner regional support.   
 
Human Resources, Risk Management & Finance  
 

Assistant City Manager Ross spoke to Human Resources compliance with federal and state laws 
regarding employment law and to offering recruitment/retention and employee development to managers.  She 
spoke to other cities enrolling in Plano leadership courses, suspension of the tuition assistance program, and 
expenses and returns derived from the Management Preparation Program.  Ms. Ross spoke to the number of 
employees indicating that their spouse has other coverage, changes to the health plan directed toward cost 
sharing, addressing the costs for civil service examinations, review of overtime payment, collection of retirees’ 
insurance payments and consideration of alternative coverage.  Mayor Dyer requested Staff follow-up on those 
employees whose spouses have other coverage and address it during the budget cycle.  City Manager 
Muehlenbeck advised that after review of the Management Preparation Program, it was retained based on the 
minor cost as compared to the benefits derived.  Director of Finance Tacke spoke to the cost savings realized by 
moving over-65 retirees to an alternate program.   
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Director of Finance Tacke spoke to “no choice” programs including monitoring bond sales, tax 
increment finance administration and “choice” items (economic development and audits). She advised regarding 
court administration revenues generated ($7.9 million) versus costs ($2.1 million) and spoke to the savings 
realized by “special projects” in purchasing the new court system.  Ms. Tacke advised that the annual audit is 
“no choice” and to the retention of some general accounting functions, stating that the Redflex contract could be 
outsourced to save costs.  She spoke to the efficiency of payroll operations, accounts payable/receivable and 
advised there may be no savings in outsourcing these items.  Ms. Tacke advised that Property Management 
Programs are included in an enterprise fund and are cost neutral; spoke to savings through reorganization in the 
purchasing area; the role of the treasury in debt management and securities; and Financial Systems 
Administration who support the accounting functions.  Director of Fleet Services Ryan spoke to a reduction in 
the number of vehicles and to maintenance issues.  City Manager Muehlenbeck spoke regarding plans for a bond 
sale in January.   

 
Risk Manager Edwards spoke to managing costs for subrogation, workers compensation claims, the 

need for a risk control program and training to provide in-house expertise for management.   
 

City Manager Muehlenbeck responded to Mayor Dyer regarding Staff reductions over the last two years 
and to the new fire fighter positions that will be added.  Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Dunlap spoke to a possible 
reduction in Council stipends and Council Member Smith spoke to attracting all citizens to serve on the Council.  
She and Mayor Pro Tem LaRosiliere spoke to declining the stipend if members so choose.  The Council spoke 
to meals being appropriate for board/commission day programs and Deputy City Manager Hogan spoke to the 
Parks and Recreation Planning Board ceasing meal service beginning in January.  Mayor Dyer spoke to 
addressing Council meals at a later time.   
 

City Manager Muehlenbeck spoke to securing monies from hotel/motel taxes for development of a new 
convention center and funding historic and arts groups at a lower percentage.  Council Member Callison spoke 
to the effect of the economy on the arts groups and ensuring the timing is right for a shift.  Mayor Pro Tem 
LaRosiliere spoke to notifying arts groups if grants will be scaled down.  City Manager Muehlenbeck advised 
that Staff would bring back information regarding alternatives for center funding and for graduated grants to the 
arts groups.  In response to Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Dunlap, he spoke regarding meetings with the Arts of Collin 
County to determine the project’s status as well as operations and maintenance costs.  The Council discussed 
special event grants and stated a consensus to have a committee review these requests prior to the budget 
session.   
 
Council Appointees  
 

Municipal Judge Stevenson spoke to the Juvenile Case Managers as a “quality of life” program and 
provided at no cost to the City; the Building Security Fund paid for by court costs and to funds available to 
cover expenses for five years; and to the Court Technology Fund where state statutes prohibit fees collected to 
be spent on personnel.  He advised that court operations is a “choice” and spoke to magistrate operations and 
having judges available 24 hours a day to perform functions.  Judge Stevenson spoke the Teen Court Program, 
paid for by defendants throughout the year.   
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City Secretary Zucco spoke to expansion of the department to include Records Management and the “no 
choice” areas of open record coordination and retention of records and charge back of costs to departments.  She 
spoke to costs for warehousing, scanning, and the action center and advised that postage and equipment costs for 
mail services are $290,000 per year.  Ms. Zucco advised that in the City Secretary’s office most items are “no 
choice,” and spoke to the January 2010 election as a supplemental appropriation.  She spoke to creation of the 
paperless agenda packet, legal publications, income received from alcoholic beverage permits in the City, and 
customer service provided by the department.  Ms. Zucco spoke to coordinating the boards/commissions and 
utilization of an on-line application process in 2009.   
 

City Attorney Wetherbee spoke to the reductions in Staff and other cities that do not have in-house 
attorneys.  She spoke to utilizing a mentor program to reduce costs, her department acting as a corporation 
counsel, disposition of lawsuits, and recovering monies due the City. 
 

Director of Budget and Research Rhodes-Whitley spoke to areas of “no choice” including preparation of 
a budget and regarding her role as the tax assessor.  She spoke to her department coordinating special projects 
including the core business matrix and budget projections.   
 

Ms. Rhodes-Whitley spoke to retiree payouts and Mayor Dyer requested a briefing on this and other 
employee benefits.  She further spoke to costs for unemployment insurance, central appraisal district estimates, 
electrical/water costs for the City.  Ms. Rhodes-Whitley spoke to retiree health insurance costs, vacation/sick-
leave buy backs, holiday luncheon, minor apparatus, funding of Technology Services, departmental awards, 
regional/national association memberships, departmental transfers, and social service add-ons.   
 

City Manager Muehlenbeck spoke to the duties of the Internal Audit Department to produce reports to 
streamline operations, audit arts groups, and complete special projects.  He advised that Economic Development 
attracts business, develops the incentive fund program, provides business retention and expansion services, and 
coordinates redevelopment efforts.  Mr. Muehlenbeck spoke to providing information on the potential of issuing 
debt for water and sewer as opposed to pay as you go.  Mayor Dyer thanked the Staff for their work and 
requested the Council forward any questions. 
 
 Nothing further was discussed and Mayor Dyer adjourned the meeting at 5:28 p.m.  
 
      _____________________________ 
      Phil Dyer, Mayor  
    
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Diane Zucco, City Secretary 
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COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Phil Dyer, Mayor 
Harry LaRosiliere, Mayor Pro Tem 
Lee Dunlap, Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Pat Miner  
Ben Harris 
Mabrie Jackson (resigned) 
Lissa Smith 
Jean Callison 
 
STAFF 
Thomas H. Muehlenbeck, City Manager 
Frank Turner, Deputy City Manager 
Bruce Glasscock, Deputy City Manager 
Rod Hogan, Deputy City Manager 
Mark Israelson, Assistant City Manager 
LaShon Ross, Assistant City Manager 
Diane C. Wetherbee, City Attorney 
Diane Zucco, City Secretary 
 
 The Plano City Council met informally at 7:09 p.m., Thursday, December 10, 2009, at the 
Tom Muehlenbeck Recreation Center, 5801 West Parker Road, Plano, Texas.  All Council 
Members were present with the exception of Council Member Smith.  Mayor Dyer welcomed those 
in attendance and introduced Council and Staff.  He spoke regarding the structure of the Council 
where all members represent citizens across the City.   

2009/2010 Budget Update 

Director of Budget and Research Rhodes-Whitley spoke to the decline in sales tax revenues, 
efforts on the part of Council and Staff to address a deficit projected for 2009-10, and an increase in 
ad valorem taxes of 1.51 cents, the majority of which will be used to pay for debt.  She spoke to the 
projected $20 million deficit for 2010-11 and the requirement that Council pass a balanced budget.  
Ms. Rhodes-Whitley stated that the Collin County Appraisal District has advised there will likely be 
an 8% reduction in commercial property value for the coming year and spoke to the positive impact 
of the economic development fund, the costs for operation/maintenance for new facilities, and the 
impact of heavy rains on income for the Water/Sewer Fund.  She responded to questions from 
citizens regarding the cost of the January special election and efforts to maintain the City’s AAA 
bond rating.  Ms. Rhodes-Whitley welcomed new ideas and spoke to the low tax rate in Plano as 
compared to other area cities.  City Manager Muehlenbeck spoke to a January bond sale and Ms. 
Rhodes-Whitley spoke to street projects where there are matching funds.  

 
In response to a citizen’s question, City Manager Muehlenbeck advised that there was a 45% 

decrease in participation when recreation membership fees were raised.  Citizens spoke to 
maintaining library hours and to their willingness to pay more taxes with the understanding these 
would be adjusted when the economy improves.   
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 Mayor Pro Tem LaRosiliere spoke to the deficit forecast for 2009-10 and $10 million in 
service/personnel cuts and review of services by the Council.  Mayor Dyer spoke to a one penny 
increase in the property tax rate resulting in $2.5 million and the reduction of $10 million in sales 
tax revenues.  Ms. Rhodes-Whitley responded to a citizen, advising that the City is unable to track 
spending by citizens versus non-citizens and Mayor Dyer spoke regarding sales tax distribution 
(6.25 cents to the state, 1 cent to DART and 1cent to the City).   

Economic Development Progress Report 

Plano Economic Development Board Executive Director Bane reviewed the facilities that 
opened in 2008-09 including Children’s Medical Center, Capital One Auto Finance, Denbury 
Resources, Cigna-Regional Headquarters, Diodes, and Hope Center.  She spoke to the number of 
medical facilities in Plano, 2009-10 projects including Crumb Corp and Huawei, Pizza Hut 
construction with a value of $15-20 million, and the number of data centers.  Ms. Bane spoke to the 
jobs brought to the City, improvements and pending projects from Alliance Data Systems and 
Tektronics.   

 
Ms. Bane spoke to Chapter 380 incentives where companies agreement to comply with 

requirements for occupancy and personnel, the number of healthcare industries coming to the City, 
the popularity of incentives and limitations/benefits of tax abatements.  She advised that Plano is 
advertised as a top city for working families with low business costs, educated workforce and 
world-class business parks.  Ms. Bane spoke to challenges of a maturing city as aging infrastructure, 
slow revenue streams, the impact of other cities with 4A and 4B funds, and external retail growth 
and the opportunities including redevelopment/infill, organic business growth, emerging industries, 
increased awareness, and recruiting from high-cost and regulated markets.  She advised that the 
board has a staff of five and that efforts can be Plano-specific or regional in nature and that during 
slow economic times, companies take more time to analyze decisions.   

Community Investment Projects/Street Repairs/Improvements/Resurfacing – District 2 

Director of Public Works/Engineering Upchurch advised regarding design work on 
intersection improvements for Plano Parkway/Preston Road; construction of improvements at Coit 
Road and Legacy Drive; widening of McDermott Road from Coit Road to Ohio Drive; intersection 
improvements at Spring Creek Parkway/Coit Road; improvements on Communications Parkway 
from Parker Road to Spring Creek Parkway and on Rasor Boulevard east of Ohio Drive.  He spoke 
to work on the left turn lanes on Ohio Drive south of S.H. 121; testing of equipment at the 
Mapleshade Lift Station; widening of Marsh Lane south of Parker Road; widening of Plano 
Parkway west of Midway Road; residential reconstruction in the area bounded by Spring Creek 
Parkway/Coit Road/Hedgcoxe Road/Preston Road and the change out of water meters in the City.   
 
 Mr. Upchurch responded to citizens, advising that now is an opportune time to bid projects 
as pricing is low; S.H 544 west of the Burlington Northern Railroad is not within Plano City limits; 
the median left-turn lane at Preston Road/Legacy Drive has been delayed by weather; ramps at 
Parker Road/U.S. 75 are working toward completion; and advised that plans for an overpass at 
Preston Road/Plano Parkway have been removed from plans.   
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Fire Station #12/Emergency Operations Center & Fire Station #13 Update 

 Fire Chief Esparza spoke to completion of Station #12 (including Logistics Facility and 
Emergency Operations Center) at Parker Road/Coit Road; plans to go to bid for Station #13 early in 
2010; and adding a bay at the Roundrock Station.  He responded to citizen questions advising that 
Station #12 was delayed due to contractor issues, is much larger than a typical station and Staff does 
not anticipate traffic problems in the area.  Mayor Dyer spoke to Plano’s ISO 1 rating and being the 
only “flagship” municipality.   

Major Park Projects and Park Land Acquisition 

 Parks and Recreation Director Fortenberry spoke to the similarities between the Park Master 
Plan in place in the 1960’s and development today.  She advised regarding two acquisitions:  Sunset 
Park at Midway Road to provide parking and a trail connection; and the White Rock Creek 
Community Park Addition including 80 acres completing a 124-acre site with trail connections for 
future development.   She responded to citizen questions, advising that trails will follow creeks and 
bridges, spoke to the cost for park land and advised there would still need to be agreement between 
parties even if eminent domain were used.  Ms. Fortenberry spoke to removing the proposed pool 
from plans for Carpenter Park Recreation Center and moving forward with an expansion of the 
weight room; and the use of “soft” trails at Oak Point Park.  She advised that Staff will review 
uneven trails at Arbor Hills.   
 
 Council Member Harris opened the floor for general questions and advised that Staff will 
review multiple mailings related to utility billing and that the Council has not yet considered 
increased expenses that may be associated with caps on trade.  City Manager Muehlenbeck spoke to 
the City being turned down in efforts to secure stimulus funds and Mayor Dyer advised that the City 
cannot increase the sales tax rate.  Council Member Harris spoke to the 1 cent of sales tax that is 
paid to DART and responded to a citizen regarding traffic/noise concerns.   
 
 Mayor Dyer thanked those in attendance.  Nothing further was discussed and the meeting 
was closed at 8:47 p.m. 
      
 
      _____________________________ 
      Phil Dyer, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Diane Zucco, City Secretary 
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COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Phil Dyer, Mayor 
Harry LaRosiliere, Mayor Pro Tem 
Lee Dunlap, Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Pat Miner  
Ben Harris 
Mabrie Jackson (resigned) 
Lissa Smith 
Jean Callison 
 
STAFF 
Thomas H. Muehlenbeck, City Manager 
Frank Turner, Deputy City Manager 
Bruce Glasscock, Deputy City Manager 
Rod Hogan, Deputy City Manager 
Mark Israelson, Assistant City Manager 
LaShon Ross, Assistant City Manager 
Diane C. Wetherbee, City Attorney 
Diane Zucco, City Secretary 
 
 
 Mayor Dyer called the meeting to order at 5:13 p.m., Monday, December 14, 2009, in 
Training Room A of the Municipal Center, 1520 K Avenue.  All Council Members were present 
with the exception of Council Member Miner.  Council Member Callison arrived at 5:28 p.m.  
Mayor Dyer then stated that the Council would retire into Executive Session in compliance with 
Chapter 551, Government Code, Vernon’s Texas Codes, Annotated, in order to consult with an 
attorney and receive Legal Advice/Litigation, Section 551.071; to receive information regarding 
Economic Development, Section 551.087; and to discuss Personnel, Section 551.074 for which a 
certified agenda will be kept in the office of the City Secretary for a period of two years as required. 
 

Mayor Dyer reconvened the meeting back into the Preliminary Open Meeting at 6:25 p.m. in 
the Council Chambers where the following matters were discussed: 
 
Consideration and Action Resulting From Executive Session:  Personnel 
 
Appointment - Arts of Collin County Commission Board of Directors 
 
 Upon a motion made by Council Member Smith and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
LaRosiliere, the Council voted 6-0 to appoint Sandra Yancey as a Joint Member of the board.   
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Departmental Briefing – Building Inspections      
 

Chief Building Official Mata spoke to the department’s responsibilities to verify that 
construction of all buildings and residential homes meet adopted standards for quality of life and 
building safety through plan review and construction inspection services and enforcing the 
international codes.  He advised that permit services include permitting, plan review, variances and 
records while inspection services are comprised of field inspections, code consultation/enforcement 
and job tracking.   Mr. Mata spoke to the timeframe and electronic processing for permit review and 
the variety of inspections performed.  He advised that the department facilitates the Building 
Standards Commission and Board of Adjustment, spoke to adoption of green building standards and 
an updated sign ordinance and referenced outreach efforts and future projects.   
 
Council items for discussion/action on future agendas  
 

No items were discussed. 
 
Consent and Regular Agenda  
 
  Council Member Harris requested that Consent Agenda Item “J,” a resolution to approve 
the terms and conditions of a real estate contract between the Jason Byron Sowell Jr. Trust and the 
City of Plano for the purchase and lease of property located at Spring Creek Parkway and 
Windhaven Parkway, be removed for individual consideration due to a possible conflict of interest.   
 

Nothing further was discussed.  Mayor Dyer adjourned the Preliminary Meeting at 6:41 p.m. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 

     Phil Dyer, Mayor   
ATTEST 
 
 
___________________________ 
Diane Zucco, City Secretary 
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Phil Dyer, Mayor 
Harry LaRosiliere, Mayor Pro Tem 
Lee Dunlap, Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Pat Miner  
Ben Harris 
Mabrie Jackson (resigned) 
Lissa Smith 
Jean Callison 
 
STAFF 
Thomas H. Muehlenbeck, City Manager 
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Rod Hogan, Deputy City Manager 
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 Mayor Dyer convened the Council into the Regular Session on Monday, December 14, 
2009, at 7:01 p.m. in the Council Chamber of the Plano Municipal Center, 1520 K Avenue.  All 
Council Members were present with the exception of Council Member Miner. 
 
 The invocation was led by Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Dunlap and the Pledge of Allegiance was 
led Douglass Community Center Seniors. 
 

 
COMMENTS OF PUBLIC INTEREST 

 No one appeared to speak 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

Upon a request by Council Member Harris, Consent Agenda Item “J” was pulled for 
individual consideration due to a possible conflict of interest.   
 
 Upon a motion made by and seconded by the Council voted 6-0 to approve and adopt all 
remaining items on the Consent Agenda as recommended and as follows:   
 
Approval of Minutes
 

  (Consent Agenda Item “A”)     

November 18, 2009 
November 23, 2009 
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Approval of Expenditures 

Award/Rejection of Bid/Proposal:  (Purchase of products/services through formal 
procurement process by this agency) 
 
Bid No. 2009-192-C for Annual Supply Contract for Herbicides, Insecticides, and Miscellaneous 
Chemicals in the estimated annual amount of $78,149 to Red River Specialties, Mann Farm and 
Ranch, Estes Inc., CWC Chemical Inc., BWI Companies, Univar USA, and Helena Chemical Co., 
and authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents.  This will establish an annual 
fixed price contract with three optional one-year renewals.  (Consent Agenda Item “B”)     
 
Bid No. 2009-143-B for construction of the McDermott Road from Ohio Drive to Coit Road project 
to Tiseo Paving Company in the amount of $2,132,270.  The project consists of the construction of 
the widening of McDermott Road to a six lane road from Coit Road to Rasor Boulevard and a four 
lane road from Rasor Boulevard to Ohio Drive.  The project also includes a bridge over White Rock 
Creek between Robinson Road and Rasor Boulevard.  (Consent Agenda Item “C”)     
 
Purchase from an Existing Contract 
 
To approve the purchase of GIS Maintenance Expenses as designated in the amount of $58,700 
from ESRI, Inc. through a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) Contract, and 
authorizing the City Manager to execute any and all necessary documents.  (DIR-SDD-492)  
(Consent Agenda Item “D”)     
 
Approval of Contract:  (Purchase of products/services exempt from State of Texas 
Competitive Bid Laws) 
 
To approve a Professional Services Agreement contract between the City of Plano and Mandy 
Vassigh Engineering, Inc., in the amount of $64,850 for the engineering design of Screening Wall – 
Parker Road and Independence Parkway and authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary 
documents.  This is for the engineering design and specifications for the reconstruction of screening 
walls at the following two locations:  (1) On the south side of Parker Road from 560 feet west of 
Alma Drive to Spring Creek Parkway – Length 1,400 LF and (2) On the west side of Independence 
Parkway from approximately 140 feet north of Lanarc Drive to approximately 150 feet south of 
Sebring Drive – Length 380 LF.  (Consent Agenda Item “E”)     
 
To approve a Professional Services Agreement by and between the City of Plano and BW2 
Engineering, Inc., in the amount of $97,450 for Dallas North Estates 3, and authorizing the City 
Manager to execute all necessary documents.  This includes the complete reconstruction of existing 
street pavement, sidewalks and waterlines at the following locations:  Edgefield Drive-Janwood 
Drive to Springbrook Road, Linden Drive-Edgefield Drive to Ridgefield Drive and Meadowcrest 
Drive-Springbrook Drive to Ridgefield Drive. (Consent Agenda Item “F”)     
 
To approve a contract made and entered into by and between the City of Plano and Sharon Rowe, 
the Elections Administrator of Collin County, Texas, pursuant to the authority in Subchapter D, 
Section 31.092, of Chapter 31, of the Texas Election Code, regarding the coordination, supervision, 
and running of the City’s January 30, 2010, Special Election in the estimated amount of $68,149.  
(Consent Agenda Item “G”)     
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Approval of Change Order 
 
To Smith Contracting, Inc., increasing the contract by $43,351 for the 2008-2009 Arterial Concrete 
Pavement Rehabilitation Project, Enterprise Drive and Premier Drive, Project No. 5892, Change 
Order No. 1, Bid No. 2009-133-B.  (Consent Agenda Item “H”)     
 

 
Adoption of Resolutions 

Resolution No. 2009-12-1(R):  To approve receipt of funds in the amount of $158,403 from the 
Texas State Library and Archives Commission – Loan Star Libraries to fund the following for the 
Plano Public Library System; tagging Library materials for Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) 
implementation, English and Spanish Microsoft computer class instructors; books; large print 
books, World Language materials, and CDs and DVDs; and authorizing the City Manager to 
execute all necessary documents for receipt of the funding.  (Consent Agenda Item “I”)     
 
Resolution No. 2009-12-2(R):  To authorize an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between the City 
of Plano, and the City of Murphy for backup assistance in Building Plans Examination and Building 
Inspection; and providing for an immediate effective date.  (Consent Agenda Item “K”)     
 
Resolution No. 2009-12-3(R):  To approve and adopt an amendment to the City of Plano 
Supplemental Savings Plan (Governmental Money Purchase Plan); authorizing its execution by the 
City Manager; approving the termination of the Plan; delegating to the City Manager the authority 
to submit the Plan to the Internal Revenue Service for a determination as to its qualified status upon 
termination; and providing an effective date.  (Consent Agenda Item “L”)     
 
Resolution No. 2009-12-4(R):  To approve the terms and conditions of a Texas Traffic Safety 
Program Grant Agreement by and between the State of Texas and the City of Plano, Texas; 
authorizing the City Manager to execute the Grant Agreement and any other documents necessary 
to effectuate the action taken; and providing an effective date.  (Consent Agenda Item “M”)     
 
Resolution No. 2009-12-5(R):  To approve the terms and conditions of a First Amendment to a 
Development Agreement between the City of Plano and RH 15th Condos One, Ltd. for the 
development of 15th Street Village; authorizing its execution by the City Manager; and providing an 
effective date.  (Consent Agenda Item “N”)     
 

 
Adoption of Ordinances 

Ordinance No. 2009-12-6:  To transfer the sum of $79,954 from the General Fund Unappropriated 
Fund Balance for Fiscal Year 2009-10 to the General Fund Operating Appropriation for the purpose 
of providing additional funding for the estimated costs associated with conducting a Special 
Election on January 30, 2010 to fill the vacant Place 3 City Council position; amending the budget 
of the City and Ordinance 2009-9-13, as amended, to reflect the actions taken herein; declaring this 
action to be a case of public necessity; and providing an effective date.  (Consent Agenda Item “O”)     
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Ordinance No. 2009-12-7:  To amend Ordinance No. 2007-5-20 relating to City of Plano 
Retirement Security Plan as restated January 1, 2007 as follows:  the last paragraph of Section 
2.1(b) “Mortality Assumption” to comply with certain provisions of the Worker, Retiree, and 
Employee Recovery Act of 2008 (“WRERA”) effective January 1, 2009 and the second paragraph 
of Section 12.3 “Non-Alienation of Benefits” to adopt the provisions of Subchapters A and C of 
Chapter 804 of the Texas Government Code effective January 1, 2010; authorizing its execution by 
the City Manager; providing a repealer clause, a severability clause, a savings clause, and an 
effective date.  (Consent Agenda Item “P”)     
 
Ordinance No. 2009-12-8:  To adopt and enact Supplement Number 88 to the Code of Ordinances 
for the City of Plano; providing for amendment to certain sections of the Code; and providing an 
effective date.  (Consent Agenda Item “Q”)     
 

 
END OF CONSENT 

 Due to a possible conflict of interest, Council Member Harris stepped down from the bench 
on the following item. 
 
Resolution No. 2009-12-9(R):  To approve the terms and conditions of a Real Estate Contract and 
Lease by and between the Jason Byron Sowell Jr. Trust and the City of Plano for the purchase and 
lease of approximately 80 acres of land located at the intersection of Spring Creek Parkway and 
Windhaven Parkway, Plano, Collin County, Texas; authorizing the City Manager to execute such 
contract; and providing an effective date.  (Consent Agenda Item “J”)     
 
 Upon a motion made by Council Member Callison and seconded by Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Dunlap, the Council voted 5-0 to approve a real estate contract and lease by and between the Jason 
Byron Sowell Jr. Trust and the City of Plano for the purchase and lease of land located at the 
intersection of Spring Creek Parkway and Windhaven Parkway; and further to adopt Resolution No. 
2009-12-9(R).  
 
 Council Member Harris resumed his seat at the bench.   
 
Public Hearing and adoption of Ordinance No. 2009-12-10 as requested in Zoning Case 2009-
19 to amend the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City, Ordinance No. 2006-4-24, as 
heretofore amended, granting Specific Use Permit No. 602 so as to allow the additional use of Day 
Care Center on 3.0± acres of land located on the south side of McDermott Road, 800± feet east of 
Independence Parkway, in the City of Plano, Collin County, Texas, presently zoned Single-Family 
Residence-7; directing a change accordingly in the official zoning map of the City; and providing a 
penalty clause, a repealer clause, a savings clause, a severability clause, and an effective date.  
Applicant:  Northpointe Assembly of God  (Regular Agenda Item “1”)  
 
 Director of Planning Jarrell advised that the request for a day care center in this location 
requires a specific use permit and that it has direct access to a median opening and meets required 
parking, loading and unloading specifications.  She advised that, while not necessary, the applicant 
intends to put in a landscape boundary between the site and adjacent residential property and that 
the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval as submitted.   
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Ordinance No. 2009-12-10 
 
 
 Mayor Dyer opened the Public Hearing.  No one spoke either for or against the request.  The 
Public Hearing was closed. 
 
 Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem LaRosiliere and seconded by Deputy Mayor Pro 
Tem Dunlap, the Council voted 6-0 to grant Specific Use Permit No. 602 allowing a day care center 
at McDermott Road and Independence Parkway as recommended by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and as requested in Zoning Case 2009-19; and further to adopt Ordinance No. 2009-
12-10.   
 
Resolution No. 2009-12-11(R):  To approve the terms and conditions of an Economic 
Development Incentive Agreement by and between the City of Plano, Texas and Allied Solutions, 
LLC; authorizing its execution by the City Manager and providing an effective date.  (Regular 
Agenda Item “2”)     
 
 Director of Finance Tacke advised that Allied Solutions, LLC would occupy no less than 
19,500 square feet of commercial space and retain no less than 78 full-time jobs by January 1, 2010.  
She advised that the terms of the agreement run from January 1, 2010 – December 31, 2014 for a 
grant in the amount of $54,600. 
 
 Upon a motion made by Council Member Callison and seconded by Council Member Smith, 
the Council voted 6-0 to approve an Economic Development Incentive Agreement between the City 
of Plano, Texas and Allied Solutions, LLC. And further to adopt Resolution No. 2009-12-11(R).   
 
Resolution No. 2009-12-12(R):  A Resolution to approve the terms and conditions of an Economic 
Development Incentive Agreement by and between the City of Plano, Texas and Tektronix Texas, 
LLC; authorizing its execution by the City Manager and providing an effective date.  (Regular 
Agenda Item “3”)     
 
 Director of Finance Tacke advised that Tektronix Texas, LLC would occupy no less than 
125,000 square feet of commercial space and transfer or create up to 450 full-time jobs by August 1, 
2010 with the creation or transfer of 25 additional jobs by December 31, 2012.  She advised that the 
terms of the agreement run from August 1, 2010 – December 31, 2022 in the total amount of 
$593,750. 
 
 Upon a motion made by Council Member Harris and seconded by Council Member Smith, 
the Council voted 6-0 to approve an Economic Development Incentive Agreement between the City 
of Plano, Texas and Tektronix Texas, LLC. And further to adopt Resolution No. 2009-12-12(R).   
 
Public Hearing pursuant to Chapter 26 of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Code pertaining to the 
use or taking of a portion of a City of Plano park and known as the Bluebonnet Trail site for a 
Communications Facilities License Agreement for cellular equipment attached to and at the base of 
the existing Oncor Electric transmission tower.  (Regular Agenda Item “4”)     
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Assistant City Manager Israelson spoke to the request for a ground lease for Clear Wireless, 
LLC at Bluebonnet Trail, advising that the request has been approved by the Parks and Recreation 
Planning Board.  Mr. Israelson stated that the project includes all reasonable planning to minimize 
harm to the land resulting from the use and spoke to there being no feasible and prudent alternative 
to the use of this land. 
 
 Mayor Dyer opened the Public Hearing.  No one spoke either for or against the request.  The 
Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Ordinance No. 2009-12-13:  to approve the use and taking by Clear Wireless, LLC, a Nevada 
limited liability company, of a portion of City of Plano public park land known as Bluebonnet Trail 
Park (near Stillwell Road between Brunchberry Lane and Ashington Lane); finding and determining 
that there is no feasible and prudent alternative to the proposed use or taking of the park land and 
that the proposed project includes all reasonable planning to minimize harm to the land, the park 
and the recreation area; and providing an effective date.  (Regular Agenda Item “5”)     
 
 Upon a motion made by Council Member Callison and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
LaRosiliere, the Council voted 6-0 to approve the use and taking by Clear Wireless LLC of a 
portion of Bluebonnet Trail Park and further to adopt Ordinance No. 2009-12-13.   
 
Resolution No. 2009-12-14(R):  To approve the terms and conditions of a Communications 
Facilities License Agreement by and between the City of Plano, Texas, and Clear Wireless, LLC, a 
Nevada limited liability company, to locate, place, attach, install, and operate, telecommunications 
ground equipment in certain specific portions of City of Plano public park land, known as the 
Bluebonnet Trail site, authorizing its execution by the City Manager and providing an effective 
date.  (Regular Agenda Item “6”)     
 
 Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem LaRosiliere and seconded by Council Member 
Harris, the Council voted 6-0 to approve an agreement between the City of Plano and Clear 
Wireless LLC for ground equipment at Bluebonnet Trail and further to adopt Resolution No. 2009-
12-14(R).  
 
Public Hearing pursuant to Chapter 26 of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Code pertaining to the 
use or taking of a portion of a City of Plano park and known as the Preston Ridge site for a 
Communications Facilities License Agreement for cellular equipment attached to and at the base of 
the existing Oncor Electric transmission tower.  (Regular Agenda Item “7”)     
 

Assistant City Manager Israelson spoke to the request for a ground lease for Clear Wireless, 
LLC at Preston Ridge site, advising that the request has been approved by the Parks and Recreation 
Planning Board.  Mr. Israelson stated that the project includes all reasonable planning to minimize 
harm to the land resulting from the use and spoke to there being no feasible and prudent alternative 
to the use of this land. 
 
 Mayor Dyer opened the Public Hearing.  No one spoke either for or against the request.  The 
Public Hearing was closed. 
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Ordinance No. 2009-12-15:  An Ordinance to approve the use and taking by Clear Wireless, LLC, 
a Nevada limited liability company, of a portion of City of Plano public park land known as Preston 
Ridge Trail Park (near Legacy Drive between Rock Springs Drive and Los Altos Drive); finding 
and determining that there is no feasible and prudent alternative to the proposed use or taking of the 
park land and that the proposed project includes all reasonable planning to minimize harm to the 
land, the park and the recreation area; and providing an effective date.  (Regular Agenda Item “8”)     
 
 Upon a motion made by Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Dunlap and seconded by Council Member 
Callison, the Council voted 6-0 to approve the use and taking by Clear Wireless, LLC of a portion 
of Preston Ridge Trail Park and further to adopt Ordinance No. 2009-12-15. 
 
Resolution No. 2009-12-16(R):  to approve the terms and conditions of a Communications 
Facilities License Agreement by and between the City of Plano, Texas, and Clear Wireless, LLC, a 
Nevada limited liability company, to locate, place, attach, install, and operate, telecommunications 
ground equipment in certain specific portions of City of Plano public park land, known as the 
Preston Ridge site, authorizing its execution by the City Manager and providing an effective date.  
(Regular Agenda Item “9”)     
 
 Upon a motion made by Council Member Callison and seconded by Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Dunlap, the Council voted 6-0 to approve an agreement between the City of Plano and Clear 
Wireless LLC for ground equipment at Preston Ridge Trail Park and further to adopt Resolution 
No. 2009-12-16(R).   
 
Resolution No. 2009-12-17(R):  Relating to the giving of notice of intention to issue City of Plano, 
Texas, Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2010; and providing an 
effective date.  (Regular Agenda Item “10”)     
 
 Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro tem LaRosiliere and seconded by Council Member 
Smith the Council voted 6-0 to give notice of intention to issue City of Plano Combination Tax and 
Revenue Certificates of Obligation and further to adopt Resolution No. 2009-12-17(R).   
 
 There being no further discussion, Mayor Dyer adjourned the meeting at 7:19 p.m. 
 
  

_______________________________ 
Phil Dyer, MAYOR 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Diane Zucco, City Secretary 
 
 



PLANO CITY COUNCIL 
PRELIMINARY OPEN MEETING 

December 22, 2009 
 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Phil Dyer, Mayor 
Harry LaRosiliere, Mayor Pro Tem 
Lee Dunlap, Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Pat Miner  
Ben Harris 
Mabrie Jackson (resigned) 
Lissa Smith 
Jean Callison 
 
STAFF 
Thomas H. Muehlenbeck, City Manager 
Frank Turner, Deputy City Manager 
Bruce Glasscock, Deputy City Manager 
Rod Hogan, Deputy City Manager 
Mark Israelson, Assistant City Manager 
LaShon Ross, Assistant City Manager 
Diane C. Wetherbee, City Attorney 
Paige Mims, Assistant City Attorney III 
Diane Zucco, City Secretary 
 
 
 Mayor Dyer called the meeting to order at 5:16 p.m., Tuesday, December 22, 2009, in 
Training Room A of the Municipal Center, 1520 K Avenue.  All Council Members were present. 
Mayor Dyer then stated that the Council would retire into Executive Session in compliance with 
Chapter 551, Government Code, Vernon’s Texas Codes, Annotated, in order to consult with an 
attorney and receive Legal Advice/Litigation, Section 551.071 and to receive information regarding 
Economic Development, Section 551.087 for which a certified agenda will be kept in the office of 
the City Secretary for a period of two years as required. 
 

Mayor Dyer reconvened the meeting back into the Preliminary Open Meeting at 5:52 p.m. in 
the Council Chambers where the following matters were discussed: 
 
Consideration and action resulting from Executive Session discussion 
  
 No items were brought forward.   
 
Personnel Appointments  

 

 
Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 1 

 Upon a motion made by Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Dunlap and seconded by Council Member 
Harris, the Council voted 7-0 to appoint Mayor Pro Tem LaRosiliere as Chair.   
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Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 2   

 Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem LaRosiliere and seconded by Deputy Mayor Pro 
Tem Dunlap, the Council voted 7-0 to appoint Council Member Miner as Chair.   
 
Arts of Collin County Quarterly Report  
 
 Executive Director Mike Simpson presented a virtual-tour video of the Arts of Collin 
County and spoke to recent activity including $2.9 million in new donations, an expanded donation 
program, online donation capability, and brick paver/seat programs.  He spoke to over 110 
presentations made, the promotion planned for January 2010 through April 2010, and the new 
website.  Mr. Simpson reviewed recent donations, spoke to the “Businesses for the Arts Project” 
and the level of private funds to date.  He provided project status, advising that the master plan and 
site standards, theater design, construction documents, and surrounding roads are complete.  Mr. 
Simpson spoke to funding over 80% complete and bidding the job in a timely manner to keep costs 
down.  He spoke to the bid opening on December 9, with 265 bidders on more than 30 projects, low 
pricing, presentations made to cities January-March and a final award by April 2010 with an 
opening early-summer of 2012.   
 
Comprehensive Monthly Financial Report  
 

Director of Finance Tacke spoke to the General, Water/Sewer and Golf Course funds being 
down year-to-date as a percentage of the budget.  She advised that actual General Fund revenue is 
down approximately $1 million overall primarily due to the decrease in sales tax and lower 
franchise fees.  Ms. Tacke spoke to expenditures in the General Fund experiencing increases in 
contractual and professional services and expenses related to the Lights at Legacy.  She advised that 
overall personnel expenses are down due to open positions and are offset by payment of post-
retirement benefits.  Ms. Tacke spoke to low sales tax receipts in area cities and lowered revenues 
for the Water/Sewer fund related to increased rains.   

 
City Manager Muehlenbeck spoke to monies deposited into a reserve ($6 million per year) 

to fund and pre-fund health care benefits for retirees and possible consideration of future levels of 
participation.  Ms. Tacke spoke to the unknown future of the health care industry, Plano being 
proactive as related to other communities, and monies impacting the General Fund.  Mayor Dyer 
requested a presentation to the Council regarding reserve funds.  Ms. Tacke responded to Mayor Pro 
Tem LaRosiliere regarding building the fund based on future estimates.   

 
Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Dunlap spoke to the Public Utility Commission’s decision 

regarding franchise fees and the impact on cities.  Ms. Tacke advised that the monies collected to 
date are $300,000 lower than last year and that collections are based on electrical billings.  City 
Manager Muehlenbeck spoke to the funding of state agencies through fees collected by 
municipalities such as those for water sampling.  Ms. Tacke responded to Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Dunlap regarding the General Fund being made up of ad valorum and sales taxes with other funds 
(water/sewer and municipal drainage) enterprise funds operating as businesses and able to make a 
profit.   
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Paperless Agenda Process  
 
 City Secretary Zucco reviewed the development of a paperless agenda, benefits for Council, 
citizens and Staff in delivery, access and downloading.  She advised regarding the savings in 
resources and more effective routing and creation of packets.  Ms. Zucco spoke to introduction to 
Staff with parallel packets on January 11, 2010 and full conversion on January 25, 2010.  Director 
of Technology Services Stephens provided the Council an overview to the packet highlighting 
access and the availability of all items related to a Council meeting.  He responded to Council 
Member Harris, advising that the packet will be searchable and Ms. Zucco spoke to cost savings.   
 
Council items for discussion/action on future agendas  
 

No items were discussed. 
 
Consent and Regular Agenda  
 

No items were discussed. 
 
Nothing further was discussed.  Mayor Dyer adjourned the Preliminary Meeting at 6:34 p.m. 

 
 
      ___________________________________ 

     Phil Dyer, Mayor   
ATTEST 
 
 
___________________________ 
Diane Zucco, City Secretary 
 
 



PLANO CITY COUNCIL 
December 22, 2009 

 
 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Phil Dyer, Mayor 
Harry LaRosiliere, Mayor Pro Tem 
Lee Dunlap, Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Pat Miner  
Ben Harris 
Mabrie Jackson (resigned) 
Lissa Smith 
Jean Callison 
 
STAFF 
Thomas H. Muehlenbeck, City Manager 
Frank Turner, Deputy City Manager 
Bruce Glasscock, Deputy City Manager 
Rod Hogan, Deputy City Manager 
Mark Israelson, Assistant City Manager 
LaShon Ross, Assistant City Manager 
Diane C. Wetherbee, City Attorney 
Paige Mims, Assistant City Attorney III 
Diane Zucco, City Secretary 
 
 
 Mayor Dyer convened the Council into the Regular Session on Tuesday, December 22, 
2009, at 7:01 p.m. in the Council Chamber of the Plano Municipal Center, 1520 K Avenue.  All 
Council Members were present. 
 
 Mayor Dyer requested the audience rise for a moment of silence and the Pledge of 
Allegiance was led by Cub Scout Pack 280 of Christ United Methodist Church. 
 
 Mayor Dyer presented a plaque of appreciation to outgoing Council Member Mabrie 
Jackson. 
 

 
COMMENTS OF PUBLIC INTEREST 

 No one appeared to speak. 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 Upon a motion made by Council Member Harris and seconded by Council Member 
Callison, the Council voted 7-0 to approve and adopt all items on the Consent Agenda as 
recommended and as follows: 
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Approval of Expenditures 

Award/Rejection of Bid/Proposal:  (Purchase of products/services through formal 
procurement process by this agency) 
 
Bid No. 2010-7-P for 2009-2010 Sanitary Sewer Rehab Requirements Contract to Insituform 
Technologies, Inc. in the amount of $1,925,970.  This project involves the repair and lining of 
sanitary sewer mains using trenchless technology and the replacement of sanitary sewer laterals to 
eliminate infiltration and inflow into the City’s sewer system, at various locations in the City.  This 
will establish a fixed price requirements contract with two optional renewals.  (Consent Agenda 
Item “A”)      
 
Bid No. 2010-14-B for 14th Street – Avenue K to Ridgewood Drive to McMahon Contracting, L.P. 
in the amount of $5,479,272.  This project consists of the reconstruction of the sewer main and 
attached services from Avenue O to Avenue K, the construction of a 12” water main and attached 
services, from Avenue K to Ridgewood Drive, and the removal and replacement of the concrete 
paving from Avenue K to Ridgewood Drive, including the intersection at Jupiter Road, 
approximately 8,700 linear feet (1.6 miles) total.  (Consent Agenda Item “B”)      
 
Purchase from an Existing Contract 
 
To authorize maintenance for Sun Storage Area Network and Sun Tape Library, in the amount of 
$56,887 from Sigma Solutions, Inc., through a State of Texas Department of Information Resources 
(DIR) contract, and authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents.  This is for a 
one-year maintenance agreement.  (Contract No. DIR-SDD-503)  (Consent Agenda Item “C”)      
 
To authorize the purchase of maintenance support for our IBM i550 server in the amount of $60,788 
from Sirius, through a TXMAS Contract, and authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary 
documents.  (TXMAS Contract No. 4-70080)  (Consent Agenda Item “D”)      
 
To approve to extend the existing Service Agreement between Motorola and the City of Plano for 
an additional two-month period, for the amount of $149,814 through an existing contract with the 
Houston-Galveston Area Council, and authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary 
documents.  (HGAC Contract No. RA-01-08)  (Consent Agenda Item “E”)      
 
To authorize an expenditure in the amount of $663,248 with Dell for a Microsoft Enterprise 
Agreement renewal and true-up for our server and desktop licenses through a Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) contract, and authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary 
documents.  This is the first year of a three year contract.  (Contract No. DIR-SDD-1014)  (Consent 
Agenda Item “F”)      
 
Approval of Contract:  (Purchase of products/services exempt from State of Texas 
Competitive Bid Laws) 
 
To approve an Engineering Contract by and between the City of Plano and Lam Consulting 
Engineering, in the amount of $60,000 for Drainage Improvements – Briarwood, Liverpool & 
Stoney Point, and authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents.  (Consent 
Agenda Item “G”)      
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Modification of Contract 
 
To approve a first modification to contract with DataProse, Inc. increasing the annual contract 
amount by $71,300 from $388,700 to $460,000 to allow other printing options, adding an itemized 
fee schedule for the new printing options, approving the assignment of contract to CSG Systems, 
Inc., and authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary documents.  (Consent Agenda Item 
“H”)      
 
Approval of Change Order 
 
To McMahon Contracting, L.P., increasing the contract by $246,095 for Preston at Legacy 
Intersection Improvements, Change Order No. 1. (Original Bid No. 2009-34-B)  (Consent Agenda 
Item “I”)      
 

 
END OF CONSENT 

Resolution No. 2009-12-18(R):  To approve the terms and conditions of an Agreement by and 
between Motorola, Inc. and the City of Plano, Texas, the City of Allen, Texas, the City of Wylie, 
Texas and the City of Murphy, Texas who are parties to an Interlocal Agreement for the purchase of 
a Radio System, of which Plano’s share will be $12,271,398; authorizing its execution by the City 
Manager; and providing an effective date. (Regular Agenda Item “1”)    
 
 City Manager Muehlenbeck advised that the current radio system is no longer supported and 
the project was put out to bid and includes a partnership with the cities of Allen, Wylie and Murphy.  
Communications Manager Carr spoke to the items on the agenda, the first being a replacement of 
the existing radio system, the second a resolution to approve the terms of an agreement with other 
cities for joint purchase and operation and the third a resolution to upgrade and replace the existing 
microwave system to connect to the radio system.  Radio System Manager Goldsmith spoke to the 
need to move to another system, review of all vendors and notice provided that the current system 
was no longer serviceable and has been in place since 1991.   
 
 Upon a motion made by Council Member Miner and seconded by Council Member 
Callison, the Council voted 7-0 to approve an Agreement with Motorola, Inc. and the cities of 
Plano, Allen, Wylie and Murphy, Texas for the purchase of a Radio System and further to adopt 
Resolution No. 2009-12-18(R). 
 
Resolution No. 2009-12-19(R):  To approve the terms and conditions of an Interlocal Agreement 
by and between the City of  Plano, Texas and the City of  Allen, Texas, the City of  Wylie, Texas 
and the City of  Murphy, Texas for Joint Radio Communications System for Municipal Services; 
authorizing its execution by the City Manager; and providing an effective date.  (Regular Agenda 
Item “2”)    
 
 Citizen Mona Tuffer spoke to the importance of communication and cooperation between 
agencies in the event of a disaster.   
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Resolution No. 2009-12-19(R)  (cont’d) 
 
 Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem LaRosiliere and seconded by Council Member 
Callison, the Council voted 7-0 to approve an Interlocal Agreement between the cities of Plano, 
Allen, Wylie and Murphy, Texas for a Joint Radio Communications System for Municipal Services 
and further to adopt Resolution No. 2009-12-19(R). 

 
Resolution No. 2009-12-20(R):  To approve the terms and conditions of an Agreement by and 
between the City of Plano, Texas, the City of Allen, Texas, the City of Wylie, Texas and the City of 
Murphy, Texas and Alcatel-Lucent, Inc., a sole source provider, for upgrade and replacement of the 
existing Microwave Radio System which will connect the new Motorola P-25 Radio System 
Infrastructure to each of the above cities of which Plano’s share will be $893,732; authorizing its 
execution by the City Manager; and providing an effective date.  (Regular Agenda Item “3”)    
 

Upon a motion made by Council Member Miner and seconded by Council Member Smith, 
the Council voted 7-0 to approve an agreement between the cities of Plano, Allen, Wylie, and 
Murphy, Texas and Alcatel-Lucent, Inc. for upgrade and replacement of the existing Microwave 
Radio System and further to adopt Resolution No. 2009-12-20(R). 
 
 There being no further discussion, Mayor Dyer adjourned the meeting at 7:16 p.m. 
 
  

_______________________________ 
Phil Dyer, MAYOR 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Diane Zucco, City Secretary 
 
 



 













 

 

  REV 06/09 

CITY OF PLANO  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

CITY SECRETARY’S USE ONLY  Initials Date 
  Consent   Regular Statutory 

Purchasing   

Council Meeting Date: 1/11/10 Budget   

Department: Fleet Services Division Legal   

Department Head Reid Choate              Mike Ryan Assistant City Manager   

Dept Signature:  Deputy City Manager   

 City Manager   

Agenda Coordinator (include phone #): Linda M. Robinson   ext.  4180 

ACTION REQUESTED:   ORDINANCE   RESOLUTION   CHANGE ORDER   AGREEMENT 
   APPROVAL OF BID  AWARD OF CONTRACT   OTHER  PURCHASE OFF 

EXISTING CONTRACT 

CAPTION 

Approval of the purchase of three (3) Rear Loader Bodies and three (3) Automated Side Loader Bodies in the 
amount of $517,175.00 from Heil of Texas, through an existing contract/agreement with Texas Association 
School Buyboard Program, and authorizing the City Manager or his authorized designee to execute all 
necessary documents. (#280-07) 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

  NOT APPLICABLE   OPERATING EXPENSE   REVENUE   CIP 

 
FISCAL YEAR: 

 
2009-10 

Prior Year 
(CIP Only) 

Current 
Year 

Future 
Years 

 
TOTALS 

Budget 0 1,145,000 0 1,145,000

Encumbered/Expended Amount 0 0 0    0

This Item 0 -517,175 0 -517,175

BALANCE    0 627,825    0 627,825

FUND(S): EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 

COMMENTS: Funds are included in the FY 2009-10 adopted budget to purchase three (3) Heil Rear Loader 
Bodies and three (3) Automated Bodies through an existing Contract/Agreement with TASB/Buyboard.  
Remaining balance will be used for other equipment purchases. 

STRATEGIC PLAN GOAL:  Providing equipment purchases relates to the City's goal of a "Financially Strong 
City with Service Excellence". 

SUMMARY OF ITEM 

Fleet Services request the purchase of three (3) Rear Loader Bodies and three (3) Automated Side Loader 
Bodies through the Texas Association School Buyboard Program, awarded to Heil of Texas.  The bodies are 
scheduled replacements from the FY 08/09 budget and balance of funds will be used toward the purchase of 
the chassis for these units.  The Rear Loader Bodies are to replace units #02900/Dept 751-Special Waste and 
units #02904 & #02906/Dept 748-Environmental Waste Collections. The Side Loader Bodies are to replace 
units #03902, #03904 & #03906 all for Dept 748/Environmental Waste Collections. 

The City is authorized to purchase from a Local Cooperative Organization pursuant to Chapter 271, Subchapter 



 

  REV 06/09 

CITY OF PLANO  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

F of the Texas Local Govt. Code and by doing so satisfies any State law requiring local governments to seek 
competitive bids for items. (#280-07) 

Total purchase price of the chassis including factory inspection trip and buyboard fee is $517,175.00. 

 

 

List of Supporting Documents: Other Departments, Boards, Commissions or Agencies 

Agenda Memo       

      
 
 
 



           
MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: December 17, 2009 

To: Earl Whitaker, Buyer 

From: Reid Choate, Fleet Manager 

Subject:  Request to purchase three (3) Rear Loader Bodies and three (3) Automated Side 
Loader Bodies through the Texas Association School Buyboard, Contract 280-07 
awarded to Heil of Texas. 

 
    3-REAR BODIES   3-SIDE BODIES  
 Base Price:     $64,500 x 3 = $193,500.00 $85,200 x 3 = $255,600.00 
 Published Options: $  9,824 x 3 = $  29,472.00 $21,876 x 3 = $  65,628.00 
 Unpublished Options: $     675 x 3 = $    2,025.00 $  2,650 x 3 = $    7,950.00 
 Good Customer Discount:   $ -5,000 x 3 = $-15,000.00 $ -8,000 x 3 = $-24,000.00 
 PURCHASE PRICE: $209,997.00    $305,178.00 
  
 TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE = $1,600 + $400 + $209,997 + $305,178 = $517,175.00 
 (Including Factory Inspection Trip & Buyboard Fee) 
 
 BUDGETED AMOUNT:   $1,145,000.00 
 
  
NOTES:  These are scheduled replacements from the FY 08/09 budget as follows: 

Rear Bodies: #02900/Dept 751-Special Waste; #02904 & #02906/Dept 748-
Environmental Waste Collections. 

Side Bodies:  #03902, #03904 & #03906 all for Dept 748-Environmental Waste 
Collections. Balance of funds will be used toward the purchase of 
the chassis for this unit. 

 
 
Please reference CRO No. __ 378877__. 
 
Feel free to call me if you have any questions at extension 4182. 
 
Cc: Mike Ryan 
 David Garza 
 Nancy Nevil  
 Beck Morales 
 Diane Palmer 
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CITY OF PLANO  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

CITY SECRETARY’S USE ONLY  Initials Date 
  Consent   Regular Statutory 

Purchasing   

Council Meeting Date: 1/11/10 Budget   

Department: Fleet Services Division Legal   

Department Head Reid Choate             Mike Ryan Assistant City Manager   

Dept Signature:  Deputy City Manager   

 City Manager   

Agenda Coordinator (include phone #): Linda M. Robinson   ext.  4180 

ACTION REQUESTED:   ORDINANCE   RESOLUTION   CHANGE ORDER   AGREEMENT 
   APPROVAL OF BID  AWARD OF CONTRACT   OTHER  PURCHASE OFF 

EXISTING CONTRACT 

CAPTION 

Approval of the purchase of three (3) Rear Loader Chassis and three (3) Automated Side Loader Chassis in the 
amount of $869,527.00 from Bond Equipment Company, through an existing contract/agreement with Texas 
Association School Buyboard Program, and authorizing the City Manager or his authorized designee to execute 
all necessary documents. (#281-07) 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

  NOT APPLICABLE   OPERATING EXPENSE   REVENUE   CIP 

 
FISCAL YEAR: 

 
2009-10 

Prior Year 
(CIP Only) 

Current 
Year 

Future 
Years 

 
TOTALS 

Budget 0 1,145,000 0 1,145,000

Encumbered/Expended Amount 0 0 0    0

This Item 0 -869,527 0 -869,527

BALANCE 0 275,473    0 275,473

FUND(S): EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 

COMMENTS: Funds are included in the FY 2009-10 adopted budget to purchase three (3) Crane Carrier Rear 
Loader Chassis and three (3) Automated Chassis through an existing Contract/Agreement with 
TASB/Buyboard.  Remaining balance will be used for other equipment purchases. 

STRATEGIC PLAN GOAL:  Providing equipment purchases relates to the City's goal of a "Financially Strong 
City with Service Excellence". 

SUMMARY OF ITEM 

Fleet Services request the purchase of three (3) Rear Loader Chassis and three (3) Automated Side Loader 
Chassis through the Texas Association School Buyboard Program, awarded to Bond Equipment Company.  
The chassis' are scheduled replacements from the FY 08/09 budget and balance of funds will be used toward 
the purchase of the bodies for this units.  The Rear Loader Chassis are to replace units #02900/Dept 751-
Special Waste and units #02904 & #02906/Dept 748-Environmental Waste Collections. The Side Loader 
Chassis are to replace units #03902, #03904 & #03906 all for Dept 748/Environmental Waste Collections. 

The City is authorized to purchase from a Local Cooperative Organization pursuant to Chapter 271, Subchapter 
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CITY OF PLANO  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

F of the Texas Local Govt. Code and by doing so satisfies any State law requiring local governments to seek 
competitive bids for items. (#281-07) 

Total purchase price of the chassis including buyboard fee is $869,527.00. 

 

 

List of Supporting Documents: Other Departments, Boards, Commissions or Agencies 

Agenda Memo        

      
 
 
 



           
MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: December 17, 2009 

To: Earl Whitaker, Buyer 

From: Reid Choate, Fleet Manager 

Subject:  Request to purchase three (3) Rear Loader Chassis and three (3) Automated Side 
Loader Chassis through the Texas Association School Buyboard, Contract 281-07 
awarded to Bond Equipment Co. 

 
    3-REAR CHASSIS   3-SIDE CHASSIS  
 Base Price:     $102,461 x 3 = $307,383.00 $102,461 x 3 = $307,383.00 
 Published Options: $  25,834 x 3 = $  77,502.00 $  18,964 x 3 = $  56,892.00 
 Unpublished Options: $  20,139 x 3 = $  60,417.00 $  19,850 x 3 + $  59,550.00 
 PURCHASE PRICE:  $445,302.00  $423,825.00 
  
 TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE = $400.00 + $445,302.00 + $423,825.00 = $869,527.00 
 (including Buyboard Fee) 
 
 BUDGETED AMOUNT:   $1,145,000.00 
 
  
NOTES:  These are scheduled replacements from the FY 08/09 budget as follows: 

Rear Chassis: #02900/Dept 751-Special Waste; #02904 & #02906/Dept 748-
Environmental Waste Collections. 

Side Chassis:   #03902, #03904 & #03906 all for Dept 748-Environmental Waste 
Collections. Balance of funds will be used toward the purchase of 
the body for this unit. 

 
 
Please reference CRO No. __378874__. 
 
Feel free to call me if you have any questions at extension 4182. 
 
Cc: Mike Ryan 
 David Garza 
 Nancy Nevil  
 Beck Morales 
 Diane Palmer 
  
    



 

 

CITY OF PLANO  

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

CITY SECRETARY’S USE ONLY  Initials Date 

  Consent   Regular Statutory Purchasing   

Council Meeting Date: 01/11/10 Budget   
Department: Purchasing Legal   
Department Head Mike Ryan Assistant City Manager   
Dept Signature:  Deputy City Manager   
 City Manager   
Agenda Coordinator (include phone #): Glenna Hayes x 7539 

ACTION REQUESTED:   ORDINANCE   RESOLUTION   CHANGE ORDER   AGREEMENT 
   APPROVAL OF BID  AWARD OF CONTRACT   OTHER        

CAPTION 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS, APPROVING THE TERMS AND 

CONDITIONS OF A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ALTERNATIVE SERVICE 

CONCEPTS, LLC, AND THE CITY OF PLANO; AUTHORIZING ITS EXECUTION OF ALL NECESSARY 

DOCUMENTS BY THE CITY MANAGER, OR HIS DESIGNEE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
  NOT APPLICABLE   OPERATING EXPENSE   REVENUE   CIP 

 
FISCAL YEAR:  
2009-10; 2010-11 

 Prior Year 

(CIP Only) 

Current 

Year 
Future 

Years 
 

TOTALS 

Budget   0 342,382 83,465 425,847 

Encumbered/Expended Amount 0 -167,455 0 -167,455 

This Item 0 -250,395 -83,465 -333,860 

BALANCE    0 -75,468 0 -75,468 

FUND(S): PROPERTY/LIABILITY LOSS FUND 

COMMENTS: Funds are included in the FY 2009-10 Self Insurance Department Budget.  This item, in the estimated amount 
of $333,860, will provide for the continuation of professional services for third party claims administration for the purposes 
of evaluating the program and rebidding.  The estimated annual amount to be spent in FY 2009-10, is $250,395.  The 
estimated future annual amount is $83,465 which will be made within approved budget appropriations.  Funds are available 
in other Property/Liability Fund accounts to cover the overage in FY 2009-10. 

STRATEGIC PLAN GOAL:  Providing professional services for third party claims administration relates to a "Financially 
Strong City with Service Excellence."  

SUMMARY OF ITEM 
Staff recommends the acceptance of an agreement between Alternative Services Concepts, LLC and the City, 
continuing professional services for third party claims administration for the purposes of evaluating the program 
and rebidding.  The term of the agreement is for a period of 12 months from date of execution of any necessary 
contract documents, in an estimated expenditure of $356,507.22.  2010-43-C 

List of Supporting Documents: Other Departments, Boards, Commissions or Agencies 
Resolution; contract N/A 

 



RES-APPROVAL 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS, APPROVING 

THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BY AND 

BETWEEN ALTERNATIVE SERVICE CONCEPTS, LLC, AND THE CITY OF PLANO; 

AUTHORIZING ITS EXECUTION BY THE CITY MANAGER, OR HIS DESIGNEE; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented a proposed professional services agreement for 

third party claims administration services between Alternative Service Concepts, LLC., and the City of 

Plano, a substantial copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference 

(hereinafter called “Agreement”); and, 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City has elected to continue such services while reviewing the current program 

and developing a new competitive proposal; and 

 

 

WHEREAS, upon full review and consideration of the Agreement (2010-43-C), and all matters 

attendant and related thereto, the City Council is of the opinion that the terms and conditions thereof 

should be approved, and that the City Manager, or his designee, shall be authorized to execute it on behalf 

of the City of Plano. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

PLANO, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section I. The terms and conditions of the Agreement, having been reviewed by the City 

Council of the City of Plano and found to be acceptable and in the best interests of the City of Plano and 

its citizens, are hereby in all things approved. 

 

Section II. The City Manager, or his designee, is hereby authorized to execute the 

Agreement and all other documents in connection therewith on behalf of the City of Plano, substantially 

according to the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement. 

 

Section III. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 

 



Resolution No. ______________________ Page 2 

RES-APPROVAL 

 

 

 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED this, the _____ day of __________________, 2010. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Phil Dyer, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Diane Zucco, CITY SECRETARY 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________________ 

Diane C. Wetherbee, CITY ATTORNEY 
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CITY OF PLANO  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

CITY SECRETARY’S USE ONLY  
  Consent  Regular  Statutory

 

Council Meeting Date: 1/11/2010 

Department: Accounting 

Department Head Denise Tacke 

 

Agenda Coordinator (include phone #): Allison Friloux x5225 

CAPTION 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Plano, Texas, accepting the findings and opinions of the Annual 
Audit; authorizing the City Manager, or in his absence the Director of Finance, to publish the results thereof; 
and providing an effective date. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

 NOT APPLICABLE  OPERATING EXPENSE  REVENUE   CIP 

 
FISCAL YEAR: 

 
      

Prior Year 
(CIP Only) 

Current 
Year 

Future 
Years 

 
TOTALS 

Budget 0 0 0 0

Encumbered/Expended Amount 0 0 0 0

This Item 0 0 0 0

BALANCE    0    0    0    0

FUND(S):       

COMMENTS: This item has no fiscal impact. 

SUMMARY OF ITEM 

It is recommended that the City Council formally accept the Comprehenisve Annual Financial Report and that 
authorization be given for publication of a summary of the 2008-09 financial audit in the City's official 
newspaper as required by Section 3.14 of the City Charter. 

 

 

List of Supporting Documents: Other Departments, Boards, Commissions or Agencies 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report       

      
 
 
 



 
 
 
A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Plano, Texas, accepting the findings and 
opinions of the Annual Audit; authorizing the City Manager, or in his absence the Director 
of Finance, to publish the results thereof; and providing an effective date. 
 
 

WHEREAS, Section 3.14 of the City Charter requires that "At the close of each fiscal 

year a complete audit shall be made by a duly licensed Public Accountant . . ."; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented the Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report (CAFR) for Fiscal Year 2008-09, a copy of which has been filed with the City Secretary, 

available for public inspection, and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter called 

"CAFR"); and 

WHEREAS, upon full review and consideration of the CAFR, and the included opinion 

of the City's duly appointed auditors, Grant Thornton LLP, the City Council is of the opinion that 

the requirements of the Charter have been satisfied. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS, THAT: 

Section I. The findings and opinions of the CAFR have been reviewed by the City 

Council of the City of Plano, and are hereby in all things accepted. 

Section II. The City Manager, or in his absence, the Director of Finance, is hereby 

instructed to publish the results of the CAFR and all other documents in connection therewith on 

behalf of the City of Plano, as provided in Section 3.14 of the City Charter. 

 
 

 

        



 

 
Section III. This Resolution shall become effective from and after its passage. 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED this the 11th day of January, 2010. 

 
 
 

 
Phil Dyer, MAYOR 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Diane Zucco, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Diane C. Wetherbee, CITY ATTORNEY 
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December 31, 2009 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council  
and Citizens of the City of Plano, Texas: 
 
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Plano, Texas (the 
City), for the year ended September 30, 2009, is submitted in accordance with Section 
3.14 in the City Charter. 
 
Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the 
information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal 
controls established for this purpose.  Because the cost of internal control should not 
exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. 
 
Grant Thornton LLP has issued an unqualified (“clean”) opinion on the City of Plano’s 
financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2009.  The independent auditors’ 
report is located in the beginning of the financial section of the CAFR. 
 
This letter of transmittal is designed to compliment Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A) and should be read in conjunction with it.  The City’s MD&A can be 
found immediately following the independent auditors’ report and provides a narrative 
introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial statements. 
 
 
City of Plano Profile 
 
The City of Plano is the largest city in Collin County, located in the southwest corner of 
the county, approximately 20 miles north of downtown Dallas.  There are currently 72.2 
square miles of land in the City's corporate boundary. 
 
The City was incorporated on June 2, 1873, under the provisions of H.B. 901 of the 
Texas Legislature.  It was subsequently chartered on June 10, 1961, and operates under 
a Council-Manager form of government.  The City Council is comprised of a Mayor and 
seven members and is responsible for enacting ordinances, resolutions, and regulations 
governing the City, as well as appointing the members of various statutory and advisory 
boards, the City Manager, City Attorney, and a Municipal Judge.  The City Manager is the 
chief administrative officer of the government and is responsible for the enforcement of 
laws and ordinances, the appointment and supervision of the executive directors, and 
heads of departments, and the performance of functions within the municipal 
organization. 
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The financial reporting entity (the government) includes all the funds of the primary government (i.e., the City of 
Plano as legally defined), as well as all of its component units.  Component units are legally separate entities for 
which the primary government is financially accountable.  The government provides a full range of services 
including police and fire protection; environmental health; sanitation services; community development; building 
inspection; traffic control; parks and libraries; the construction and operation of water, sewer, drainage, 
environmental waste services, streets and infrastructure; convention and tourism activities and cultural events. 
 
Discretely presented component units are legally separate entities and not part of the primary government's 
operations.  Accordingly, the Plano Economic Development Board and the two Tax Increment Financing units 
are reported discretely using proprietary fund accounting.  The Plano Housing Authority, a related organization, 
is not a part of this report, as the City's accountability does not extend beyond appointing the Board. 
 
 
Local Economy 
 
Plano is a community that offers exceptional housing, award-winning schools and a dynamic business climate, 
all of which are strong factors in the success of the City’s economy. The City also continues to benefit from 
other favorable conditions associated with Plano, including a stable, diverse economic base and a desirable 
location for work, destination and living. 
 
Plano, a 1994 All-American City, was named the 9th fastest growing city in the United States of cities with 
populations of 100,000 or larger from 2000 to 2008 based on the 2008 American Community Survey and 2000 
Census. Since 1990, Plano’s population has grown an estimated 105.3% to 264,250 in 2009. Estimates for 
residential population are projected at 264,900 in 2010 and 278,500 in 2020.  
 
In August 2008, Salary.com named Plano as the number one place to build personal wealth, based on job 
availability, industry diversity, population education level, salary level, cost of living, work commute time, poverty 
level and proximity to educational institutes on their Salary Value Index. 
 
The Census Bureau released a report in fall 2008 presenting Plano as the most affluent city in the nation with a 
2007 median income of $84,492. The city had the highest income and lowest poverty level for cities with 
populations of more than 250,000. 
 
“Forbes” magazine packaged Plano with the Dallas Metropolitan area, giving it a 5th place rating as one of big 
“Best Cities for Jobs” and 32nd of the 336 cities compared in April 2009. 
 
Plano has held an “AAA” Bond Rating since fiscal year 2000 by three of the nation’s top bond rating companies, 
attesting to its strong tax base and financial management. Attracting and retaining some of the nation’s top 
Corporate 500 companies and the best small businesses in the region has become the “norm.” 
 
Given Plano’s continued pro-business attitude and enthusiastic accommodation of industry, the City continues 
to prosper economically.  The following categories represent key factors that impact Plano’s economic and 
financial success: 
 
 
Sales Tax Revenues 
 
The General Fund’s second largest revenue source is sales tax generated from a variety of businesses 
operating in the City of Plano.   Sales tax receipts resulted in revenue of $56.1 million in fiscal year 2008-09, a 
9.75% decrease from the prior year.  The sales tax collections are produced primarily from Plano’s sizeable 
retail base, including two major shopping malls, hundreds of specialty shops and boutiques and major retailers 
throughout the City.   
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Employment 
 
A strong business atmosphere, coupled with a highly-educated and motivated workforce, continues to draw 
diverse companies to relocate to Plano. As a world headquarters for HP Enterprise Services, JCPenney, Perot 
Systems, Dr Pepper Snapple Group, CROSSMARK, Rent-A-Center, and PepsiCo’s Frito-Lay North America 
division, Plano has built a reputation for being a great place to grow business. An array of national and 
international corporations also have significant operations in Plano including Alcatel-Lucent, Capital One, Bank 
of America Home Loans, Ericsson, Flextronics, McAfee, CIGNA, Intuit, St. Jude Medical Neuromodulation 
Division, PepsiCo and Texas Instruments. This type of environment creates a broad range of employment 
opportunities for Plano residents and creates a significant business component to the local tax base. 
 
Job Growth 
 
The following businesses relocating and expanding into Plano have increased the number and scope of job 
opportunities and brought much needed services to the community.  Alliance Data Systems Corporation leased 
84,262 square feet to relocate its corporate headquarters.  It provides private-label credit card programs, 
consumer database marketing and analytics and customer loyalty consulting and services.  Alliance employs 
7,000 associates in 50 locations worldwide and plans to bring 215 to 265 employees to Plano.  Huawei 
Technologies (USA), a China-based global provider of next-generation, fixed mobile convergence and end-to-
end wireless technology, leased 103,148 square feet for its U.S. and Sales and Marketing headquarters.  It 
plans to employ 375 full-time associates.  Georgia-based MedAssets leased 100,000 square feet to consolidate 
its regional operations.  MedAssets partners with over 125 health systems, 3,300 hospitals and 30,000 non-
acute healthcare providers to develop cash-flow management products and services that enhance financial 
strength and improve operating margins.  MedAssets relocated 245 employees and plans to relocate an 
additional 205. PepsiCo, Inc. leased 93,787 square feet to relocate over 350 employees from its Frito-Lay 
headquarters.  PepsiCo will then relocate 100 full-time employees from Chicago to the Frito-Lay headquarters.  
The combined expansions also include adding up to 150 new positions.  PepsiCo offers over 18 different 
consumer product lines focused on convenient foods and beverages that generate more than $1 billion in 
annual retail sales.  The company employs over 3,000 people in Plano and 198,000 worldwide.  Publicis plans 
to relocate its regional office into 58,940 square feet in Plano.  With worldwide revenues of $4.8 billion, it is 
among the fastest-growing communications companies in the world.  Publicis plans to relocate about 110 
people to the new office.  St. Jude Medical Neuromodulation Division expanded into 44,800 square feet to 
house administrative offices for about 200 people.  Its corporate headquarters occupy more than 175,000 
square feet in Plano.  The company has purchased an additional 15 acres adjacent to its headquarters to build 
a second 200,000 square feet building to house labs and offices in the next two to five years.  Recent 
successes of St. Jude Medical’s devices have led to this expansion.  Most of the new jobs created in 2009 
consisted of engineers, scientists, clinical and other administrative staff.  St. Jude Medical’s Neuromodulation 
Division had sales of $254 million in 2008.  Telmar Network Technology relocated its corporate headquarters 
from Irvine, California, into a 144,000 square foot facility in Plano based on the desire to be near the dozens of 
communications companies, manufacturers and service providers in North Texas.  Telmar is a provider of 
communications products and services to original equipment manufacturers (OEMs), enterprise and network 
service providers worldwide and plans to employ 170 people.  The Planet, a Houston-based web hosting and 
collocation company, opened a large data center in east Plano.  It renovated an existing warehouse and 
converted 106,000 square feet into a modern tier II data center, a boost to Plano’s tax rolls.  It expects to invest 
up to $50 million in real and business property improvements in the form of extensive additions to the building’s 
infrastructure and IT equipment.  The Planet hosts nearly 18 million websites and about 2% of the global 
Internet traffic runs through its network. 
 
The three largest job sectors are retail and wholesale trade, services and manufacturing.  The unemployment 
rate for 2000 was recorded at 2.2%, which was the lowest rate in the last ten years.  In 2009, the unemployment 
rate reached 7.6%, the highest rate in ten years, as provided by the Texas Workforce Commission. 
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Long-Term Financial Planning 
 
The City’s responsiveness to emerging economic challenges and its long-term planning have been key factors 
in its fiscal health.  Although economic forecasts for Plano and the region remain favorable, residential build-out 
and the controlled economic recovery continue to affect the City.  The City has established a program to 
address the challenges and opportunities that Plano will face as it transitions from a growing to a maturing 
community. 
 
The City-wide 2009-10 combined budget reflects a decrease of $4.0 million, or 1.0%, under prior year’s final 
budget.  The 2009-10 budget for total General Fund revenues is approximately $1.5 million higher than the 2009 
final budget.  The 2009-10 budget for total General Fund expenditures is approximately $8.1 million lower than 
the 2009 final budget.  Funding for Capital Reserve will be accomplished by transferring $1.2 million from the 
Water and Sewer Fund along with $10.5 million from the General Fund.  These increases along with no decline 
in service levels are funded with ad valorem property tax revenues.  ($.3284 General Fund and $.1602 Debt 
Service.) 
 
Of the $53.66 million budgeted for capital expenditures in 2010, $3.98 million pertains to municipal facilities, 
$14.6 million for parks and recreation and $35.09 million for street improvements and enhancements.  The 
estimated expenditures for municipal facilities include remodeling and additions to the Fire facilities and 
equipment along with other various municipal facilities and parking improvements.  Projects pertaining to parks 
and recreation include expansion of the Carpenter Park Recreation Center including facilities for a Senior 
Center, 2009 land acquisitions, various trail connections, 2009 Aquatic Center renovation and various park 
improvements.  The City plans on spending $35.1 million on street enhancements and improvements that 
include construction and expansion of roadways. 
 
Relevant Financial Policies 
 
Financial Policies.  During fiscal year 1990-91, the City Council Finance Subcommittee developed written 
policies detailing financial goals and guidelines for the City.  These included policies for accounting, budgeting, 
capital improvements, asset management, revenue management, risk management, and fund balance/reserve 
levels.  The City Council adopted these policies in July 1991.  During fiscal year 2000, the financial policies were 
reviewed and updated with the revised financial policies being adopted by City Council in November 2000. 
 
Accounting Procedures and Budgetary Controls.  The City's accounting records for general governmental 
activities are maintained on a modified accrual basis, with revenues being recorded when available and 
measurable, and expenditures being recorded when the services or goods are received and the liabilities are 
incurred.  Accounting records for the City's water and sewer utility and other proprietary activities are maintained 
on the accrual basis. 
 
Budgetary control is maintained at the fund level, and encumbrances are entered at the time a purchase order is 
issued.  Open encumbrances are recorded as reservations of fund balance as of September 30 of each year, 
and the subsequent year's budget is increased to reflect these encumbrances.  Unspent and unencumbered 
appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
The budgetary process begins each year with the preparation of both current and proposed year revenue 
estimates by the City's financial management staff, and expenditure estimates by each City department.  
Budgets are reviewed by the Director of Budget & Research.  The City Manager makes final decisions and 
submits a recommended budget, or "Program of Service," to the City Council.  The proposed budget is reviewed 
extensively by the City Council, a process which includes a Charter-mandated public hearing, in addition to 
work sessions which are open to the public.  The City Charter requires adoption of the City budget by no later 
than September 15. 
 
While the budget is developed and controlled at the departmental level, appropriations are made at the fund 
level.  An ordinance establishes the budget for operating expenditures, debt service payments, and interfund 
transfers, while a separate ordinance establishes the property tax rate. 
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As part of each year's budget development process, departments are required to update expenditure estimates 
for the current fiscal year.  These estimates are reviewed by the Director of Budget & Research, the City 
Manager, and the City Council concurrent with review of the proposed budget.  (The "re-estimated" current year 
budget is used as a working budget for the last half of the current fiscal year.)  This re-estimated budget may 
require a supplemental appropriation and, if so, such supplemental appropriation is approved by ordinance 
adopted by the City Council prior to the end of the current fiscal year. 
 
During the course of the fiscal year, expenditure controls are maintained by each department head with overall 
review exercised by the Director of Budget & Research and the City Manager.  Monthly departmental 
expenditure reports are generated by an automated management accounting system and provide expenditure 
totals and encumbrances at the line-item level for the most recently completed month, as well as a year-to-date 
total, and an actual versus planned rate of expenditure.  Major expenditure requests are reviewed by the Budget 
& Research Department prior to the encumbrance of funds. 
 
Constant review of revenue and expenditure trends is maintained with specific responsibility assigned to the 
Director of Budget & Research.  Recommendations for corrective action are made to the City Manager (and to 
the City Council, if appropriate) as needed to ensure the integrity of the adopted budget. 
 
The City's Finance Department publishes a Comprehensive Monthly Finance Report (CMFR) directed at 
providing internal and external users with the general awareness of the City's financial positions and economic 
activity.  The CMFR includes a Financial Summary section reporting the performances of the major operating 
funds and a status report of the City’s capital projects; an Economic Analysis section summarizing key 
economic indicators and an in-depth review with graphic illustrations; and an Investment Report section 
describing investment activity, interest earnings and the City's portfolio.  The highlights of each month's CMFR 
are presented to the City Council. 
 
With the recognition of increased need for internal control, an internal audit program has been in place since 
1988.  An Internal Audit Committee provides oversight and an Internal Auditor conducts the program.  This 
program serves to enhance controls, which are currently in place to safeguard the City's assets and provide a 
reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions, which, due to the changing complexity of the 
organization, requires greater attention. 
 
Major Initiatives 
 
The City of Plano’s fiscal year 2008-09 budget reflected continuing strength in the City’s economy.  Community 
Investment Program projects included additional facility and building services for the Emergency Operations 
Center, Fire Station #12, Tom Muehlenbeck Recreation Center and the Warehouse Logistics Facility.  Budgeted 
personnel for the Community Investment Program projects include job upgrades to three existing full-time 
positions. 
 
The fiscal year 2009 budget included the elimination of forty-three vacant full-time positions and seven part-time 
positions in an effort to minimize the forecasted deficit position resulting in a total estimated salary and benefits 
savings of $3.2 million.  The 2009 budget also included the addition of one full-time position in the Sustainability 
& Environmental Services Fund.  The 2008-09 budget for total General Fund revenues was projected $7.3 
million above the 2008 final budget.  Funding for Capital Reserve was accomplished by transferring $1.2 million 
from the Water and Sewer Fund along with $10.5 million from the General Fund.  Employee salary and benefits 
were budgeted to increase approximately $7.9 million. There are no salary increases budgeted in fiscal year 
2010.  The City budgeted $5.2 million for economic development incentives in order to remain competitive with 
surrounding neighboring cities.  Fiscal year 2009 was the third year that two-cents of the property tax rate was  
dedicated for these incentives.  The fiscal year 2009 tax rate remained consistent to prior year at 47.35 cents 
($.3268 General Fund and $.1467 Debt Service). 
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The following chart depicts the sources and uses of the City’s financial breakout as of fiscal year end 2009: 
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS 

 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

 
 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Plano’s financial performance provides an overview and analysis of 
the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009.  Please read it in conjunction with the 
accompanying transmittal letter and the accompanying basic financial statements.  All amounts, unless 
otherwise indicated, are expressed in millions of dollars.   
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
 The City’s net assets of governmental activities increased by $19.7 million or 2.5 percent as a result of 

this year’s operations, primarily due to an increase in the City’s capital assets of approximately $25.0 
million.  Net assets of the City’s business type activities increased as a result of this year’s operations by 
$4.8 million or 1.2 percent.   

 
 The City of Plano’s total net assets increased by $24.7 million, or 2.1 percent, during the current fiscal 

year.  In addition to the increase in capital assets, ad valorem tax revenue increased over the prior year 
by $4.2 million.  This is attributable to a slight increase in taxable property values and new property 
coming on-line.  Investment income and sales tax revenue are lower than the prior year by $6.9 and 
$6.1 million, respectively.  Decreases are due to lower interest rates, a slowing economy, and increased 
competition from surrounding communities. 

 
 As of September 30, 2009, the City of Plano’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund 

balances of $189.4 million, a decrease of $6.8 million in comparison with the prior fiscal year.   
 
 At the end of the current fiscal year, the unreserved and undesignated fund balance for the general fund 

decreased $3.7 million to $31.7 million.  This amount is approximately 15.7 percent of total general fund 
expenditures.  

 
 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Management’s discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Plano’s basic 
financial statements.  The City of Plano’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements 
themselves.   
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the City of Plano’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.  
The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Plano’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve 
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Plano is improving or deteriorating.  The 
statement of net assets combines and consolidates governmental funds current financial resources (short-term 
spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations.  In order to assess the overall health or 
financial condition of the City, other non-financial factors should also be taken into consideration.  These include 
changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s infrastructure (i.e. roads, drainage 
improvements, storm and sewer lines, etc.).  
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City of Plano, Texas 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued) 
September 30, 2009 
 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most 
recent fiscal year.  All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when 
cash is received or paid.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash 
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but not used vacation leave).  Both the 
statement of net assets and the statement of activities are prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting as 
opposed to the modified accrual basis used in prior reporting models.   
 
In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into three kinds of activities: 
 
 Governmental activities – Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the police, fire, 

libraries, development, public services and operations, parks and recreation, public works, technology 
services and general administration.  Property taxes, sales taxes and franchise fees finance most of 
these activities. 

 
 Business-type activities – The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of 

certain services it provides.  The City’s water and sewer system, environmental waste system, municipal 
drainage system, civic center, municipal golf course, property management activity, recreation revolving 
activities and downtown center development activity are reported here.   

 
 Component units – The City includes three separate legal entities in its report – the economic 

development fund, TIF (tax incremental financing unit) mall and TIF east side.  Although legally 
separate, these “component units” are important because the City is financially accountable for them.   

 
Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds – not the City as a 
whole.  Some funds are required to be established by state law and by bond covenants.  However, the City 
Council establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show 
that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money.  The City’s two kinds of 
funds – governmental and proprietary – utilize different accounting approaches. 
 
 Governmental funds – The majority of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, 

which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are 
available for spending.  These funds are reported using an accounting method identified as the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be 
converted to cash.  The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s 
general government operations and the basic services it provides.  Governmental fund information 
helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near 
future to finance the City’s programs.  By comparing information presented for governmental funds with 
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, 
readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.  
The relationships or differences between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net 
Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is detailed in a reconciliation following 
the fund financial statements.   

 
The City of Plano maintains twenty individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately 
in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, debt service fund, capital reserve 
fund, municipal facilities fund, street improvements fund and park improvements fund, all of which are 
considered to be major funds.  Data from the other fourteen governmental funds are combined into a 
single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds 
is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
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City of Plano, Texas 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued) 
September 30, 2009 
 
 

 
 Proprietary funds – The City charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside 

customers or to other units within the City.  These services are generally reported in proprietary funds.  
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets 
and the Statement of Activities.  In fact, the City’s enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) 
are identical to the business-type activities reported in the government-wide statements but provide 
more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.  The internal service 
funds (the other component of proprietary funds) are utilized to report activities that provide supplies 
and services for the City’s other programs and activities, such as the City’s municipal warehouse, the 
City’s self insurance funds and equipment maintenance function.  Because these services benefit 
governmental and business type functions, they have been included in both the governmental and 
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
The City of Plano maintains eight individual enterprise funds.  The City uses enterprise funds to account 
for its water and sewer, environmental waste, civic center, municipal drainage, municipal golf course, 
property management, downtown center development, and recreation revolving activities.  The 
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water and sewer, 
environmental waste services and municipal drainage functions. All are considered major funds of the 
City.  Data from the remaining five enterprise funds are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor business-type funds is provided in the 
form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 

The City as Trustee 
 
Reporting the City’s Fiduciary Responsibilities 
 
The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employee’s pension plan and post-employment retiree health benefits 
as well as certain amounts held on behalf of developers, property owners and others.  All of the City’s fiduciary 
activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets.  
Activities of these funds are excluded from the City’s other financial statements because the City cannot use 
these assets to finance its operations.  The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these 
funds are used for their intended purpose.   
 
Other Information 
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain required 
supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and health 
benefits to the employees. 
 
THE CITY AS A WHOLE – Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
The City’s combined net assets were $1.2 billion as of September 30, 2009.  Analyzing the net assets and net 
expenses of governmental and business-type activities separately, the business type activities net assets are 
$413.1 million.   This analysis focuses on the net assets (table 1) and changes in general revenues (table 2) and 
changes in net assets (table 3) of the City’s governmental and business-type activities. 
 
By far the largest portion of the City’s net assets (91.4 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still 
outstanding.  The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are 
not available for future spending.  Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related 
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, 
since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  
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City of Plano, Texas 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued) 
September 30, 2009 
 
 
 

Table 1 
Net Assets 
(In Millions) 

 
 Governmental Business-type Total Primary 
 Activities Activities Government 
 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 
Current and other assets $    292  $     281 $       70  $         66 $     362  $       347
Capital assets 933 909 384 383 1,317 1,292
   Total assets 1,225 1,190 454 449 1,679 1,639
   
Long-term debt outstanding 384 378 31 31 415 409
Other liabilities 37 27 10 10 47 37
   Total liabilities 421 405 41 41 462 446
   
Net assets:   
   Invested in capital assets,   
     net of related debt 729 701 383 377 1,112 1,078
   Restricted 3 5 4 6 7 11
   Unrestricted 72 79 26 25 98 104
Total net assets $   804  $     785 $   413  $       408 $ 1,217  $    1,193
       
 
Governmental Activities 
 
The City’s general revenues decreased when compared to the prior year by $7.2 million or 3.3 percent.  The 
primary reason for this decrease was lower sales tax revenues of $6.1 million, the result of a downturn in the 
economy and increased competition from surrounding communities.  Additionally, a decrease of $6.1 million in 
investment income occurred in the current year due to lower interest rates as a result of the slowing economy. 
Property tax revenue increased $4.2 million over the prior year and is attributable to higher property valuations 
and addition of new property throughout the City.  The assessed value of the property in the City increased by 
$1.3 billion, or 5.2 percent, as compared to the prior year.  The overall decreases in the City’s general revenues 
are detailed below (Table 2). 
 

Table 2 
General Revenues 

(in Thousands) 
    

 2009 2008 Increase (decrease) 
Property taxes      $     127,265       $   123,055  $          4,210  
Sales taxes 56,065 62,122 (6,057)
Mixed drink taxes 997 1,004 (7)
Other taxes 119 360 (241)
Franchise fees 23,995 23,022 973
Investment Income 4,633 10,683 (6,050)
  Total general revenues $       213,074  $       220,246 $        (7,172)  
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City of Plano, Texas 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued) 
September 30, 2009 
 
 
 
Governmental and Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $24.5 million in 2009.  The key 
elements of this increase are as follows: 
 

Table 3 
Changes in Net Assets 

(in Thousands) 
 
  Governmental Business-type  
  Activities Activities Total 
  2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 
Revenues:  
Program revenues:  
 Charges for services $ 32,374  $ 31,046 $134,896 $126,579 $167,270 $ 157,625
 Operating grants and contributions 7,431 4,774 340 61 7,771 4,835
 Capital grants and contributions 10,939 9,654 5,128 7,354 16,067 17,008
General revenues:  
 Property taxes 127,265 123,055 - - 127,265 123,055
 Sales taxes 56,065 62,122 - - 56,065 62,122
 Other taxes 25,111 24,386 10,151 11,631 35,262 36,017
 Investment income 4,633 10,683 604 1,411 5,237 12,094
      Total revenues 263,818 265,720 151,119 147,036 414,937 412,756
   
Expenses:  
 General government 14,360 9,052 - - 14,360 9,052
 Administrative services 8,294 8,424 - - 8,294 8,424
 Police 65,225 68,433 - - 65,225 68,433
 Fire 44,280 44,201 - - 44,280 44,201
 Libraries 11,105 11,765 - - 11,105 11,765
 Development 19,929 20,447 - - 19,929 20,447
 Public services and operations 5,646 5,402 - - 5,646 5,402
 Parks and recreation 26,170 26,135 - - 26,170 26,135
 Public works 28,025 27,944 - - 28,025 27,944
 Technology services 14,009 13,686 - - 14,009 13,686
 Other 5,579 7,504 - - 5,579 7,504
 Interest on long-term debt 14,640 14,625 - - 14,640 14,625
 Water and sewer - - 96,353 83,264 96,353 83,264
 Environmental waste services - - 21,355 21,864 21,355 21,864
 Municipal drainage - - 3,843 3,530 3,843 3,530
 Civic center - - 7,331 7,312 7,331 7,312
 Municipal golf course - - 870 1,000 870 1,000
 Property management - - 32 39 32 39
 Recreation revolving - - 3,192 3,096 3,192 3,096
 Downtown center development - - 48 46 48 46
Total expenses 257,262 257,618 133,024 120,151 390,286 377,769
Increase in net assets  
   before transfers 

6,556 8,102 18,095 26,885 24,651 34,987

Transfers 13,307 13,217 (13,307) (13,217) - -
Increase in net assets 19,863 21,319 4,788 13,668 24,651 34,987
Net assets – October 1 784,594 763,275 408,275 394,607 1,192,869 1,157,882
Net assets – September 30 $804,457 $784,594 $413,063 $408,275 $1,217,520 $1,192,869
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City of Plano, Texas 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued) 
September 30, 2009 
 
 
The most significant governmental expense for the City was for police activity.  Of a total $65.2 million spent, 
personnel costs were $54.9 million, an increase over the prior year by $2.2 million.  The largest increase in 
governmental activities expense can be noted in general government expenses and pertains to General Fund 
contributions to the City’s 115 Trust of $4.3 million.  Operating grants and contributions increased $2.7 million. 
The increase is primarily due to the reimbursement of $2.1 million from the Tax Increment Financing-East Side 
fund for initial costs contributed by the City for the Courtyard Theater Project in fiscal year 2001.  Additionally, 
the City received reimbursement of $1.4 million related to an interlocal agreement with Collin County.  Charges 
for services in the police functions increased $2.4 million as a result of increased court fines, red light camera 
fees and alarm permit revenues of $1.1 million, $0.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively.   
 
Business-type Activities 
 
Revenues of the City’s business-type activities were $151.1 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2009.  Revenues increased approximately $4.1 million or 2.8 percent as compared to the prior fiscal year.   
Expenses for the City’s business-type activities increased $12.9 million or 10.7 percent.  The decrease in net 
revenues is the result of several factors, including the following: 
 
 The City’s water and sewer system recorded charges for services of $108.1 million, an increase of $8.0 

million or 8.0 percent from the prior year primarily due to increased consumption.  Expenses increased 
over the prior year by $13.1 million or 15.7 percent.  This was primarily due to increases in payments for 
water and wastewater services in the amount of $6.8 million.  In addition, expenses and encumbrances 
for fixed meter reading network increased $2.6 million.  Fiscal year 2008 expenses and encumbrances 
were primarily made for equipment set-up, testing and software implementation while actual installation 
began in fiscal year 2009.   

 
 The City’s environmental waste services activities operated with program expenses exceeding charges 

for services by $6.3 million.  Residential solid waste revenues are $1.0 million higher than the prior year 
primarily due to a $1.25 rate increase for use of 95-gallon carts.  Commercial franchise fee revenues 
decreased $0.5 million due to a downturn in the economy.  These revenues are based upon commercial 
tonnage disposed.  In addition, recycling revenues are down $1.2 million as a result of a decline in the 
recycling market.  Environmental waste services expenses decreased $0.5 million over the prior year.   

 
 The City’s municipal drainage activity operated with charges for services exceeding expenses by $1.2 

million, compared to $1.5 million in the prior year.  Personal services increased $0.1 million over the 
prior year due to increased salary and benefit related costs and funding of the City’s Sections 115 Trust.  
Costs for maintenance parts and supplies in the Municipal Drainage Operations department increased 
$0.1 million due to an increase in volume of concrete drainage structures repairs in the current year.  
The municipal drainage system recorded charges for services of $5.05 million, a 1.1 percent increase 
from the prior year. 

 
 The City’s civic center activity operated with expenses exceeding charges for services by $4.9 million as 

compared to $4.6 million in the prior fiscal year.  Charges for services are reported at $2.4 million which 
is a decrease of $0.3 million from the prior fiscal year.  Hotel/motel tax revenue decreased  $1.0 million 
as a result of an increase in hotel/motel tax exemptions and a decline in travel related to the downturn in 
the economy. 

  
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
 
At the end of the fiscal year 2009, the City had $1.3 billion invested in a broad range of capital assets, including 
police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, roads, bridges, and water and sewer lines.  (See Table 4.)  
his amount represents a net increase (including additions and deductions) of $25.0 million over the prior fiscal 
year. 

8



City of Plano, Texas 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued) 
September 30, 2009 
 
 
 
 

Table 4 
Capital Assets at Year-end 

(Net of Depreciation, in Thousands) 
 

 Governmental Business-type  
 Activities Activities Totals 
 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 
Land $    107,127  $    106,991 $      9,267  $      9,252 $  116,394  $  116,243
Buildings and        
  improvements 104,133 73,135 309,418 304,575 413,551 377,710
Equipment 45,579 46,186 4,185 5,402 49,764 51,588
Construction in 
progress 

  
 175,665 

 
180,710

 
42,481

 
47,987 

 
218,146

 
228,697

Public Art 1,697 1,649 - - 1,697 1,649
Infrastructure 498,946 499,863 - - 498,946 499,863
Drainage 
improvements - - 18,494 16,235 18,494 16,235
   
Totals $933,147  $  908,534 $383,845  $  383,451 $1,316,992 $1,291,985
   
       
       

This year’s major additions included (in millions): 
 
 Development of nature preserve at Oak Point Park             $   6.3 
 Implementation of Moto Mesh Wireless Phase III       5.8 
 Widening Alma Drive-Spicewood Drive to Tatum Drive      1.0 
 Widening Independence Parkway-McDermott Road to S.H. 121     1.2 
 Reconstruction & widening of Parker-K Avenue to Raton      1.2 
 Widening Parkwood Boulevard-Park Boulevard to Windhaven Parkway    1.6  
 Linking recreational trails throughout the City       1.9  
 Reconstruction of street and sidewalks of Springbrook-Janwood to Quill    1.5 

Widening Communications Parkway-Parker Road to Windhaven Parkway 
                            and Windhaven Parkway to Spring Creek Parkway     1.9  
 Replacement of various street and alley pavement       2.4 
 Replacement of concrete pavement       2.1  
 Arterial joint sealing program       1.8  

      
 Total            $  28.7  
  
The City’s fiscal year 2010 capital budget includes $53.7 million for capital projects, principally for three major 
categories:  municipal facilities, parks and recreation, and street improvements and enhancements.  Estimated 
expenditures for municipal facilities are $4.0 million including $3.0 million for plans to construct a new fire station 
and expand Fire Station No. 4.  Also included in the budget is $1.0 million for construction of a new Technology 
Services facility.  Estimated expenditures for parks and recreation facilities are $14.6 million including $5.8 
million for expansion and renovation of Carpenter Park Recreation Center, including senior facilities.  An 
additional $4.0 million is planned for 2009 land acquisitions.  The remaining funds for park improvements and 
recreation centers are for a variety of projects.  The City plans to spend $35.1 million on street improvements 
and enhancements including $5.2 million to reconstruct 14th Street from Avenue K to Ridgewood Drive, $2.3 
million to widen McDermott Road from Coit to Ohio, $1.6 million to widen Communications from Parker Road to 
Spring Creek, $1.8 million for intersection improvements at Preston and Legacy, $1.4 million to construct 
Chaparral from K Avenue to East City Limit, $2.3 million to expand Rasor from Ohio to SH 121, $1.7 million to 
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City of Plano, Texas 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued) 
September 30, 2009 
 
 
construct the Douglas walkway, $1.5 million to repave Meadows Addition Phase I streets and sidewalks, $1.0 
million to widen Plano Parkway from Midway to West City Limit, $1.1 million to repave Westwood from 15th 
Street to Janwood, $1.2 million for reconstruction of R Avenue to 17th Street, $1.0 million to widen Windhaven 
from City Limit to Spring Creek, $2.6 million to reconstruct Communications Parkway from Spring Creek 
Parkway to Tennyson, and $5.5 million for various street improvements. The remaining street improvements 
and enhancements are for a variety of projects.  An additional $16.8 million will be required to support the entire 
2009-10 general obligation capital improvement program. 
 
More detailed information about the City’s capital asset activity is presented in Note 4 to the financial 
statements. 
 
Debt 
 
At year-end, the City had $368.9 million in bonds and tax anticipation notes outstanding as compared to $367.0 
million at the end of the prior fiscal year, an increase of 0.5 percent – as shown in Table 5. 
 
 

Table 5 
Outstanding Debt, at Year-end 

(in Thousands) 
 
 Governmental Business-type  
 Activities Activities Totals 
 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 
       
General obligation bonds (backed 
by the City) $  312,578  $  310,024 $            - $            - $  312,578  $  310,024
Tax anticipation notes (backed by 
the City) 29,014 28,075 - - 29,014 28,075
Revenue bonds (backed by fee 
revenues) - - 27,338 28,900 27,338 28,900
  
Totals $  341,592  $  338,099 $   27,338  $  28,900 $  368,930  $  366,999
       

 
 
During the current fiscal year, the City issued $35.3 million in general obligation bonds, $6.4 million in tax 
anticipation notes and $4.8 million in municipal drainage revenue bonds. 
 
The City’s general obligation bonds and tax notes continue to carry a triple A rating, the highest rating possible.  
This rating has been assigned to the City’s tax-supported debt since February 2000, by Moody’s Investors 
Service, Inc., Standard & Poor’s and Fitch, Inc.  The City’s drainage revenue bonds carry an A1 and AA- ratings, 
as assigned by two of the national rating agencies.  The City is permitted by Article XI, Section 5, of the State of 
Texas Constitution to levy taxes up to $2.50 per $100 of assessed valuation for general governmental services 
including the payment of principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt.  The current ratio of tax-
supported debt to assessed value of all taxable property is 1.33 percent. 
 
The City maintains a self-insurance program for general liability, public officials' errors and omission, police 
professional liability, property loss and workers' compensation.  Claims for property loss over $100,000 per 
occurrence and for workers' compensation over $500,000 per occurrence are covered by private insurance 
companies. The City has claims and judgments of $7.7 million outstanding at year-end compared with $7.5 
million at the end of the prior fiscal year.  Other obligations include accrued vacation pay and sick leave.  More 
detailed information about the City’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements. 
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THE CITY’S FUNDS 
 
At the close of the City’s fiscal year on September 30, 2009, the governmental funds of the City reported a 
combined fund balance of $189.4 million and the enterprise funds of the City reported combined net assets of 
$404.7 million.  Included in this year’s total change in fund balance is a $2.0 million decrease in the City’s 
General Fund due to an increase in expenditures of $4.3 million.  In addition, other changes in fund balances 
should be noted: 
 
 The City’s Debt Service fund balance of $3.3 million decreased from the prior year fund balance by $2.2 

million.  Since fiscal year 2007-08, the allocation to the Debt Service portion of the ad valorem tax rate 
has decreased to $0.1467 from $0.1525, a $0.0058 decrease.  

 
 The City spent $13.6 million in capital outlay in the capital reserve fund as compared to $14.2 million in 

the prior fiscal year.  Investment income decreases of $0.9 million  are attributable to lower interest rates 
as a result of the slowing economy. 

  
 The City’s water and sewer fund net assets of $373.1 million increased by $5.5 million over the prior 

year. In the current fiscal year, revenues increased by $7.5 million due to increased consumption.   
 
 The City’s environmental waste services fund net assets were $1.7 million, unchanged from the prior 

fiscal year 
 
  The City’s municipal drainage fund net assets increased by $0.5 million to $19.1 million representing an 

increase of 2.9 percent over the prior fiscal year.   
  
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 

With adjustments made during FY 2008-09, the actual on a budgetary basis expenditures were $206.7 
million compared to the re-estimated budget amount of $217.2 million.  Actual expenditures were $11.8 
million lower than the original budget implemented for fiscal year 2008-09 and $14.5 million lower as 
compared to the re-estimate. Decreases were due to reductions by City departments in anticipation of 
budget shortfalls.  

 
For FY 2008-09, the actual on a budgetary basis revenues were $200.2 million as compared to the re-
estimated budget amount and original budget amount of $197.5 million and $200.9 million, respectively.  
Contributing to the variance was higher than anticipated franchise revenue increasing $0.6 million over 
the re-estimated budget.  Sales tax revenues were higher than the final budget by $0.7 million.  
However, property tax revenues came in lower than re-estimated by $0.6 million.  Intergovernmental 
revenues include $2.1 million from TIF East Side as reimbursement for initial costs contributed by the 
City for the Courtyard Theater Project in fiscal year 2001. 

 
The City of Plano has an actual on a budgetary basis General Fund balance of $38.4 million as of the 
fiscal year end, compared to the re-estimated budget fund balance and original budget fund balance of 
$25.2 million and $30.3 million respectively.  The variance in fund balance is due to expenditure 
reductions by City departments in anticipation of budget shortfalls. 
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City of Plano, Texas 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued) 
September 30, 2009 
 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 
 
 
Although the economy is a primary factor, City elected and appointed officials addressed many considerations 
when setting the fiscal year 2010 Budget, tax rates, and business-type activity fee structures. Financial forecasts 
in March 2007 projected a $16 million General Fund budget deficit beginning in fiscal year 2009.  In response, 
fees were increased for certain services and (43) full-time positions and (7) part-time positions were eliminated 
from the fiscal year 2009 Budget.  A Core Business Matrix process, implemented in October, 2008, prioritized 
core businesses, services and programs offered by the City and evaluated service level impacts and the amount 
of expenditures and revenues assigned to each core business. 
 
The financial forecast presented to the City Council in March 2009 projected a $13.7 million General Fund 
budget deficit for fiscal year 2010.  Budget reductions of $10.5 million were identified from the fiscal year 2010 
budget including the elimination of a number of positions.   
 
A tax rate increase of 1.51 cents (to 48.86 cents per $100 of assessed property value) was approved by the City 
Council in September 2009 to address the remaining $3.2 million budget shortfall in the General Fund.  
 
The increase includes a 1.35 cent increase for debt service to 16.02 cents and a 0.16 cent increase for 
operation and maintenance (O&M) to 32.84 cents.  The increase in O&M is directly due to the projected loss of 
property value from the City’s tax base.  The debt service rate increase also results from the reduced tax base, 
as well as the increased debt costs from the issuance of tax notes for public safety projects and new general 
obligation debt.  Of the 48.86 cent tax rate, two-cents is solely dedicated to the Economic Development 
Incentive Program (EDIP), implemented by the City Council in fiscal year 2006-2007.  The City continues to 
work to entice commercial entities to Plano and to provide economic development programs and redevelopment 
for all areas of the City.     
 
Public safety, health, value and quality of life are foremost in administrative decisions.  Visionary planning, 
community involvement, and dedication and resolve by staff combine to maintain and improve the quality of life 
and economic opportunities for citizens.  Plano’s current population is 264,250 and is anticipated to be 
approximately 278,500 in 2020.  
 
Retail and wholesale trade, services and manufacturing are the City’s three largest job sectors.  The business 
atmosphere ranges from start-ups to international corporate powerhouses.  Growth in the region continues to 
concentrate on health care and small business, rather than technology.  Redevelopment of mature commercial 
centers and infill projects continue.  
 
Businesses grow and prosper in Plano with tax incentives and abatements, low tax rates, high bond ratings and 
a superior quality of life.  City tax abatement agreements and reinvestment zones have helped create more than 
50,000 jobs. The City works diligently with corporations on relocation incentives in order to attract new and 
existing companies.  In addition, reasonable costs of living and affordable home prices continue to make Plano 
an attractive area for new business locations.  
 
The 2009-10 combined budget appropriation totals $402.3 million for ten operating funds.  This represents a 
decrease of $4.0 million or 1.0 percent under the 2008-09 re-estimated budget.  Ad valorem tax revenue is 
determined by two major factors:  the total assessed values established by both the central Appraisal District of 
Collin and Denton Counties and the tax rate established by the Plano City Council.   
 
A primary reason for the budget deficit is a decrease of property values from our City’s tax base for fiscal year 
2010.  According to the Collin County and the Denton County Central Appraisal Districts (CAD), total assessed 
property value for 2009-10 equals $25.5 billion and includes $380.4 million of new property coming on-line.  
Additionally, existing property values are expected to decrease by $658.5 million or 2.55%.    This represents 
the largest existing property value loss experienced in the City of Plano since 1993.  The total change in value 
for fiscal year 2010 equals a decrease of $278.0 million or 1.08%.  The average home value as reported by the 

12



City of Plano, Texas 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued) 
September 30, 2009 
 
 
Collin County CAD is $249,679, down from $251,733.  The City of Plano offers Homestead, Disability and Over 
65 exemptions, and an ad valorem tax freeze on the residential homestead of citizens over 65 and disabled.  
Total exemptions account for $5.1 billion in assessed property value, which equates to $24.5 million in lost 
property tax revenue.  Of this amount, $765.6 thousand is lost due to the over 65 tax freeze.   
 
The City will continue to focus on protecting and expanding its revenue base.  Like most Texas cities, Plano 
relies on local sales tax collections to provide revenues necessary to meet citizen’s expectations for service.  
Since January 2008, the City has experienced significant sales tax declines due to an economic downturn in the 
economy and growing competition from surrounding cities for sales tax dollars.  Sales tax revenues of $56.1 in 
fiscal year 2009 decreased from the prior year by $6.1 million including a $1.4 million negative sales tax 
adjustment.  Sales tax projections of $57.8 million in fiscal year 2010 do not include approximately $1.5 million 
in EDIP Section 380 grants.  Sales tax projections continue to be impacted by changes in the national economy, 
fuel prices, weather conditions, loss of market share to surrounding communities, the annual Texas legislative 
initiated “Back-To-School” sales tax holiday and impending legislation. 
 
General Fund expenditures in fiscal year 2009-10 are expected to decrease $8.1 million, or 3.6% from the 2008-
09 re-estimated budget.  Estimated salary and benefit savings of $3.6 million is anticipated from the reduction of 
(45) full-time and (10) part-time positions.  The budget also includes a 3.5% attrition allowance and does not 
include a merit increase.  Budget increases include $2.0 million in health insurance for nominal medical service 
increases and to provide additional funding for GASB 45 requirements for post-employment benefits.  Expected 
retiree payouts in 2009-10 are budgeted at $3.0 million.  Contribution rates for the Texas Municipal Retirement 
System (TMRS) will increase on January 1, 2010 from 14.06% to 15.72%.  The Retirement Security Plan (RSP) 
contribution rate will remain 3.13%.  Included in the 2009-10 General Fund Budget is $221,141 for capital 
improvement projects.  
 
If estimates are realized, the City’s budgetary General Fund balance is expected to decrease from the re-
estimated 2008-09 Budget by approximately $9.3 million.   
 
The Water and Sewer fund is of concern in the City’s business type activities. In fiscal year 2009, the City did 
not meet its 26.7 billion gallon water usage requirement as part of the take or pay contract with the North Texas 
Municipal Water District (NTMWD).  The resulting cost impact for undelivered water was $2.5 million. Lower 
revenues and increased charges from NTMWD caused the City to increase water and sewer rates, the sixth 
increase since October 2006. The following rate decisions were made regarding the City’s business type 
activities: 
 
 Revenue projections in 2009-10 increase water income by $5.3 million, or 9.6 percent over the 2008-09 

re-estimate.  The water income revenue increase covers a 10% rate increase effective October 1, 2009 
and reflects the water district’s take-or-pay contracted purchase amount of 26.7 billion gallons.  Using 3-
year winter quarter averages for water and an October 1, 2009 rate increase of 4.0%, the 2009-10 
Sewer revenues are projected to increase $4.1 million over the 2008-09 re-estimate.      
 

 Total Sustainability & Environmental Services revenues for 2009-10 are projected at $22.3 million.  Total 
2008-09 revenues were $1.2 below the original budget and $0.7 below the re-estimate.  Of this amount 
recycling was $0.7 below the original budget and $0.03 greater than the re-estimate.  No rate 
adjustment will be required in 2009-10.       

 
 A municipal drainage rate adjustment will not be required in 2009-10.  Drainage rates for an average 

homeowner will continue to be $3.30 per month, and non-residential rates will stay at .056 cents per 100 
square feet of impervious area.     

 
 Hotel/Motel tax receipts are projected to be $4.5 million in fiscal year 2009-10.  This represents a 9.5% 

decrease from the 2008-09 original budget and a 1.5% increase from the 2008-09 re-estimate.  
Reduction in revenue from original projections is related to the economic downturn.  Although hotel 
occupancy rates have remained fairly stable, average room rates have decreased considerably.  Civic 
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City of Plano, Texas 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued) 
September 30, 2009 
 
 

Center fees are projected to be approximately $2.6 million for 2009-10, a 3.4% decrease from the 2008-
09 original budget and a 1.5 % increase from the re-estimated budget.   
 

 Golf Fees are projected to be $0.9 million in 2009-10, a 0.1% increase from the 2008-09 re-estimate.  
 
 
CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you 
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City Controller’s Office, at 
City of Plano, 1520 Avenue K, Suite 370, Plano, TX  75074.   

14



CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 33,455,891$            1,471,059$           34,926,950$       2,648,235$    
Investments 217,821,375            9,244,326             227,065,701       17,281,402    
Receivables (net of allowance for 23,603,575              18,747,713           42,351,288         64,185           

doubtful accounts)
Internal balances (7,698,377)               7,698,377             -                      -                 
Due from other governments 743,029                   -                        743,029              -                 
Inventories 942,782                   -                        942,782              -                 
Prepaids and other assets 19,739,251              1,877,535             21,616,786         -                 
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 418,400                   4,072,050             4,490,450           -                 
Investments 2,726,414                26,534,615           29,261,029         -                 
Receivables 14,261                     694,741                709,002              -                 

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 284,488,874            51,747,713           336,236,587       110,629         
Depreciable (net) 648,658,620            332,097,101         980,755,721       3,897,311      

Total Assets 1,224,914,095         454,185,230         1,679,099,325    24,001,762    

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 4,412,927                4,806,943             9,219,870           16,282           
Accrued liabilities 9,892,175                984,562                10,876,737         21,145           
Accrued interest payable 1,196,909                373,358                1,570,267           -                 
Contracts payable 7,092,636                315,156                7,407,792           -                 
Customer deposits -                           2,444,290             2,444,290           -                 
Unearned revenue 11,438,342              697,363                12,135,705         -                 
Due to other governments 1,141,096                -                        1,141,096           403                
Retainage payable 1,583,471                330,685                1,914,156           -                 
Seized assets payable 146,232                   -                        146,232              -                 
Non-current liabilities

Due within one year:
Compensated absences 4,591,749                409,605                5,001,354           992                
Notes payable -                           -                        -                      6,397,476      
Bonds payable 23,026,560              3,600,000             26,626,560         -                 
Tax anticipation notes payable 4,919,818                -                        4,919,818           -                 
Liability for insurance claims 6,190,932                -                        6,190,932           -                 

Due in more than one year:
Compensated absences 29,680,598              3,421,603             33,102,201         144,761         
Bonds payable 289,551,105            23,738,423           313,289,528       -                 
Tax anticipation notes payable 24,094,160              -                        24,094,160         -                 
Liability for insurance claims 1,498,104                -                        1,498,104           -                 

Total Liabilities 420,456,814            41,121,988           461,578,802       6,581,059      

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets

(net of related debt) 728,662,561            383,531,217         1,112,193,778    4,007,940      
Restricted for:

Debt service 3,270,626                3,911,737             7,182,363           -                 
Unrestricted 72,524,094              25,620,288           98,144,382         13,412,763    
Total Net Assets 804,457,281$          413,063,242$       1,217,520,523$  17,420,703$  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Primary Government
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Function/Program Activities
Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:
General government 14,360,212$      994,964$           3,670,414$       1,236,441$     
Administrative services 8,294,111          -                          109                   -                       
Police 65,225,173        15,344,518        1,236,792         238,425          
Fire 44,279,959        4,161,383          331,602            -                       
Libraries 11,104,945        545,755             268,121            -                       
Development 19,929,365        3,175,176          1,492,995         -                       
Public services and operations 5,645,771          1,277,357          148,254            -                       
Parks and recreation 26,170,315        3,952,244          180,345            1,040,000       
Public works 28,025,006        40,592                102,105            8,424,232       
Technology services 14,008,840        2,882,354          -                        -                       
Other 5,480,962          -                          -                        -                       
Interest on Long-Term Debt 14,640,081        -                          -                        -                       
Unallocated Depreciation 96,934               -                          -                        -                       

Total governmental activities 257,261,674      32,374,343        7,430,737         10,939,098     
Business-type Activities:

Water and sewer 96,352,987        108,076,125      -                        5,128,295       
Environmental waste services 21,354,795        15,101,758        339,804            -                       
Municipal drainage 3,843,011          5,050,406          -                        -                       
Civic center 7,331,173          2,439,129          -                        -                       
Municipal golf course 870,436             792,753             -                        -                       
Property management 32,053               42,309                -                        -                       
Recreation revolving 3,191,594          3,325,754          -                        -                       
Downtown center development 47,917               68,127                -                        -                       

Total business-type activities 133,023,966      134,896,361      339,804            5,128,295       
Total primary government 390,285,640$    167,270,704$   7,770,541$      16,067,393$   

Component units:
Economic Development 4,552,750$        6,144,234$        -$                      -$                    
TIF Mall 5,181,377          -                          -                        -                       
TIF East Side 3,314,280          -                          -                        -                       

Total component units 13,048,407$      6,144,234$       -$                      -$                   

General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Mixed drink taxes
Hotel/Motel tax
Other taxes
Franchise fees
Investment income

Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
      Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Program Revenues

Net assets - ending
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Component Units

(8,458,393)$         (8,458,393)$         
(8,294,002)           (8,294,002)            

(48,405,438)         (48,405,438)         
(39,786,974)         (39,786,974)         
(10,291,069)         (10,291,069)         
(15,261,194)         (15,261,194)         

(4,220,160)           (4,220,160)            
(20,997,726)         (20,997,726)         
(19,458,077)         (19,458,077)         
(11,126,486)         (11,126,486)         

(5,480,962)           (5,480,962)            
(14,640,081)         (14,640,081)         

(96,934)                (96,934)                 
(206,517,496)       (206,517,496)       

16,851,433$             16,851,433           
(5,913,233)                (5,913,233)            
1,207,395                 1,207,395             

(4,892,044)                (4,892,044)            
(77,683)                     (77,683)                 
10,256                       10,256                  

134,160                    134,160                
20,210                       20,210                  

-                            7,340,494                 7,340,494             
(206,517,496)       7,340,494                 (199,177,002)      

1,591,484$                      
(5,181,377)                       
(3,314,280)                       
(6,904,173)                    

127,265,332        -                                 127,265,332         8,045,461                        
56,064,538          -                                 56,064,538           -                                       

997,051                -                                 997,051                -                                       
-                            3,951,890                 3,951,890             -                                       

118,580                -                                 118,580                -                                       
23,995,388          6,198,973                 30,194,361           -                                       

4,632,949            604,201                    5,237,150             199,383                           
13,307,004          (13,307,004)              -                            

226,380,842        (2,551,940)                223,828,902         8,244,844                        
19,863,346          4,788,554                 24,651,900           1,340,671                        

784,593,935        408,274,688             1,192,868,623     16,080,032                      
804,457,281$      413,063,242$           1,217,520,523$   17,420,703$                   

Primary Government
Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Debt Capital Municipal
General Service Reserve Facilities

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5,313,839$     435,139$        5,280,657$      5,052,143$         
Investments 34,443,606     2,835,487       34,409,932      32,921,170         
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)

Taxes 10,925,563     467,807          -                  -                     
Accounts 1,583,050       -                 -                  -                     
Notes 6,397,476       -                 -                  -                     
Accrued interest 180,199          14,831            180,023           172,189              
Assessments -                 -                 -                  -                     
Other -                 -                 -                  225                    

Due from other funds 1,253,351       -                 -                  -                     
Due from other governments 57,572            10,821            -                  -                     
Prepaid items and other assets 579,041          -                 -                  -                     

Total Assets 60,733,697     3,764,085       39,870,612      38,145,727         

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 2,648,498       46,152            -                  -                     
Accrued liabilities 8,691,386       -                 -                  -                     
Contracts payable -                 -                 832,858           3,050,655           
Deferred revenue 6,598,476       467,807          -                  -                     
Due to other funds 51,207            -                 -                  -                     
Due to other governments -                 -                 -                  -                     
Retainage payable -                 -                 129,840           537,043              
Seized assets payable -                 -                 -                  -                     
Total Liabilities 17,989,567     513,959          962,698           3,587,698           

Fund Balance:
Reserved for encumbrances in:

General fund 4,055,302       -                 -                  -                     
Capital reserve fund -                 -                 4,671,496        -                     
Municipal facilities -                 -                 -                  5,417,852           
Street improvements -                 -                 -                  -                     
Park improvements -                 -                 -                  -                     
Capital project funds -                 -                 -                  -                     

Reserved for:
Prepaid items and other assets 579,041          -                 -                  -                     
Notes receivable 6,397,476       -                 -                  -                     
Debt service -                 3,250,126       -                  -                     
Capital reserve -                 -                 34,236,418      -                     
Municipal facilities 29,140,177         
Street improvements -                 -                 -                  -                     
Park improvements -                 -                 -                  -                     
Capital projects -                 -                 -                  -                     

Unreserved, designated in:
Special revenue funds -                 -                 -                  -                     

Unreserved, undesignated in:
General fund 31,712,311     -                 -                  -                     
Special revenue funds -                 -                 -                  -                     
Capital project funds -                 -                 -                  -                     

Total Fund Balance 42,744,130     3,250,126       38,907,914      34,558,029         

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 60,733,697$   3,764,085$     39,870,612$    38,145,727$       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Other Total
Street Park Governmental Governmental

Improvements Improvements Funds Funds

3,029,892$         4,591,586$         3,803,314$        27,506,570$     
19,743,624         29,920,055         24,782,845        179,056,719     

-                     -                     -                        11,393,370       
-                     -                     355,985             1,939,035         
-                     -                     -                        6,397,476         

103,266              156,492              129,622             936,622            
1,540,186           -                     -                        1,540,186         

-                     -                     955,228             955,453            
-                     -                     1,265                 1,254,616         
-                     -                     674,202             742,595            
-                     -                     2,680                 581,721            

24,416,968         34,668,133         30,705,141        232,304,363     

-                     -                     280,982             2,975,632         
-                     -                     740,187             9,431,573         

2,798,485           407,638              3,000                 7,092,636         
11,726,936         -                     1,198,793          19,992,012       

-                     -                     508,380             559,587            
-                     -                     1,141,096          1,141,096         

624,700              289,653              2,235                 1,583,471         
-                     -                     146,232             146,232            

15,150,121         697,291              4,020,905          42,922,239       

-                     -                     -                        4,055,302         
-                     -                     -                        4,671,496         
-                     -                     -                        5,417,852         

8,179,183           -                     -                        8,179,183         
-                     2,542,880           -                        2,542,880         
-                     -                     1,001,091          1,001,091         

-                     -                     2,680                 581,721            
-                     -                     -                        6,397,476         
-                     -                     -                        3,250,126         
-                     -                     -                        34,236,418       
-                     -                     -                        29,140,177       

1,087,664           -                     1,087,664         
-                     31,427,962         31,427,962       
-                     -                     5,275,074          5,275,074         

-                     -                     828,561             828,561            

-                     -                     -                        31,712,311       
-                     -                     19,434,821        19,434,821       
-                     -                     142,009             142,009            

9,266,847           33,970,842         26,684,236        189,382,124     

24,416,968$       34,668,133$       30,705,141$      232,304,363$   
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are 
different because:

Total fund balance per balance sheet 189,382,124$           

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 902,853,308

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures,
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds 27,495,609

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
management, property liability loss, health claims, office services and
municipal warehouse to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities
of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities
in the statement of net assets. 68,454,352

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (383,728,112)

Net assets of governmental activities 804,457,281$           

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE BALANCE SHEET
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Debt Capital Municipal
General Service Reserve Facilities

REVENUES
Taxes-

Property taxes 82,515,968$  37,052,595$  -$               -$                     
Other taxes 57,577,341    -                 -                 -                       

Franchise fees 23,586,443    -                 -                 -                       
Fines and forfeitures 8,317,559      -                 -                 -                       
Contributions -                 -                 1,404,847      143,192               
Rollback taxes -                 -                 263,577         -                       
Licenses and permits 4,786,291      -                 -                 -                       
Intragovernmental 7,739,588      -                 -                 -                       
Intergovernmental 2,915,576      -                 -                 -                       
Fees for services 10,967,653    -                 -                 -                       
Assessments -                 -                 -                 -                       
Investment income 1,270,999      368,791         584,348         567,385               
Miscellaneous 794,039         238,425         1,099,749      2,700                   

Total revenues 200,471,457  37,659,811    3,352,521      713,277               

EXPENDITURES
Current operating:

General government 524,727         -                 -                 -                       
Administrative services 8,239,334      -                 -                 -                       
Police 60,909,188    -                 -                 -                       
Fire 42,796,277    -                 -                 -                       
Libraries 10,199,643    -                 -                 -                       
Development 18,651,935    -                 -                 -                       
Public services and operations 4,793,842      -                 -                 -                       
Parks and recreation 21,407,832    -                 -                 -                       
Environmental waste services -                 -                 -                 -                       
Public works 5,840,246      -                 -                 -                       
Other 27,609,726    -                 -                 -                       

Capital outlay 1,636,365      -                 13,590,729    14,173,007          
Debt service:

Principal retirement -                 25,645,000    -                 -                       
Interest and fiscal charges -                 15,037,063    -                 -                       
Total expenditures 202,609,115  40,682,063    13,590,729    14,173,007          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,137,658)     (3,022,252)     (10,238,208)  (13,459,730)        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of debt -                 -                 -                 14,300,000          
Bond proceeds - refunding -                 12,370,000    -                 -                       
Escrow payment - refunding -                 (12,428,331)  -                 -                       
Premium on sale of bonds -                 4,616             -                 145,722               
Transfers in 10,774,011    834,120         11,700,000    1,200,000            
Transfers out (10,633,769)  -                 -                 -                       

Total other financing sources 140,242         780,405         11,700,000    15,645,722          

Net change in fund balances (1,997,416)     (2,241,847)     1,461,792      2,185,992            
Fund balances-beginning 44,741,546    5,491,973      37,446,122    32,372,037          

42,744,130$  3,250,126$    38,907,914$  34,558,029$        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Fund balances-ending
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Other Total
Street Park Governmental Governmental

Improvements Improvements Funds Funds

-$                     -$                     -$                     119,568,563$     
-                       -                       -                       57,577,341          
-                       -                       -                       23,586,443          
-                       -                       2,665,057            10,982,616          

3,538,635            -                       120,204               5,206,878            
-                       -                       -                       263,577               
-                       -                       -                       4,786,291            
-                       -                       -                       7,739,588            

737,411               1,040,000            2,425,458            7,118,445            
-                       -                       2,841,024            13,808,677          

10,094                 -                       -                       10,094                 
304,477               475,155               416,936               3,988,091            

800                      -                       320,906               2,456,619            
4,591,417            1,515,155            8,789,585            257,093,223        

-                       -                       88,925                 613,652               
-                       -                       -                       8,239,334            
-                       -                       3,078,095            63,987,283          
-                       -                       284,164               43,080,441          
-                       -                       114,925               10,314,568          
-                       -                       1,272,509            19,924,444          
-                       -                       963,302               5,757,144            
-                       -                       -                       21,407,832          
-                       -                       300,339               300,339               
-                       -                       -                       5,840,246            
-                       -                       -                       27,609,726          

18,299,800          11,505,518          1,156,598            60,362,017          

-                       -                       -                       25,645,000          
-                       -                       -                       15,037,063          

18,299,800          11,505,518          7,258,857            308,119,089        

(13,708,383)        (9,990,363)           1,530,728            (51,025,866)        

2,175,000            12,840,000          -                       29,315,000          
-                       -                       -                       12,370,000          
-                       -                       -                       (12,428,331)        

14,487                 85,525                 -                       250,350               
-                       -                       882,642               25,390,773          
-                       -                       -                       (10,633,769)        

2,189,487            12,925,525          882,642               44,264,023          

(11,518,896)        2,935,162            2,413,370            (6,761,843)           
20,785,743          31,035,680          24,270,866          196,143,967        

9,266,847$          33,970,842$        26,684,236$        189,382,124$     
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because:

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds (6,761,843)$      

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.  This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation  in the current 23,591,826
period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 3,409,001

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, tax anticipation notes) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while  the repayment
of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources
of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assets.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-
term debt and related items. (3,856,179)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. 236,903

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
management, property liability loss, health claims, office services and
municipal warehouse to individual funds.  The net expenses of certain
activities of internal service funds is reported within governmental
activities. 3,283,103

Grant revenue included in the special revenue funds which are used for the
benefit of business-type activities.  The net expenses of certain activities 
are reported within the business-type activities. (39,465)

Change in net assets of governmental activities 19,863,346$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND - STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
 IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009  

Variance with
Adjustments- Actual on a Final Budget - 

 Budgetary Budgetary Positive
Original Final Actual Basis Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
  Taxes-
    Property taxes 83,068,770$        82,840,550$       82,515,968$   (263,577)$         82,252,391$       (588,159)$               
    Other taxes 58,561,925          56,907,458         57,577,341     -                     57,577,341         669,883                   
  Franchise fees 21,745,842          23,013,814         23,586,443     -                     23,586,443         572,629                   
  Fines and forfeitures 8,150,500            8,284,957           8,317,559        -                     8,317,559           32,602                     
  Licenses and permits 5,325,630            4,610,786           4,786,291        -                     4,786,291           175,505                   
  Intragovernmental 7,739,588            7,739,588           7,739,588        -                     7,739,588           -                           
  Intergovernmental 713,646               809,330              2,915,576        -                     2,915,576           2,106,246                
  Fees for services 11,201,894          11,081,523         10,967,653     -                     10,967,653         (113,870)                 
  Investment income 3,182,198            1,150,000           1,270,999        -                     1,270,999           120,999                   
  Miscellaneous 1,257,960            1,019,868           794,039           -                     794,039              (225,829)                 

Total Revenues 200,947,953        197,457,874       200,471,457   (263,577)            200,207,880       2,750,006                
 

EXPENDITURES:
  General government 805,389               855,824              524,727           84,514               609,241              246,583                   
  Administrative services 8,397,977            8,874,439           8,239,334        64,272               8,303,606           570,833                   
  Police 62,867,477          63,325,613         60,909,188     284,940             61,194,128         2,131,485                
  Fire 42,622,564          43,757,828         42,796,277     382,676             43,178,953         578,875                   
  Libraries 10,510,741          10,586,666         10,199,643     89,740               10,289,383         297,283                   
  Development 21,220,316          21,420,367         18,651,935     584,064             19,235,999         2,184,368                
  Public services and operations 4,882,798            5,057,996           4,793,842        72,938               4,866,780           191,216                   
  Parks and Recreation 22,817,261          23,289,094         21,407,832     301,981             21,709,813         1,579,281                
  Public works 5,941,532            6,187,297           5,840,246        21,205               5,861,451           325,846                   
  Other 31,879,575          30,437,568         27,609,726     576,159             28,185,885         2,251,683                
  Capital outlay 2,505,307            3,361,842           1,636,365        1,592,813          3,229,178           132,664                   

Total Expenditures 214,450,937        217,154,534       202,609,115   4,055,302          206,664,417       10,490,117              

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues  
  Over Expenditures (13,502,984)         (19,696,660)        (2,137,658)      (4,318,879)        (6,456,537)          13,240,123              

OTHER FINANCING 
  SOURCES (USES):  
  Transfers in 9,907,420            10,774,011         10,774,011     -                     10,774,011         -                           
  Transfers out (10,809,587)         (10,633,769)        (10,633,769)    -                     (10,633,769)        -                           

Total Other Financing
  Sources (Uses) (902,167)              140,242              140,242           -                     140,242              -                           

Excess (Deficiency) Of Revenues
  And Other Sources Over
  Expenditures And Other Uses (14,405,151)         (19,556,418)        (1,997,416)      (4,318,879)        (6,316,295)          13,240,123              

FUND BALANCE, October 1 44,741,546          44,741,546         44,741,546     -                     44,741,546         -                           

FUND BALANCE, September 30 30,336,395$        25,185,128$       42,744,130$   (4,318,879)$      38,425,251$       13,240,123$           

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
ADJUSTMENTS TO REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 
FINANCING USES FROM GAAP BASIS TO BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Deficiency of
Revenues and Other

Sources Under Expenditures
and Other Uses
General Fund

GAAP basis $ (1,997,416)
Revenues:  
  Decrease due to rolled back taxes (263,577)
Expenditures:
  Increase due to encumbrances (4,055,302)
Budgetary basis $ (6,316,295)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Water 
and Sewer

Environmental 
Waste Services

Municipal 
Drainage

Other 
Enterprise Funds Total

 Governmental Activities-
Internal Service Funds 

ASSETS
 Current assets:
    Cash and cash equivalents 215,246$        34,937$             563,900$       656,976$              1,471,059$      5,949,321$                      
    Investments 1,386,471       -                     3,607,190      4,250,665             9,244,326       38,764,656                      
    Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
      Accounts 15,202,788      1,932,830          613,501         390,809                18,139,928      142,904                           
      115 trust -                  -                     -                -                       -                  93,878                            
      Accrued interest 7,252              -                     18,867           22,233                 48,352            202,753                           
      Other 1,553              554,077             -                3,803                   559,433          1,898                              
    Due from other funds 2,004              1,099                 -                -                       3,103              4,795,838                        
    Due from other governments -                  -                     -                -                       -                  434                                 
    Inventories -                  -                     -                -                       -                  942,782                           
    Prepaid expenses & other assets 739,105          1,089,755          -                48,675                 1,877,535       215,591                           
 Restricted assets:
  Revenue bond debt service-
      Cash and cash equivalents 43,547            -                     444,505         -                       488,052          -                                  
      Investments 283,760          -                     1,559,958      -                       1,843,718       -                                  
      Accrued interest receivable 1,484              -                     15,150           -                       16,634            -                                  
  Revenue bond reserve fund-
      Investments -                  -                     1,563,333      -                       1,563,333       -                                  
  Revenue bond construction fund-
      Cash and cash equivalents 2,815,778       -                     768,220         -                       3,583,998       418,400                           
      Investments 18,348,400      -                     4,779,164      -                       23,127,564      2,726,414                        
      Accounts receivable 555,957          -                     -                -                       555,957          -                                  
      Accrued interest receivable 95,968            -                     26,182           -                       122,150          14,261                            
       Total current assets 39,699,313      3,612,698          13,959,970    5,373,161             62,645,142      54,269,130                      

    Capital assets:
       Land 4,887,483       -                     53,572           4,325,479             9,266,534       62,522                            
       Buildings 1,491,712       8,581                 52,921           13,953,990           15,507,204      5,753,870                        
       Improvements other than buildings 478,717,006    -                     -                2,053,248             480,770,254    -                                  
       Equipment 12,924,968      7,045,346          257,707         2,197,462             22,425,483      40,753,542                      
       Furniture and fixtures 208,759          53,028               8,124            466,460                736,371          126,436                           
       Rolling equipment 114,195          136,694             -                -                       250,889          56,292,557                      
       Drainage improvements -                  -                     21,901,497    -                       21,901,497      -                                  
       Construction in progress 31,931,533      -                     10,549,646    -                       42,481,179      -                                  
          Less accumulated depreciation (183,601,693)   (6,881,090)         (3,682,371)     (15,329,443)          (209,494,597)   (72,694,741)                     
             Total capital assets (net of 
                accumulated depreciation) 346,673,963    362,559             29,141,096    7,667,196             383,844,814    30,294,186                      
             Total noncurrent assets 346,673,963    362,559             29,141,096    7,667,196             383,844,814    30,294,186                      
               Total assets 386,373,276$  3,975,257$        43,101,066$  13,040,357$         446,489,956    84,563,316$                    

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. (continued)

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
(continued)

 Water 
and Sewer 

 Environmental 
Waste Services 

 Municipal
Drainage 

Other 
Enterprise Funds Total

 Governmental Activities-
Internal Service Funds 

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
    Accounts payable 4,232,574$      166,589$           85,167$         322,613$              4,806,943$      1,437,295$                      
    Accrued liabilities 307,103          379,026             41,362           257,071                984,562          460,602                           
    Deferred revenue -                  10,000               -                687,363                697,363          -                                  
    Due to other funds 1,422              634,960             -                1,710                   638,092          4,855,878                        
    Accrued interest payable -                  1,517                 -                -                       1,517              -                                  
    Customer deposits 2,234,016       -                     -                210,274                2,444,290       -                                  
    Liability for compensated absences -                  117,170             -                117,171                234,341          134,805                           
    Liability for insurance claims -                  -                     -                -                       -                  6,190,932                        
       Total current liabilities 6,775,115       1,309,262          126,529         1,596,202             9,807,108       13,079,512                      

Current liabilities payable from
  restricted assets:
    Contracts payable 315,156          -                     -                -                       315,156          -                                  
    Current portion of long-term debt 1,940,000       -                     1,660,000      -                       3,600,000       -                                  
    Liability for compensated absences 148,891          -                     26,373           -                       175,264          -                                  
    Accrued interest payable 14,338            -                     357,503         -                       371,841          -                                  
    Retainage payable 330,685          -                     -                -                       330,685          -                                  
       Total current liabilities payable
         from restricted assets 2,749,070       -                     2,043,876      -                       4,792,946       -                                  

       Total current liabilities 9,524,185       1,309,262          2,170,405      1,596,202             14,600,054      13,079,512                      

Noncurrent liabilities:
    Bonds payable 2,131,420       -                     21,607,003    -                       23,738,423      -                                  
    Liability for compensated absences 1,613,598       988,871             176,626         642,508                3,421,603       887,018                           
    Liability for insurance claims -                  -                     -                -                       -                  1,498,104                        
       Total noncurrent liabilities 3,745,018       988,871             21,783,629    642,508                27,160,026      2,385,122                        
         Total liabilities 13,269,203      2,298,133          23,954,034    2,238,710             41,760,080      15,464,634                      

NET ASSETS
    Invested in capital assets
          (net of related debt) 364,073,715    362,559             11,447,659    7,647,284             383,531,217    33,192,272                      
    Restricted for:
          Debt service 328,791          -                     3,582,946      -                       3,911,737       -                                  
    Unrestricted 8,701,567       1,314,565          4,116,427      3,154,363             17,286,922      35,906,410                      
    Total Net Assets 373,104,073$  1,677,124$        19,147,032$  10,801,647$         404,729,876$  69,098,682$                    

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
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Amounts reported for business type activities in the statement of net assets are 
different because:

Total net assets of proprietary funds 404,729,876$  

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
management and management information systems to individual funds.

The net receivable due from activities of the internal service funds which are
reported within business-type activities. 8,333,366

Net assets of business type activities 413,063,242$  

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE  STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
OF PROPRIETARY FUNDS
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Water
and Sewer

Environmental 
Waste Services

Municipal
Drainage

Other 
Enterprise Funds Total

Governmental Activities-
Internal Service Funds 

Operating revenues:
   Charges for sales and services:
       Service charges 105,210,732$    12,804,857$       5,049,706$       6,613,979$                     129,679,274$    66,176,753$                     
       Franchise fees -                     6,198,973           -                    -                                  6,198,973          -                                   
       Sale of trash bags -                     1,039,012           -                    -                                  1,039,012          -                                   
       Penalties 1,416,547          -                      -                    -                                  1,416,547          -                                   
       Taps and meters 210,023             -                      -                    -                                  210,023             -                                   
       Construction water 237,597             -                      -                    -                                  237,597             -                                   
       Contributions -                     216,351              -                    -                                  216,351             -                                   
       Miscellaneous charges 313,958             913,952              700                   48,822                            1,277,432          106,791                            
          Total operating revenues 107,388,857      21,173,145         5,050,406         6,662,801                       140,275,209      66,283,544                       

Operating expenses:
       Personal services 9,345,858          5,838,637           1,485,305         4,561,773                       21,231,573        8,833,531                         
       Contractual services 7,760,665          6,927,506           705,100            4,836,728                       20,229,999        12,019,976                       
       Supplies 7,328,577          403,556              243,892            1,285,660                       9,261,685          6,854,760                         
       Claims expense -                     -                      -                    -                                  -                     20,615,470                       
       Depreciation 12,620,471        319,344              413,450            772,207                          14,125,472        7,297,258                         
       Landfill services -                     6,883,746           -                    -                                  6,883,746          -                                   
       Wastewater treatment 22,531,004        -                      -                    -                                  22,531,004        -                                   
       Charges in lieu of taxes 6,853,212          886,376              -                    -                                  7,739,588          -                                   
       Water supply 29,491,382        -                      -                    -                                  29,491,382        -                                   
       Other post employement benefits -                     -                      -                    -                                  -                     6,031,883                         
       Miscellaneous 764,696             145,867              9,804                118,463                          1,038,830          44,307                              
          Total operating expenses 96,695,865        21,405,032         2,857,551         11,574,831                     132,533,279      61,697,185                       
             Operating income (loss) 10,692,992        (231,887)             2,192,855         (4,912,030)                      7,741,930          4,586,359                         

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
       Investment income 323,383             -                      199,702            81,116                            604,201             645,581                            
       Gain (loss) on property disposition -                     (74)                      -                    -                                  (74)                     502,663                            
       Interest and fiscal charges (184,457)            (8,792)                 (989,966)           -                                  (1,183,215)         -                                   
       Auction proceeds 47,904               -                      -                    -                                  47,904               -                                   
       Hotel/motel tax -                     -                      -                    3,951,890                       3,951,890          -                                   
       Intergovernmental revenues -                     -                      -                    -                                  -                     1,538                                
       Miscellaneous 639,364             127,586              (19,582)             5,271                              752,639             9,488                                
          Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 826,194             118,720              (809,846)           4,038,277                       4,173,345          1,159,270                         
             Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 11,519,186        (113,167)             1,383,009         (873,753)                         11,915,275        5,745,629                         
       Contributions from developers 5,128,295          -                      -                    -                                  5,128,295          -                                   
Transfers in -                     100,000              -                    -                                  100,000             -                                   
Transfers out (11,170,761)       -                      (848,881)           (1,387,362)                      (13,407,004)       (1,450,000)                       
          Change in net assets 5,476,720          (13,167)               534,128            (2,261,115)                      3,736,566          4,295,629                         
       Total net assets-beginning 367,627,353      1,690,291           18,612,904       13,062,762                     400,993,310      64,803,053                       
       Total net assets-ending 373,104,073$    1,677,124$         19,147,032$     10,801,647$                   404,729,876$    69,098,682$                     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
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Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities are 
different because:

Net change in net assets - total proprietary funds 3,736,566$   

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
management, property liability loss, health claims, office services and
municipal warehouse to individual funds.

The net revenues of certain activities of internal service funds is reported within
business-type activities. 1,012,523

The net expenses of grant activities of special revenue funds is reported within
business-type activities 39,465

Change in net assets of business-type activities 4,788,554$   

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS OF PROPRIETARY FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Water
and Sewer

Environmental 
Waste Services

Municipal
Drainage

Other 
Enterprise Funds Total

 Governmental 
Activities-

Internal Service Funds 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
  ACTIVITIES
    Cash received from customers 106,332,625$   14,931,293$       5,041,741$       6,889,310$                   133,194,969$   66,123,789$                    
    Franchise fees -                   6,198,973           -                   -                                6,198,973         -                                   
    Charges in lieu of taxes (6,853,212)       (886,376)            -                   -                                (7,739,588)       -                                   
    Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (67,076,024)     (15,508,613)       (1,262,844)       (6,309,603)                    (90,157,084)     (45,943,781)                     
    Cash payments to employees for services (9,185,374)       (5,683,589)         (1,448,002)       (4,532,109)                    (20,849,074)     (8,744,288)                       
       Net cash provided (used) by 
         operating activities 23,218,015       (948,312)            2,330,895         (3,952,402)                    20,648,196       11,435,720                      

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES
    Advances from other funds 414,710            (132,396)            -                   -                                282,314            114,420                           
    Repayments to other funds (2,004)              126,836              -                   1,710                            126,542            (50,896)                            
    Hotel/motel tax -                   -                     -                   3,951,890                     3,951,890         -                                   
    Transfers (to) from other funds (11,170,761)     100,000              (848,881)          (1,387,362)                    (13,307,004)     (1,450,000)                       
    Grant receipts -                   -                     -                   -                                -                   1,538                               
       Net cash provided (used) by 
         noncapital financing activities (10,758,055)     94,440                (848,881)          2,566,238                     (8,946,258)       (1,384,938)                       

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES
    Acquisition and construction of capital assets (8,861,085)       -                     (718,784)          (132,318)                       (9,712,187)       (4,201,647)                       
    Bond proceeds -                   -                     1,858,017         -                                1,858,017         -                                   
    Bond issuance costs paid -                   -                     (63,926)            -                                (63,926)            -                                   
    Proceeds from sale of equipment -                   -                     -                   -                                -                   533,582                           
    Principal paid on long-term debt (1,855,000)       -                     (1,515,000)       -                                (3,370,000)       -                                   
    Interest and fees paid on long-term debt (239,293)          (8,792)                (1,007,144)       -                                (1,255,229)       -                                   
    Reimbursement from other governments 555,957            -                     -                   -                                555,957            -                                   
    Contributions by developers 528,445            -                     -                   -                                528,445            -                                   
    Proceeds from insurance damages 83,157              127,586              4,502                5,271                            220,516            9,488                               
    Proceeds from sale of equipment 47,904              -                     -                   -                                47,904              -                                   
    Proceeds from sale of maps 250                   -                     -                   -                                250                   -                                   
       Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
         financing activities (9,739,665)       118,794              (1,442,335)       (127,047)                       (11,190,253)     (3,658,577)                       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
    Purchase of investment securities (20,018,631)     -                     (11,509,645)     (4,250,665)                    (35,778,941)     (41,491,070)                     
    Proceeds from sale and maturities of
      investment securities 2,898,562         101,216              1,879,895         910,433                        5,790,106         5,903,146                        
    Interest on investments 233,897            1,890                  152,236            67,623                          455,646            459,130                           
       Net cash provided (used) by 
         investing activities (16,886,172)     103,106              (9,477,514)       (3,272,609)                    (29,533,189)     (35,128,794)                     

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (14,165,877)     (631,972)            (9,437,835)       (4,785,820)                    (29,021,504)     (28,736,589)                     

Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 17,240,448       666,909              11,214,460       5,442,796                     34,564,613       35,104,310                      

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 3,074,571$       34,937$              1,776,625$       656,976$                      5,543,109$       6,367,721$                      

Classified as:
  Current assets 215,246$          34,937$              563,900$          656,976$                      1,471,059$       5,949,321$                      
  Restricted assets 2,859,325         -                     1,212,725         -                                4,072,050         418,400                           
Total 3,074,571$       34,937$              1,776,625$       656,976$                      5,543,109$       6,367,721$                      

 Non-cash disclosure: 
   Developers contributions  4,599,850$       -$                   -$                 -$                              4,599,850$       -$                                 
   Loss on property disposition -                   (74)                     -                   -                                (74)                   (30,920)                            
  Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 25,306              (456)                   13,587              4,043                            42,480              51,965                             
  Transfer in (out) of capital assets -                   (191,759)            (38,506)            -                                (230,265)          65,707                             

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. (continued)

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
(continued)

Water
and Sewer

Environmental 
Waste Services

Municipal
Drainage

Other 
Enterprise Funds Total

 Governmental 
Activities-

Internal Service Funds 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
  CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

    Operating income (loss) 10,692,992$     (231,887)$          2,192,855$       (4,912,030)$                  7,741,930$       4,586,359$                      

    Adjustments to reconcile operating income
       to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
      Depreciation 12,620,471       319,344              413,450            772,207                         14,125,472       7,297,258                        
    Change in assets and liabilities:
    (Increase) decrease in-
      Accounts receivable (933,711)          (87,127)              (8,665)              208,488                         (821,015)          (104,970)                          
      Other accounts receivable 2,401                34,248                -                   (301)                              36,348              -                                   
      Due from other funds -                   -                     -                   -                                -                   (55,838)                            
      Due from other governments -                   -                     -                   -                                -                   (405)                                 
      Prepaid expenses & other assets (223,218)          (1,089,080)         -                   (20,514)                         (1,332,812)       (54,904)                            
      Inventories -                   -                     -                   -                                -                   110,280                           
    Increase (decrease) in-
      Accounts payable 1,023,518         (58,858)              (304,048)          (47,937)                         612,675            (579,324)                          
      Accrued liabilities 35,533              158,996              6,880                23,871                           225,280            19,376                             
      Due to other funds -                   -                     -                   -                                -                   1,458                               
      Liability for compensated absences 124,951            (3,948)                30,423              6,540                             157,966            69,867                             
      Customer deposits (124,922)          -                     -                   4,377                             (120,545)          -                                   
      Deferred revenue -                   10,000                -                   12,897                           22,897              -                                   
      Liability for insurance claims -                   -                     -                   -                                -                   146,563                           
    Total adjustments 12,525,023       (716,425)            138,040            959,628                         12,906,266       6,849,361                        

    Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 23,218,015$     (948,312)$          2,330,895$       (3,952,402)$                  20,648,196$     11,435,720$                    

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Postemployment
Pension Trust Fund Benefits Trust Fund Agency Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3,145,752$                 1,783,010$                 334,045$           
Investment pool -                              -                              2,176,731          

Other U.S. government obligations 4,234,219                   7,099,346                   -                    
Corporate bonds 14,089,495                 3,301,864                   -                    
Common stocks 35,442,510                 14,700,980                 -                    
Foreign equities 3,276,850                   -                              -                    
Mutual funds 4,811,519                   771,844                      -                    
Real estate investment trusts 458,160                      -                              -                    

Accrued interest 279,031                      91,934                        11,385               
Pending trades accrued interest -                              592,904                      -                    
Total Assets 65,737,536                 28,341,882                 2,522,161          

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 34,572                        13,432                        -                    
Payable from pending trades -                              1,085,070                   -                    
Retiree claims payable to health claims fund -                              93,878                        -                    
Developers' escrow liability -                              -                              2,463,818          
Unclaimed property payable -                              -                              58,343               
Total Liabilities 34,572                        1,192,380                   2,522,161          

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits 65,702,964                 -                              
Held in trust for other postemployment benefits -                              27,149,502                 
Total Net Assets 65,702,964$                27,149,502$                

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Pension Postemployment
Trust Fund Benefits Trust Fund

ADDITIONS
  Contributions:
    From employers 3,479,512$       5,910,958$                  
    From retirees -                   619,458                       
    Total contributions 3,479,512         6,530,416                    

  Investment return:
    Net increase in fair value 
     of investments 475,302            917,585                       
    Interest 974,701            348,899                       
    Dividends 989,584            231,287                       
    Mutual funds -                   5,735                          
    Miscellaneous 9,073               -                              
    Total investment return 2,448,660         1,503,506                    

  Less investment expenses:
    Trustee fees 33,799             47,998                        
    Advisory fees 123,126            86,514                        
    Audit fee 29,680             15,900                        
    Actuary fee 16,960             16,500                        
    Total investment expenses 203,565            166,912                       

    Net investment income 2,245,095         1,336,594                    
  Total additions, net 5,724,607         7,867,010                    

DEDUCTIONS
  Benefits 1,853,844         2,074,211                    
  Miscellaneous expenses 578                  89                               
    Total deductions 1,854,422         2,074,300                    

Net increase 3,870,185         5,792,710                    

61,832,779       21,356,792                  

65,702,964$     27,149,502$                

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Net assets held in trust -
   beginning of year
Net assets held in trust -
   end of year
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 CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS 

 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

 
 
 
 
 
I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 
The City of Plano, Texas, ("City") was originally incorporated in 1873 and chartered on June 10, 1961, and is 
a municipal corporation incorporated under provisions of H.B. 901 of the Texas Legislature.  The City 
operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides such services as authorized by its 
charter to advance the welfare, health, comfort, safety and convenience of the City and its inhabitants.   
 
The financial statements of the City have been prepared to conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) as applicable to state and local governments.  The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial 
reporting principles.  Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 
1, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the 
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board.  Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for 
their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.  The government has 
elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.  The more significant accounting and reporting 
policies and practices used by the City are described below. 
 
A. Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with GASB Statement No. 34, as amended, which 
requires the government-wide financial statements to be prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and 
the economic resources measurement focus.  Government-wide financial statements do not provide 
information by fund, but distinguish between the City’s governmental activities, business-type activities and 
activities of its discretely presented component units on the statement of net assets and statement of 
activities.  Significantly, the City’s statement of net assets includes both noncurrent assets and noncurrent 
liabilities of the City.  In addition, the government-wide statement of activities reflects depreciation expense 
on the City’s capital assets, including infrastructure.   
 
In addition to the government-wide financial statements, the City has prepared fund financial statements, 
which use the modified accrual basis of accounting and the current financial resources measurement focus 
for the governmental funds.  The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types and the 
pension trust and postemployment benefits trust funds.  Under this method, revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.   
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides an analytical overview of the City’s financial activities.  In 
addition, a budgetary comparison statement is presented that compares the original adopted and final 
amended General Fund budget with actual results. 
 
B. Reporting Entity 
 
The City is governed by an elected mayor and seven-member council.  As required by GAAP, these financial 
statements present the City (the primary government) and its component units, entities for which the 
government is considered to be financially accountable.  Blended component units, although legally separate 
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entities are, in substance, part of the City's operations and data from these units are combined with data of 
the primary government.  A discretely presented component unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate 
column in the combined financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the City. 
 
 Discretely Presented Component Units.  The Plano Economic Development Board (Board) is legally 

separate from the City and the City does not appoint a majority of its governing board; however, the 
City Manager is a designated position on the Board and City Council appoints one member who 
must be a Council Member to serve on the Board.  The City Council contracts with the Board to 
provide  marketing and economic development services to the City and the City provides for custody 
and investment of the Board’s assets, various administrative/personnel/legal services and the 
majority of funding for the Board’s budget.  The Board is reported as an enterprise fund.  There are 
no separately issued financial statements of the Board.  The Board is presented as a discrete 
component unit.  

 
 Tax Increment Financing Units.  The City has established two tax increment financing units (TIF) for 

project improvements within the City.  The first is an agreement by and between the City of Plano 
and the Taubman Realty Group Limited Partnership for the development of a regional mall.  The 
second relates to financing for public improvements associated with the future development of East 
Plano.  Both projects were approved by the City Council in fiscal year 1999.  The Tax Increment 
Financing Units are legally separate from the City and the City does not appoint a majority of its 
governing board for the first TIF and does appoint a majority of its governing board for the second 
TIF; however, the entities are fiscally dependent on the City.  These projects had limited activity 
during fiscal year 2009 and are presented as discrete component units as the City has determined it 
would be misleading to exclude them.  Separate financial statements for these entities are not 
available.   

 
Related Organization.  The City's mayor appoints the board of the Plano Housing Authority, but the 
City's accountability for this organization does not extend beyond making the appointments. 

 
The financial statements are formatted to allow the user to clearly distinguish between primary government 
and its discretely presented component units.   
 
C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and fund 
financial statements, the focus is either the City as a whole or major individual funds (within the fund financial 
statements).  The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement 
of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its 
component units.  For the most part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these 
statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 
charges for support.  Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate 
component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. 
 
The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
functional category (Police, Fire, Public Works, etc.) or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct 
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 
1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment, 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational requirements of a particular function or segment and 3) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items not 
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
The net cost (by function or business-type activity) is normally covered by general revenue (property, sales 
and franchise taxes, and interest income).    
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Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements.  The major governmental funds are the general fund, debt service fund, capital reserve 
fund, municipal facilities fund, street improvements fund and park improvements fund. The major enterprise 
funds are the water and sewer fund, environmental waste services fund and municipal drainage fund.  GASB 
Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues or 
expenditures/expenses of either fund category for the governmental and enterprise combined) for the 
determination of major funds.  The non-major funds are combined in a separate column in the fund financial 
statements. 
 
Internal Service Funds, which traditionally provide services primarily to other funds of the government, are 
presented in the summary form as part of the proprietary fund financial statements.  Because the principal 
users of the internal services are the City’s governmental activities, financial statements of internal service 
funds are consolidated into the governmental column when presented at the government wide level.  To the 
extent possible, the cost of these services are reflected in the appropriate functional activity (Police, Fire, 
Public Works, etc.).  The City’s Internal Service Funds consist of the equipment maintenance, office 
services, municipal warehouse, technology services, property liability loss and health claims funds. 
 
The City’s Fiduciary Funds are presented in the fund financial statements by type.  Since by definition these 
assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (other local governments, individuals, pension 
participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are 
not incorporated into the government-wide statements.   The City’s Fiduciary Funds consist of funds that 
account for the pension trust, postemployment benefits trust, developer’s escrow and unclaimed property.   
 
The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in aggregate 
financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period.  The focus of the fund financial statements 
is on the major individual funds of the governmental and proprietary categories, as well as the fiduciary 
funds, (by category).  Each presentation provides valuable information that can be analyzed and compared 
to enhance the usefulness of the information.   
 
D. Measurement  Focus and  Basis of Accounting 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund statements.  Revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants 
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider 
have been met. 
 
Government fund level financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the 
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 30 days of the end of the current 
fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims 
and judgments, are recorded only when the obligation has matured and is due and payable shortly after year 
end as required by GASB Interpretation No. 6. 
 
Ad valorem, franchise and sales tax revenues recorded in the General Fund and ad valorem tax revenues 
recorded in the Debt Service Fund are recognized under the susceptible to accrual concept.  Licenses and 
permits, charges for services, fines and forfeitures, contributions, and miscellaneous revenues are recorded 
as revenues when received in cash, as the resulting receivable is not measurable.  Investment earnings are 
recorded as earned since they are measurable and available. In applying the susceptible to accrual concept 
to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs 

37



CITY OF PLANO, TX 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

are used as guidance.  Intergovernmental grant revenues are recognized when all eligibility requirements 
have been met.  Additionally, funds received in advance for which all eligibility requirements have not been 
met are considered deferred revenue. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as needed. 
 
Paving assessments in the governmental funds-Street Improvements are recorded as revenues when cash 
is received.  The assessments are due in annual installments, including interest, over a four- to eight-year 
period.  The assessments are measurable when assessed but are generally not available for use when 
assessed.  Unallocated assessments are recorded as deferred revenue. 
 
Business type activities and all proprietary funds, and the pension trust and postemployment benefits trust 
funds, are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.  With this measurement 
focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance 
sheet.  Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., 
expenses) in net total assets.  Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from 
nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The 
principal operating revenues of the City’s water and sewer, environmental waste services, municipal 
drainage, civic center, municipal golf course, property management and recreation revolving funds are 
charges to customers for sales and services.  Operating expenses for the enterprise funds and internal 
service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital 
assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 
 
The following major funds are used by the City: 
 
1. Governmental Funds: 

 
The focus of Governmental Fund measurement (in the Fund Financial Statements) is upon determination of 
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) 
rather than upon net income.  The following is a description of the major Governmental Funds of the City: 
 

a. General Fund accounts for several of the City’s primary services (Police, Fire, Public Works, 
Libraries, Parks and Recreation, etc.) and is the primary operating unit of the City. 

 
b. Debt Service Fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for 

principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds. 
 

c. Capital reserve fund accounts for the financing of betterments and renewals to the City’s 
infrastructure and for public improvements not requiring general obligation bond financing. 

 
d. Municipal Facilities fund accounts for the financing and construction of various City facilities.  

Funds are provided primarily through bond sales and interest earnings. 
 

e. Street improvements fund accounts for the financing and acquisition of right of way and 
construction of streets, storm sewers and alleys.  Funds are provided primarily through bond 
sales, paving assessments and interest earnings. 

 
f. Park improvements fund accounts for the financing, acquisition and construction of park 

sites and related assets.  Funds are provided primarily through bond sales and interest 
earnings. 

 
g. Other Governmental Funds is a summarization of all of the non-major governmental funds.  
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2. Enterprise Funds: 
 
The focus of proprietary funds measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net 
assets, financial position, and cash flows, which is similar to businesses.  The following is a description of the 
major Enterprise Funds of the City: 
 

a. Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the operation of the City’s water and sewer utility.  
Activities of the fund include administration, operation and maintenance of the water and 
sewer system and billing and collection activities.  This fund also accounts for the 
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal and interest for 
revenue bonds and obligations under capital leases when due throughout the year.  All costs 
are financed through charges made to utility customers with rates reviewed regularly and 
adjusted if necessary to ensure integrity of the Fund. 

 
b. Environmental Waste Services Fund accounts for the provision of solid waste collection and 

disposal services to customers who are billed monthly at a rate sufficient to cover the cost of 
providing such services. 

 
c. Municipal Drainage Fund accounts for the City’s storm water management program. 

 
d. Other Enterprise Funds is a summarization of all of the non-major enterprise funds. 

 
3. Other Fund Types: 
 
The City additionally reports for the following Fund types: 
 

a. Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided 
by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other 
governmental units, generally on a cost reimbursement basis. 

 
b. Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in an agency capacity for 

individuals, local law enforcement agencies or developers.  Agency funds record only assets 
and liabilities and therefore have no measurement focus.  

 
c. Trust Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for the 

retirement benefit payments to employees of the City and for postemployment health 
benefits.    

 
E. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, escrow cash with fiscal agent and 
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 
 
Cash in all funds, excluding the City's payroll account, is combined into one bank account in order to 
maximize investment opportunities.  Although individual funds may experience temporary overdraft liabilities, 
a positive balance is maintained in combined cash. 
 
All investments are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices.  Fair value is the amount at which 
a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. 
 
F. Receivables and Payables 
 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of 
the fiscal year are referred to as either “interfund advances or interfund receivable/payable”.  All other 
outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”.  Any residual balances 
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outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. 
 
G. Inventories and Prepaid Items 
 
Inventories of supplies are maintained at the City warehouse for use by all the City funds and are accounted 
for by the consumption method.  They are valued at the lower of moving average (i.e., perpetual inventory) 
cost or market.  Unit prices are adjusted as new inventory is added, thus the moving average cost closely 
represents the cost of goods sold.  Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) 
or market. 
 
Prepaid items are for payments made by the City in the current year to provide services occurring in the 
subsequent fiscal year.  A reserve for prepaid items is recognized in the governmental funds in the fund level  
financial statements to signify that a portion of fund balance is not available for other subsequent 
expenditures. 
 
H. Interfund Transactions and Receivables and Payables 
 
Short-term advances between funds are accounted for in the appropriate interfund receivable and payable 
accounts.  Long-term advances between funds are accounted for in the appropriate interfund receivable and 
payable accounts and fund balance is reserved for these amounts.   All legally authorized transfers are 
appropriately treated as transfers and are included in the results of operations of both governmental and 
proprietary funds.  Nonrecurring or non-routine transfers of equity between funds – for example, contribution 
of capital assets to a proprietary fund or transfers of residual balances of discontinued funds to other funds – 
are accounted for as transfers. 
 
I. Capital Assets 
 
Property, plant and equipment purchased or acquired is carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost.  
Contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the time received.  Public domain 
(infrastructure) capital assets consisting of roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, 
drainage systems and lighting systems have been recorded at estimated historical cost.  Capital assets are 
defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated 
useful life in excess of two years.    
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the 
capitalized value of the assets constructed.  For fiscal year 2009, $18,666 of such interest costs were 
capitalized in the Municipal Drainage Fund. 
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government and business-type activities, as well as the 
component units, are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Assets Years 
Buildings 15 – 40 
Improvements other than buildings 20 – 50 
Equipment   2 – 20 
Furniture and fixtures   5 – 15 
Drainage improvements 50 
Meters 10 
Streets 30 – 50 
Alleys 25 
Storm/sanitary sewer 50 
System infrastructure 50 
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J. Compensated Absences 
 
City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts.  Upon termination, an employee is 
reimbursed for accumulated vacation.  Police and firemen are reimbursed upon termination up to a 
maximum of 90 days accumulated sick leave as required by State Civil Service law.  All other full time City 
employees with five or more years of service are reimbursed up to 90 days accumulated sick leave upon 
termination.  Sick leave in excess of 90 days is not paid upon termination, but will be paid only upon illness 
while in the employ of the City.  Accumulated vacation and sick leave is accrued when incurred in the 
government-wide and proprietary financial statements.  A liability for these amounts is reported in 
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and 
retirements in accordance with GASB Interpretation No. 6. 
 
 
K. Federal and State Grants 

 
Grants and shared revenues are generally accounted for within the fund financed.  Federal grants include 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act Grant, Community Development Block Grant funds, Department 
of Homeland Security Grant and several police grants, which are accounted for within the Grant Fund 
(Special Revenue).  Various state grants are included in the Grant Funds, General Fund and Capital Projects 
Funds (Street Improvements).  Grant revenues received for purposes normally financed through the general 
government are accounted for within the General Fund and those for specific purposes in the proprietary 
fund.   
 
L. Long-Term Debt 
 
General Obligation Bonds issued for general government capital projects that are to be repaid from tax 
revenues of the City are recorded in the government-wide statement of net assets.  Revenue Bonds issued 
for Proprietary Fund assets that are to be repaid by the Proprietary Fund are recorded in the Proprietary 
Funds. 
 
Revenue Bonds have been issued to fund capital projects of Proprietary Funds.  Such bonds are to be 
repaid from the net revenues of the applicable Proprietary Fund.  To date, Revenue Bonds have been issued 
for water and wastewater purposes and for municipal drainage improvements.  Tax Anticipation Notes have 
been issued to fund permanent public improvements related to public safety communications and network 
infrastructure in Internal Service Funds.  Such notes are to be repaid from tax revenues of the City and are 
recorded in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets. 
 
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the 
bonds using the effective interest method in the government-wide financial statements.  Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  Deferred gains and losses are amortized as a 
component of interest expense in a systematic and rational manner over the remaining life of the old debt or 
the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter.  In the fund financial statements, issuance costs, as well as 
bond premiums and discounts are recognized when incurred. 
 
M. Retirement Plans 
 
The City has two separate retirement plans covering substantially all employees.  It is the City’s policy to 
record the cost for such plans on the accrual basis (See Note 5). 
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II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the 

government-wide statement of net assets 
 
 
The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance – total governmental 
funds and net assets – governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets.  
One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due 
and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.”  The details of this 
$383,728,112   difference are as follows: 
 

Bonds payable and certificates of obligation $311,790,000
Tax anticipation notes  28,860,000
     Less: Issuance discount (to be amortized as interest expense) (53,001)
     Add:  Issuance premium (to be amortized as interest expense) 7,481,792
     Less:  Deferred charges from refunding and bond issuance costs (6,487,148)
Accrued interest payable 1,196,909
Claims and judgments 7,689,036
Compensated absences 33,250,524
       
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance – total governmental funds   
To arrive at net assets – governmental activities $383,728,112

 
 
B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, 

expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities 
 
 
The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances – total governmental funds and changes in net assets 
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.  One element of the 
reconciliation explains, “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over their estimated useful lives 
and reported as depreciation expense.”  The details of the $23,591,826 difference are as follows: 
 
 

Capital outlay $ 60,362,017
Depreciation expense (36,089,408)
Other capital related transactions (680,783)
  
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances-  
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets  
of governmental activities $23,591,826
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Another element of the reconciliation states “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides 
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt 
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any 
effect on net assets.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and 
similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement 
of activities.”  The details of this $(3,856,179) difference are as follows: 
 

Debt issued or incurred:  
 Issuance of general obligation bonds $ (22,960,000)
 General obligation bonds refunded (12,370,000)
 Issuance of tax anticipation notes (6,355,000)
 Payment to escrow 12,428,331
 Add: premium (250,351)
 Less: refunding write-off 5,841
Principal repayments: 
 General obligation debt 25,645,000
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances – total 
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental 
activities $ (3,856,179)

 
The reconciliation also states “Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use 
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.”  The 
details of this $236,903 difference are as follows: 
 

Changes in: 
Compensated absences $(973,208)
Accrued interest 27,965
Amortization of bond discount / deferred charge on refunding (734,828)
Amortization of bond premium 1,098,004
Record change in net pension asset 818,970
  
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances – total 
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental 
activities $ 236,903
 

 
III. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
A. Budgetary Data 
 
The City Charter contains the following requirements, which are adhered to by the City Council, regarding 
preparation of the annual budget: 
 
 The City Manager, between 60 and 90 days prior to October 1 of each fiscal year, shall submit to the 

Council a proposed budget.  Such budget shall provide a complete financial plan for the fiscal year. 
 
 At the meeting of the City Council at which the budget is submitted, the City Council shall fix the time 

and place of a public hearing on the budget and shall cause to be published in the official newspaper 
of the City of Plano, a notice of the hearing setting forth the time and place thereof at least five days 
before the date of such hearing. 
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 The budget shall be finally adopted no later than 15 days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year and 
should the City Council fail to so adopt a budget, the then existing budget together with its tax-
levying ordinance and its appropriation ordinance, shall be deemed adopted for the ensuing fiscal 
year. 

 
The City Council approves annual appropriations for operations and interfund transfers for all operating and 
debt service funds.  The City Manager has the authority to transfer unexpended balances between 
departmental budgets within appropriated funds.  The City Council, however, must approve any increase in 
fund appropriations.  The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level.  During the year, there were 
$263,610 in appropriation increases for the General Fund.  Funds with operating appropriations and 
interfund transfers set by ordinance include the General Fund and Debt Service Fund.  During the year, 
appropriations are adjusted as a result of re-estimates by the departments.  For budgetary purposes, 
unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.   
 
The Budgetary Comparison Statement, included in the basic financial statements presents a comparison of 
budgetary data to actual results of operations for the General Fund, for which an annual operating budget is 
legally adopted.  This fund utilizes the same basis of accounting for both budgetary purposes and actual 
results, with the following exceptions: 
 
 The portion of ad valorem tax revenues in the General Fund from “rolled back” tax payments (those 

taxes, up to five years back, on properties previously taxed at special use exemption values and 
currently changed to full values) are excluded from the budgetary basis tax revenues and from the 
general governmental expenditures. 

 
 The General Fund encumbrances are added to the actual expenditures for budgetary comparison. 
 
 
 
B. Fund Deficits and Budget Compliance: 
 
The Office Services net deficit of $(132,758) will require adjustments to the billing rate.  The TIF Mall 
Discretely Presented Component Unit deficit of $(6,397,476) will be funded from future ad-valorem taxes 
received from the creation of reinvestment zones and the establishment of tax increment financing 
agreements with the City of Plano, Plano Independent School District, Collin County and Collin County 
Community College District. 
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IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 
1. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS: 
 
Deposits  
 
Pursuant to provisions of both the Texas Public Funds Investment Act and the Public Funds Investment 
Policy of the City of Plano, Texas (City), all deposits of the City that exceed the federal depository insurance 
coverage level are collateralized with an irrevocable letter of credit at 100%.  Or, by securities held by a third 
party custodian and pledged to the City in an amount not less than 102% (on a market value basis) of the 
City’s deposit of public funds and any accrued interest. 
 
At September 30, 2009 the carrying amount of the City’s demand deposits was $20,842,765, which includes 
component unit deposits of $1,304,224.  The bank balance was $22,570,345.  At September 30, 2009 the 
City’s cash on hand totaled $81,141.  At September 30, 2009, the carrying value and the bank balance of the 
City’s non-negotiable certificates of deposit (CD’s) was $80,199,000.  At September 30, 2009 the carrying 
value of cash held in trust by a bank trust department for the City’s Pension Trust Fund and Postemployment 
Benefit Trust Fund was $4,928,762. 
 
Investments  
 
At September 30, 2009 the City’s investment balances were as follows: 
 

 Fair Value Weighted 
 Primary Component  Avg Maturity 
 Government Units Total (Years)a 
Investment type     
     
U.S. Agencies $183,321,204 $12,264,659 $195,585,863 0.67 
Texas Local Government Investment 
Pools 20,131,964 1,343,810 21,475,774 .00019 
     Total $203,453,168 $13,608,469 $217,061,637 .67019 
   
Investment Trust Funds   
Retirement Security Plan:   
     Government Agency Obligations 4,234,219 3.94 
     Corporate Bonds 14,089,495 5.44 
     Equities:   
        Common Stocks 35,442,510 N/A 
        Foreign Equities 3,276,850 N/A 
        CTF/Mutual Funds 4,811,519 N/A 
        Real Estate Investment Trusts 458,160 N/A 
Postemployment Benefit:   
     Government Agencies 7,099,346 1.79 
     Corporate Obligations 2,700,477 3.60 
     Global Bond 601,387 7.20 
     Equities:   
        Common Stocks 14,700,980 N/A 
        Mutual Funds 771,844 N/A 
           Total Investment Trust Funds: 88,186,787  
   
Total Investments $305,248,424  
   
a Fair value basis     
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Investments in the Retirement Security Plan, the City’s Pension Trust Fund, are held by a bank trust 
department.  Investments in the Postemployment Benefit Trust Fund are held by a bank trust department.   
 
Interest Rate Risk.  As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest 
rates, the City’s investment policy establishes the portfolio’s maximum average dollar-weighted maturity of 
no more than one year.  By policy, the City will not directly invest in securities maturing more than five years 
from the date of purchase. 
 
Credit Risk.  The City’s investment policy, in conjunction with state law, specifies the type of credit rating of 
all authorized investments.  The City’s investments in U.S. Agency securities (FHLB, FNMA, FHLMC, and 
FFCB) are rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service.  The investments in the 
Texas Local Government Pools (TexPool and Texas Daily) carried a credit rating of AAAM by Standard & 
Poor’s as of September 30, 2009.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk.  With the exception of U.S. Treasury securities, the City’s investment policy 
limits the amount that may be invested in any one issuer to 50% of the total investment portfolio.  As of 
September 30, 2009 5% or more of the City’s total investments are in:  Federal Home Loan Bank securities 
(37.90%), Certificates of Deposits (25.15%), Home Loan Mortgage Corporation securities (18.93%), and 
Investment Pools (6.73%) on a fair value basis.   
 
2. PROPERTY TAXES: 
 
The City's property tax is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all 
real and business personal property located in the City.  The property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on 
property as of January 1.  Appraised values are established by the Central Appraisal Districts of Collin and 
Denton Counties at 100% of estimated market value and certified by the Appraisal Review Boards.  The 
assessed value for the tax roll of January 1, 2008 upon which the original 2009 levy was based, was 
$25,170,802,674.  Subsequent adjustments increased this value to $25,646,043,083. 
 
Taxes are due October 1 and become delinquent after the following January 31.  Penalty and interest is 
charged at 7% on delinquent taxes beginning February 1, and increases each month to 18% on July 1. 
 
Property taxes at the fund level are recorded as receivables and deferred revenues at the time the tax levy is 
billed.  Current year revenues recognized are those ad valorem taxes collected within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities, generally thirty days after year-end.  Current tax collections 
for the year ended September 30, 2009, were 99.4% of the tax levy. 
 
The City is permitted by Article XI, Section 5, of the State of Texas Constitution to levy taxes up to $2.50 per 
$100 of assessed valuation for general governmental services including the payment of principal and interest 
on general obligation long-term debt.  The tax rate to finance general governmental services, including debt 
service, for the year ended September 30, 2009, was $0.4735 ($0.3268 for general government and $0.1467   
for debt service) per $100 of assessed valuation.  Thus, the City has a tax margin of approximately $2.0265 
per $100 and could have levied up to approximately $519,717,063 in additional taxes from the present 
assessed valuation. 
 
In Texas, countywide central appraisal districts are required to assess all property within the appraisal district 
on the basis of 100% of its appraised value and are prohibited from applying any assessment ratios.  The 
value of property within the appraisal district must be reviewed every five years; however, the City, at its own 
expense, requires annual reviews of appraised values.  The City may challenge appraised values 
established by the appraisal district through various appeals, and, if necessary, legal action.  Under this 
system, the City sets tax rates on City property.  However, if the effective tax rate, excluding tax rates for 
bonds and other contractual obligations, adjusted for new improvements, exceeds the rate for the previous 
year by more than 8%, qualified voters of the City may petition for an election to determine whether to limit 
the tax rate to no more than 8% above the tax rate of the previous year. 
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3. RECEIVABLES: 
 
 
Receivables at September 30, 2009 for the government’s individual major funds and non-major, internal 
service, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, 
consist of the following: 
 
 

 
 

 
 
The Enterprise Fund accounts receivable includes unbilled charges for services ($7,320,918) rendered at 
September 30, 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    Park Street   Environ-  Aggregate  

 
 Debt Municipal Improve Improve Capital Water & mental Municipal Remaining  

 General Service Facilities ments ments Reserve Sewer Waste Drainage Funds Total 

Receivables:            

Property Taxes $1,607,091  $ 793,799 $          -  $      -  $      -  $      -  $       - $         - $     - $        - $  2,400,890 

Sales Taxes 9,615,992 - - - - - - - - - 9,615,992   
Mixed Drink 
Taxes 267,448 - - - - - - - - - 267,448 

Accounts 1,583,050 - - - - - 15,929,378 1,947,043 621,659 903,959 20,985,089 

Accrued Interest 180,199 14,831 172,189 156,492 103,266 180,023 104,704 - 60,199 354,608 1,326,511 

Assessments - - - - 1,633,885 - - - - - 1,540,186 

115 Trust - - - - - - - - - 93,878 93,878 

Notes 6,397,476 - - - - - - - - - 6,397,476 

Other - - 225 - - - 1,553 554,077 - 960,929 1,516,784 

            
Gross 
Receivables 19,651,256 808,630 172,414 156,492 1,737,151 180,023 16,035,635 2,501,120 681,858 2,313,374 44,144,254 
Less: Allowance 
for            

Uncollectibles (564,968) (325,992) - - (93,699) - (170,633) (14,213) (8,158) - (1,083,964) 

Net total            

Receivables 19,086,288 482,638 172,414 156,492 1,643,452 180,023 15,865,002 2,486,907 673,700 2,313,374 43,060,290 
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS: 
 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2009 was as follows: 
 
 
 
Primary Government 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Balance at Additions  Retirements Balance at 
  Beginning And And End 
  Of Year Transfers Transfers Of Year 
Government activities:      
Capital assets, not being 
depreciated: 

     

Land $ 106,991,008 295,507         (159,938) 107,126,577
Construction in progress  180,710,351 57,910,751 (62,955,545) 175,665,557
Public art  1,648,740 48,000 - 1,696,740
Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated 

 
289,350,099 58,254,258 (63,115,483) 284,488,874

   
Capital assets, being depreciated:   
Buildings  101,808,055 28,591,171 - 130,399,226
Improvements other than buildings  85,244,071 11,328,880 - 96,572,951
Equipment  177,939,212 12,940,620 (6,072,883) 184,806,949
Infrastructure  879,883,057 20,552,467 - 900,435,524
Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

 
1,244,874,395 73,413,138 (6,072,883) 1,312,214,650

   
Less accumulated depreciation for:   
Buildings  (63,163,391) (5,703,201) - (68,866,592)
Improvements other than buildings  (50,753,383) (3,219,098) - (53,972,481)
Equipment  (131,753,311) (12,995,317) 5,521,118 (139,227,510)
Infrastructure  (380,020,397) (21,469,050) - (401,489,447)
Total accumulated depreciation  (625,690,482) (43,386,666) 5,521,118 (663,556,030)
Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 

 
619,183,913 30,026,472 (551,765) 648,658,620

   
Governmental activities capital 
assets, net $ 908,534,012 88,280,730 (63,667,248) 933,147,494
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 
 

Governmental activities:   
 General government $ 6,888,089 
 Administrative services  33,919 
 Police  838,039 
 Fire  404,545 
 Libraries  986,728 
 Development  138,601 
 Public services and operations  71,201 
 Parks and recreation  4,768,137 
 Public works  21,863,215 
 Technology Services  1,472,836 
 Unallocated  96,934 
 Capital assets held by the government’s   
   internal service funds are charged   
   to the various functions based on their    
   usage of the assets  5,824,422 
    
Total depreciation expense – governmental activities $ 43,386,666 

 
 
 

  Balance at Additions Retirements  Balance at 
  Beginning And And End 
  Of Year Transfers Transfers Of Year 
Business-type activities:      
Capital assets, not being 
depreciated: 

     

Land $ 9,251,703 14,831 - 9,266,534
Construction in progress  47,987,409 9,624,020 (15,130,250) 42,481,179
Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated 

 
57,239,112 9,638,851 (15,130,250) 51,747,713

   
Capital assets, being depreciated:   
Buildings  15,250,987 256,217 - 15,507,204
Improvements other than buildings  463,725,408 17,044,846 - 480,770,254
Drainage improvements  19,232,552 2,668,945 - 21,901,497
Equipment  23,376,737 270,993 (234,987) 23,412,743
Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

 
521,585,684 20,241,001 (234,987) 541,591,698

   
Less accumulated depreciation for:   
Buildings  (12,583,743) (749,047) - (13,332,790)
Improvements other than buildings  (161,817,683) (11,708,644) - (173,526,327)
Drainage improvements  (2,997,524) (410,488) - (3,408,012)
Equipment  (17,974,823) (1,257,293) 4,648 (19,227,468)
Total accumulated depreciation  (195,373,773) (14,125,472) 4,648 (209,494,597)
Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 

 
326,211,911 6,115,529 (230,339) 332,097,101

   
Business-type activities capital 
assets, net $ 383,451,023 15,754,380 (15,360,589) 383,844,814
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Business-type activities:   
 Water and sewer $ 12,620,471 
 Environmental waste services  319,344 
 Municipal drainage  413,450 
 Nonmajor  772,207 
    
Total depreciation expense – business-type activities $ 14,125,472 

 
 
Future expenditures for capital projects will be funded from unexpended bond proceeds and additional 
general obligation or revenue bonds and operating revenues.  In May 1998, $80,351,000 of various purpose 
General Obligation Bonds were authorized and $66,159,000 of the 1998 bonds have been issued.  In May 
2001, $112,415,000 various purpose General Obligation Bonds were authorized and $108,915,000 of the 
2001 bonds have been issued.  In May 2005, $144,802,000 of various purpose General Obligation Bonds 
were authorized and $114,822,000 of the 2005 bonds have been issued.   
 
 
 
 
Discretely presented component units 
 

 

  Balance at Additions Retirements Balance at 
  Beginning And And End 
  Of Year Transfers Transfers Of Year 
Economic development activities:      
   
Capital assets, being depreciated:   
Equipment $ 57,115 - - 57,115
Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

 
57,115 - - 57,115

   
Less accumulated depreciation for:   
Equipment  (51,908) (3,133) - (55,041)
Total accumulated depreciation  (51,908) (3,133) - (55,041)
   
Economic development activities 
capital assets, net $ 5,207 (3,133) - 2,074
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Component units:   
 Economic development $ 3,133 
 TIF east side  335,159 
    
Total depreciation expense – component units $ 338,292 

 
 
 
 
 

5. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS:   
 
Texas Municipal Retirement System Plan 
 
Plan Description- 
 
The City provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a nontraditional, joint 
contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), one 
of 833 currently administered by TMRS, an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system.  
TMRS annually issues a stand-alone financial report.  These reports are available from offices of TMRS. 
 
Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and the City-
financed monetary credits, with interest.  At the date the plan began, the City granted monetary credits for 
service rendered before the plan began of a theoretical amount equal to two times what would have been 
contributed by the employee, with interest, prior to establishment of the plan.  Monetary credits for service 
since the plan began are a percent (100%, 150% or 200%) of the employee's accumulated contributions.  In 
addition, the City can grant, as often as annually, another type of monetary credit referred to as an updated  

  Balance at Additions Retirements Balance at 
  Beginning And And End 
  Of Year Transfers Transfers Of Year 
TIF East side activities:      
Capital assets, not being 
depreciated: 

     

Land $ 110,629 - - 110,629
Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated 

 
110,629 - - 110,629

   
Capital assets, being depreciated:   
Buildings  6,661,087 - - 6,661,087
Improvements other than buildings  6,008 - - 6,008
Equipment  25,809 - - 25,809
Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

 
6,692,904 - - 6,692,904

   
Less accumulated depreciation for:   
Buildings  (2,440,019) (333,328) - (2,773,347)
Improvements other than buildings  (2,472) (288) - (2,760)
Equipment  (20,017) (1,543) - (21,560)
Total accumulated depreciation  (2,462,508) (335,159) - (2,797,667)
Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 

 
4,230,396 (335,159) - 3,895,237

   
TIF East side activities capital assets, 
net $ 4,341,025 (335,159) - 4,005,866
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service credit which is a theoretical amount which, when added to the employee's accumulated contributions 
and the monetary credits for service since the plan began, would be the total monetary credits and employee 
contributions accumulated with interest if the current employee contribution rate and City matching percent 
had always been in existence and if the employee's salary had always been the average of his salary in the 
last three years that are one year before the effective date.  At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the 
sum of the employee's accumulated contributions with interest and the employer-financed monetary credits 
with interest were used to purchase an annuity. 
 
The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state 
statutes governing TMRS.  Plan provisions for the City were as follows (as of December 2008): 
 
 Deposit Rate:    7% 
 Matching Ratio (City to Employee): 2 – 1 
 A member is vested after  5 years 
 
Members can retire at certain ages, based on the years of service with the City.  The Service Retirement 
Eligibilities for the City are: 5 years/age 60, 20 years/any age. 
 
Contributions and Funding Policy- 
 
Under the state law governing TMRS, the actuary annually determines the City contribution rate.  This rate 
consists of normal cost contribution rate and the prior service contribution rate, both of which are calculated 
to be a level percent of payroll from year to year.  The normal cost contribution rate finances the currently 
accruing monetary credits due to the City matching percent, which are the obligation of the City as of an 
employee’s retirement date, not at the time the employee’s contributions are made.  The normal cost 
contribution rate is the actuarially determined percent of payroll necessary to satisfy the obligation of the City 
to each employee at the time his/her retirement becomes effective.  The prior service contribution rate 
amortizes the unfunded actuarial liability over the remainder of the plan’s 25-year amortization period.  The 
unit credit actuarial cost method is used for determining the City contribution rate.  Both the employees and 
the City make contributions monthly.  Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for 
budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that is the basis for the rate 
and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect.  (i.e. December 31, 2007 valuation is effective for rates 
beginning January 2009) 
 
Contributions by the City were $18,687,379 or 14.9% of the covered payroll of $125,448,071 as required by 
the actuarial valuation.  The total fiscal year 2009 payroll was $128,213,619.  Annual City TMRS pension 
cost and related information for the last three years is as follows: 
 

  2008 2007 2006 
Annual pension cost $ 18,687,379 16,450,528 15,387,911 
Contributions made  18,687,379 16,450,528 15,387,911 
Contributions as % of      
  Annual pension cost  100% 100% 100% 
Net Pension Obligation (NPO)     
  At end of year  - - - 
Actuarial valuation date  12/31/08 12/31/07 12/31/06 
Actuarial cost method  Projected Unit Projected Unit Unit 
  Credit Credit Credit 
Amortization method  Level % Level % Level % 
Asset valuation method  Amortized Amortized Amortized 
  Cost Cost Cost 
Amortization period  29 years- 

Closed 
30 years- 
Closed 

25 years-
Open 

Actuarial assumptions:     
  Investment rate of return  7.5% 7% 7% 
  Inflation rate  3.0% 3.0% 3.5% 
  Projected salary increases  N/A N/A N/A 
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The City’s net pension obligation (NPO) for TMRS at December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 is calculated as 
follows: 
 

  2008 2007 2006 
     
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 18,687,379 16,450,528 15,387,911 
Annual pension cost  18,687,379 16,450,528 15,387,911 
Contribution made  (18,687,379) (16,450,528) (15,387,911) 
Change in NPO  - - - 
     
NPO, beginning of year  - - - 
     
NPO, end of year $ - - - 

 
 
All annual required contributions have been paid; therefore there is no net pension obligation. 
 
Retirement Security Plan 
 
Plan Description- 
 
On January 1, 1983, the City withdrew from the Federal Social Security system and created the Retirement 
Security Plan (RSP), a single-employer, defined benefit pension trust fund, to provide retirement benefits for 
all full-time employees of the City.  The plan is created by City ordinance and administered by a committee of 
five, which meets four times a year.  Professional investment management is used and a custodial bank 
retains the assets and provides for administration of benefit payments.  The plan issues a separate publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.  The 
financial report may be obtained by request to the City’s Human Resources Department, 1520 Avenue K, 
Suite 130, Plano, TX 75074.  As of the December 31, 2007 biennial actuarial valuation, there were 2,064 
active members of whom 1,359 were vested and 705 were non-vested.  There are 339 terminated 
participants receiving benefits. 
 
Normal retirement benefits are paid upon attaining age 65 with 5 years of service.  Early retirement benefits 
are paid upon completion of 20 years of vesting service (TMRS credited service) or upon attaining age 60 
with 5 years of vesting service.  At least 5 years must be with the City. 
 
For normal retirement the monthly benefit payment is calculated as follows: 
 
 .007 X City of Plano credited service since January 1, 1983 (not to exceed 25 years) X average 
 compensation (highest 3 years of last 10). 
 
Benefits are paid as a monthly life annuity to the participant, with a guarantee that should the participant die 
prior to receiving 60 monthly payments, the payments will continue to a beneficiary for the balance of the 60-
month period. 
 
For early retirement the monthly benefit payment is calculated as follows: 
 

.007 X City of Plano credited service since January 1, 1983 (not to exceed 25 years) X average 
compensation (highest 3 years of last 10) X a reduction factor based on the number of years which 
the benefit start date precedes the normal retirement date.  The benefit amount is reduced by one-
fifteenth (1/15) for each of the first five years and one-thirtieth (1/30) for each of the next five years 
(and on an Actuarial Equivalent basis thereafter) by which the starting date of payments precedes 
the employee’s normal retirement date. 
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The benefits are paid monthly the same as for the normal retirement. 
 
A participant that has completed at least 5 years of City of Plano service, and either retires or terminates his 
employment is eligible for a monthly benefit at the time the participant turns age 60.  The benefit is calculated 
as follows: 
 
 
 .007 X City of Plano credited service since January 1, 1983 (not to exceed 25 years) X average 

compensation (highest 3 years of last 10) X  a reduction factor based on the number of years which 
the benefit start date precedes the normal retirement date.  The benefit amount is reduced by one-
fifteenth (1/15) for each of the first five years and one-thirtieth (1/30) for each of the next five years 
(and on an Actuarial Equivalent basis thereafter) by which the starting date of payments precedes 
the employee’s normal retirement date. 

 
 
There is no reduction factor if the participant waits until age 65 to begin drawing a monthly benefit. 
 
A lump sum payment option is available and the lump sum value of a participant's RSP benefit is always 
calculated.  Lump sum payments follow these guidelines: 
 

When lump sum value is less than $5,000, the benefit must be in form of a single lump sum 
payment. 
 
When lump sum value is $5,000 - $12,000, participant has choice of single lump sum payment or 
monthly annuity payments. 

 
 When lump sum value exceeds $12,000, the participant must receive monthly annuity payments. 
 
 
Joint and survivor options are available.  Total and permanent disability retirement benefits are provided.  
Each April 1, retirement benefits which have been paid for at least 12 months are adjusted to reflect changes 
in the U.S. Consumer Price Index (not to exceed 4%).  This adjustment is applied to only the participant's 
benefits; spouses or beneficiaries are excluded.   
 
 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies- 
 
The plan is presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  City contributions are recognized when due and 
benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 
 
Investments of the plan are reported at fair value.  Short-term investments are reported at cost, which 
approximates fair value. 
 
At September 30, 2009, there were no individual investments that constituted more than 5% of the plan net 
assets available for benefits.  In addition, the plan did not have any investment transactions with related 
parties during the year. 
 
 
Contributions and Funding Policy-  
 
Contributions by the City are established as part of the City budget process.  No employee contributions are 
required by the plan.  The City contributed $3,479,512 or 3.13% of the covered payroll for the year ended 
September 30, 2009, as compared to the December 31, 2007 biennial actuarial requirement of 3.12%. 
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The covered payroll was $111,166,521 and the City's total payroll was $128,213,619 for the year ended 
September 30, 2009.  The contribution amount is a 30-year level percentage of pay funding with a 4% 
payroll growth assumption.  This funding approach produces a contribution pattern that is intended to 
increase in amount from year to year but remain relatively constant as a percent of payroll.  Administrative 
costs, including investment, custodial trustee, and actuarial services are charged to the plan. 
 
The City’s annual pension cost and related information for the plan for the last three years is as follows: 
 

  2009 2008 2007 

Annual pension cost $ 3,429,700 3,427,360 2,951,185 
Contributions made  3,479,512 3,420,947 3,121,295 
Contributions as % of      
  Annual pension cost  101% 100% 106% 
Net Pension Asset (NPA)     
  At end of year  (270,110) (220,298) (226,711) 
Actuarial valuation date  12/31/07 12/31/07 12/31/05 
Actuarial cost method  Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age 
  Normal Normal Normal 
Amortization method  Level % Level % Level % 
Asset valuation method  5- Year 

Smoothed 
5- Year 

Smoothed 
5- Year 

Smoothed 
  Market Market Market 
Amortization period  30 years- 30 years- 30 years- 
  Open Open Open 
Actuarial assumptions:     
  Investment rate or return  8% 8% 8% 
  Inflation rate  4% 4% 4% 
  Projected salary increases  4%-9.43% 4%-9.43% 4% 
     

 
 
The City’s net pension asset (NPA) for the Retirement Security Plan (RSP) at September 30, 2009, 2008 
and 2007 is calculated as follows: 
 

  2009 2008 2007 
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 3,447,764 3,447,764 2,953,619 
Interest on NPA  (17,623) (18,137) (4,528) 
Adjustment to the ARC  (441) (2,267) 2,094 
Annual pension cost  3,429,700 3,427,360 2,951,185 
Contribution made  (3,479,512) (3,420,947) (3,121,295) 
Change in NPA  (49,812) 6,413 (170,110) 
     
NPA, beginning of year  (220,298) (226,711) (56,601) 
     
NPA, end of year $ (270,110) (220,298) (226,711) 

 
In all years, the NPA has an asset (negative) balance and therefore the interest adjustment is deducted and 
the ARC adjustment added to determine the annual pension cost.  The net pension asset has been recorded 
in prepaid and other assets in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
 
 
Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457.  The plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary 
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until future years.  The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, 
death or unforeseeable emergency. 
 
All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with such amounts, 
and all income attributable to such amounts, property or rights are held in trust or under one or more annuity 
contracts described in Internal Revenue Code Section 401(f).  Except as may otherwise be permitted or 
required by law, no assets or income of the Plan shall be used for, or diverted to, purposes other than for the 
exclusive purpose of providing benefits for Participants and their Beneficiaries or defraying reasonable 
expenses of administration of the Plan.  Accordingly, the assets of the Plan are not reported in the City’s 
basic financial statements. 
 
 
Postemployment Benefits 
 
The City offers its retired employees under age 65 health insurance coverage under the same plan as the 
active employees and Medicare supplementary insurance for retirees 65 and older.  The number of retired 
participants receiving health insurance coverage for 2009 was 325 of which 217 were on the same plan as 
the active employees and 108 on Medicare supplementary insurance.  Premiums are paid by the retired 
employees and claims are processed by the City's agent and paid through the Health Claims Fund.  
Expenditures for postretirement health care benefits are recognized as retirees report claims.  Claims paid 
for retired employees for 2009 were $2,074,211. 
 
 
 
Postemployment Benefits Trust Fund - Section 115 Trust 
 
Plan Description- 
 
On March 1, 2008, the City established a Section 115 Trust (the Trust) to comply with the requirements of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (OPEB), for the purpose of funding and 
providing certain benefits to its eligible retirees.  The plan is created by City ordinance and administered by 
the Risk Pool Trustees who meet four times a year. The Risk Pool Trustees consist of three City employees 
who are appointed by the City pursuant to the Plano Welfare Benefit Plan.  Professional investment 
management is used and a custodial bank retains the assets of the Trust.  The Trust issued a separate 
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information 
at the Trust’s fiscal year end which is December 31.  Those financial reports may be obtained by request to 
the City’s Human Resources Department, 1520 Avenue K, Suite 130, Plano, TX 75074. 
 
 
Receipt of Contributions- 
 
The City delivers to the Section 115 Trustee the amounts of money that are contributed to the Trust Fund by 
the City and, if applicable, by participants.  Contributions by the City are established as part of the City 
budget process and are based on amounts determined in the actuarial study prepared biennially.  For fiscal 
year ending September 30, 2009 the City contributed $5.9 million to the Trust which represents 
approximately 101% of the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC).  In addition, retirees 
contributed $0.6 million to the Trust.   
 
 
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation- 
 
The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the City’s ARC, an 
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45.  The ARC 
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represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year 
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  
The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount annually 
contributed to the Trust, and the changes in the City’s net OPEB asset to the Trust. 
 

 2009 2008 
Annual required contribution $  6,031,883 6,031,883 
Interest on net OPEB asset (1,253,187) - 
Adjustment to the ARC 982,562 - 
    Annual OPEB cost  5,761,258 6,031,883 
Contributions made (6,530,416) (23,934,554) 
    Increase in net OPEB asset (769,158) (17,902,671) 
Net OPEB asset beginning of year (17,902,671) - 
Net OPEB asset end of year $(18,671,829) (17,902,671) 
  

The net pension asset has been recorded in prepaid and other assets in the government-wide financial 
statements. 
 
The following table shows the assumed annual OPEB cost and net OPEB asset for the prior three years (7% 
discount and level percent of pay amortization): 
 

   Percentage of  
Fiscal Discount Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB 

Year Ended Rate OPEB Cost Contributed Asset 
9/30/2007 N/A N/A N/A N/A 
9/30/2008 7% $6,031,883 396.8% $(17,902,671) 
9/30/2009 7%   6,031,883 100.9%   (18,671,829) 

 
Funding Status and Funding Progress – 
 
As of October 1, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Trust was not funded.  The actuarial 
accrued liability for benefits was $55,831,704, and there was not an actuarial value of net assets.  During the 
fiscal year contributions to the plan were $6,530,416, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
(UAAL) of $25,366,734.  The covered payroll was $111,166,521, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered 
payroll was 22.8%.   
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of 
the Trust and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual 
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.   
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – 
 
In the October 1, 2007, actuarial valuation, the unit credit actuarial cost method was used.  The actuarial 
assumptions included a 7.0% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is a blended 
rate of the expected long-term investment returns on the Trust assets and on the employer’s own 
investments calculated based on the funded level of the Trust at the valuation date, and an annual 
healthcare trend rate of 7.3% initially, reduced by decrements each year.  The UAAL is being amortized as a 
level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at October 1, 
2007, was thirty years. 
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT: 
 
A summary of long-term debt transactions, including current portion, for the year ended September 30, 2009, 
is as follows (in thousands of dollars): 
 

  Balance   Balance  
  Beginning   End of Due Within 

  Of Year Increase Decrease Year One Year 

       
Governmental Activities:       
       
       
General obligation bonds & certificates  $ 310,580 35,330 (34,120) 311,790 20,990 
      of obligation       
 Tax anticipation notes  26,405 6,355 (3,900) 28,860 6,660 
Deferred amounts:       
  For issuance (discounts) / premiums       
  /  deferred charge on refunding  1,114 1,016 (1,188) 942 296 
       Total bonds payable  338,099 42,701 (39,208) 341,592 27,946 
Compensated absences  32,277 6,887 (4,892) 34,272 4,592 
Liability for insurance claims  7,542 20,615 (20,468) 7,689 6,191 
   Governmental activity       
        Long-term debt  $ 377,918 70,203 (64,568) 383,553 38,729 

       
The compensated absences liability attributable to the governmental activities will be liquidated by 
several of the City’s governmental and internal service funds.  Approximately 95.3% has been paid by 
the General Fund, 0.6% by Special Revenue Funds and 4.1% by Internal Service Funds. 
 
The liability for insurance claims will be liquidated through a variety of funds.  The General Fund bears 
approximately 87.0% of the claims and judgments liability.  The Enterprise Funds bear approximately 
9.1% of the claims and judgment liability, while the Internal Service and Special Revenue Funds bear 
approximately 3.6% and 0.3%, respectively.   
 
  Balance   Balance  
  Beginning   End of Due Within 
  Of Year Increase Decrease Year One Year 
       
Business Type Activities:       
       
Water & Sewer       
  Revenue bonds $ 5,750 - (1,855) 3,895 1,940 
Municipal Drainage       
  Revenue bonds  23,170 4,790 (4,470) 23,490 1,660 
Deferred amounts:       
  For issuance (discounts) / premiums/  (20) - (27) (47) - 
      (deferred charges)  -     
       Total bonds payable  28,900 4,790 (6,352) 27,338 3,600 
Compensated absences  3,673 609 (451) 3,831 410 
  Business-type activity       
     Long-term debt $ 32,573 5,399 (6,803) 31,169 4,010 
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   Balance   Balance Due 
  Beginning   End of Within 

  Of Year Increase Decrease Year One Year 

       
Discretely Presented Component Units:       
       
TIF Mall note payable $ 5,743 654        - 6,397 - 
TIF East Side note payable  776      - (776) - - 
          Total note payable $ 6,519 654 (776) 6,397 - 

       
 
Long-term debt at September 30, 2009, includes the following individual issues (not including the 
unamortized discount of $53,001, the unamortized premium of $7,481,792, and the unamortized deferred 
charge of $6,487,148 of the General Obligation Bonds,  the unamortized premium of $322,880 and deferred 
charges of $146,460 of the Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds and the unamortized premium of $344,830 and 
unamortized discount of $269,491 and unamortized deferred charges of $298,336 of the Municipal Drainage 
Revenue Bonds): 
 
 Interest Rate Issue Maturity  Original Net  
 (%) Date Date  Issue Retirement Outstanding 
General Obligation Bonds:        
  1999 Various purpose 3.50 – 5.00 01-15-99 09-01-19  25,160,000 22,630,000 2,530,000 
  2000 Various purpose 5.125 –5.875 02-15-00 09-01-20  24,330,000 23,180,000 1,150,000 
  2001 Various purpose 4.50 – 5.00 02-01-01 09-01-20  20,315,000 15,960,000 4,355,000 
  2001-A Various purpose 4.00 – 5.00 09-15-01 09-01-21  18,195,000 5,280,000 12,915,000 
  2002 Refunding and        
     Improvements 3.25 – 5.25  08-01-02 09-01-22  56,130,000 40,505,000 15,625,000 
  2003 Refunding and        
     Improvements 2.00 – 5.00 05-01-03 09-01-23  41,370,000 17,975,000 23,395,000 
  2004 Refunding 2.00 – 5.00 10-15-04 09-01-17  30,690,000 7,160,000 23,530,000 
  2005 Refunding and        
     Improvements 3.50 – 5.00 05-15-05 09-01-25  84,880,000 5,270,000 79,610,000 
  2006 Various purpose 4.00 – 5.00 02-01-06 09-01-26  40,925,000 4,210,000 36,715,000 
  2007 Various purpose 4.25 – 5.25 05-01-07 09-01-27  35,675,000 2,375,000 33,300,000 
  2008 Various purpose 3.50 – 5.00 01-15-08 09-01-28  41,295,000 1,350,000 39,945,000 
  2009 Refunding and        
    Improvements 2.25 – 4.75 01-15-09 09-01-29  35,330,000 - 35,330,000 
     454,295,000 145,895,000 308,400,000 
Tax Anticipation Notes:        
  2007 Tax anticipation notes 4.00 – 4.00 05-01-07 09-01-13  11,000,000 3,400,000 7,600,000 
  2008 Tax anticipation notes 3.00 – 3.25 01-15-08 09-01-15  17,075,000 2,170,000 14,905,000 
  2009 Tax anticipation notes 2.25 – 3.00 01-15-09 09-01-16  6,355,000 - 6,355,000 
     34,430,000 5,570,000 28,860,000 
Certificates of Obligation:        
   2006 Various purpose 4.25 – 4.50 02-01-06 09-01-26  3,765,000 375,000 3,390,000 
        
Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds:        
   2003  General Obligation         
      Refunding 2.00 – 5.00 05-01-03 09-01-13  16,825,000 12,930,000 3,895,000 
        
Municipal Drainage Revenue        
  Bonds:        
  2001 Improvements 4.20 – 5.10 09-15-01 05-15-21  4,530,000 4,125,000 405,000 
  2003 Improvements 2.50 – 4.50 05-01-03 05-15-23  3,675,000 765,000 2,910,000 
  2005 Refunding and        
     Improvements 3.00 – 5.00 05-15-05 05-15-25  11,610,000 1,450,000 10,160,000 
  2006 Improvements 4.00 – 5.00 02-01-06 05-15-26  1,455,000 125,000 1,330,000 
  2007 Improvements 4.00 – 5.50 05-01-07 05-15-27  2,000,000 125,000 1,875,000 
  2008 Improvements 4.00 – 4.50 01-15-08 05-15-28  2,085,000 40,000 2,045,000 
  2009 Refunding and        
    Improvements 3.00 –3.50 01-15-09 05-15-29  4,790,000          25,000 4,765,000 
    $ 30,145,000 6,655,000 23,490,000 
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The annual requirements to amortize debt outstanding as of September 30, 2009, including interest 
payments of $125,562 follow.  Due to the nature of the obligation for compensated absences, annual 
requirements to amortize such obligations are not determinable and have not been included in the following 
summary (in thousands of dollars): 
 

    Proprietary Fund Types 
  General Obligation,       

Tax Anticipation Notes & 
Certificates of Obligation Water and Sewer Municipal Drainage 

Year Ended 
September 

30, 

 

Principal Interest  Principal Interest Principal Interest 
        

2010 $ 27,650 14,320 1,940 172 1,660 953
2011  27,185 13,184 1,260 75 1,740 892
2012  26,935 12,186 330 28 1,800 831
2013  27,355 11,162 365 15 1,875 764
2014  24,650 10,072 - - 1,945 694

2015-2019  102,830 36,148 - - 7,700 2,345
2020-2024  68,355 16,779 - - 4,740 1,028
2025-2029  35,690 3,695 - - 2,030 219

   
Total $ 340,650 117,546 3,895 290 23,490 7,726

        
 
The City intends to retire all of its general long-term liabilities, plus interest, from ad valorem taxes and other 
current revenues.  The proprietary fund type long-term debt will be repaid, plus interest, from the operating 
revenues of the Water and Sewer Fund and the Municipal Drainage Fund. 
 
The discretely held component unit TIF Mall had notes payable as of September 30, 2009 of $6,397,476.  
These notes are for amounts loaned by the City for projects and construction relating to the TIF Mall and will 
be repaid when funding is available from the TIF Mall.  The interest rate on the note payable is 6.0%.  Until 
repayment can be made on the note, interest is capitalized.  The City made full repayment in Fiscal year 
2009 to Taubman Realty Group Limited Partnership for construction of a parking garage, land and roadway 
improvements.  Repayment from the TIF Mall to the City is estimated to be complete in fiscal year 2011. 
 
The discretely held component unit TIF East Side paid the remaining $776,433 installment of notes payable 
in fiscal year 2009. These notes were for amounts loaned by the City for construction of the Courtyard 
Theater on the East side of Plano.  Additionally, the TIF East Side reimbursed the City’s General Fund 
$2,113,806 for expenses paid for the Courtyard Theatre in fiscal year 2001.  
 
 
A. General Obligation Bonds and Certificates 
 
The City is required by ordinance to create from ad valorem tax revenues a sinking fund sufficient to pay the 
current interest and principal installments as they become due.  The Debt Service Fund has $3,250,126 
available to service the general obligation debt after all debt due in the current fiscal year has been paid. 
 
There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various general obligation bond and 
certificate indentures.  Management of the City believes it is in compliance with the significant limitations and 
restrictions at September 30, 2009. 
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Arbitrage provisions of the Internal Revenue Tax Act of 1986 require the City to rebate excess arbitrage 
earnings from bond proceeds to the federal government.  Beginning in 1992, the City paid required five-year 
rebates.  Future rebates are estimated to be $962,072 at September 30, 2009.  As provided for by the bond 
indentures, this amount has been recorded as "Due to other governments" in a special revenue fund (the 
Rebate Fund) for the benefit of the federal government and will be paid as required by applicable 
regulations. 
 
In January of 2009, the City issued $35,330,000 in General Obligation refunding and improvement bonds, 
with interest ranging from 2.25% to 4.75%.  The portion of the debt that represents refunded bonds were 
1998 series general obligation bonds totaling $12,370,000 and carried interest rates ranging from 4.75% to 
5.15% with maturity dates in 2010 through 2018.  Refunded bonds were considered a current refunding and 
resulted in a net present value benefit to the City of $1,217,719. 
 
 Also in January of 2009, the City issued $6,355,000 of Tax Notes, with interest ranging from 2.25% to 3.0% 
for the acquisition, implementation and installation of radio system infrastructure as well as for payment of 
professional services of attorneys, financial advisors and other professionals in connection with the project.   
 
In prior years, the City defeased certain outstanding general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of the 
new bonds in irrevocable trusts pledged to pay all future debt service payments of the refunded bonds.  
Accordingly, the trust accounts and the defeased bonds are not included in the City’s financial statement.  At 
September 30, 2009, $25,655,000 of the defeased bonds are still outstanding.  
 
 B. Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds 
 
The Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds are secured by the net revenues of the Water and Sewer Fund as 
defined in the respective bond indentures. 
 
The City is required by the applicable revenue bond indentures to pledge the net revenues of the Water and 
Sewer Fund for the retirement of its outstanding revenue bonds, including interest thereon, and is required to 
maintain debt service funds and bond reserve funds for all such bonds outstanding. 
 
The debt service funds, aggregating $328,791 at September 30, 2009, are restricted within the Water and 
Sewer Fund.  The respective bond indentures require the City to make equal monthly installments to the 
debt service funds which will accumulate to pay the annual principal and semiannual interest requirements 
as they become due. 
 
Bond proceeds since 1988 are covered by the arbitrage provisions of the Internal Revenue Tax Act of 1986.  
Accordingly, there were no excess arbitrage earnings estimated at September 30, 2009.  The City is in 
compliance with all requirements of the bond ordinances for the year ended September 30, 2009. 
 
Restricted assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at September 30, 2009 are as follows: 
 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,859,325
Investments  18,632,160
Accrued interest receivable  97,452
Accounts receivable  555,957
  
 $ 22,144,894

 
C. Municipal Drainage Revenue Bonds 
 
These bonds are secured by a first lien on and pledge of the revenues of the Municipal Drainage Fund in 
accordance with the provisions of the bond indenture. 
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The bond indenture requires the City to make equal monthly installments to a debt service fund to pay 
principal and interest requirement as they become due.  At September 30, 2009 $2,019,613 is restricted 
within the Municipal Drainage Fund for debt service requirements. 
 
In addition, the bond indenture requires a reserve equal to the average annual debt services requirement be 
maintained in order to pay any bond principal and interest should the debt service funds be insufficient.  At 
September 30, 2009 the reserve required and restricted within the Municipal Drainage Fund is $1,563,333.    
 
In January of 2009, the City issued $4,790,000 in Municipal Drainage revenue and improvement bonds, with 
interest ranging from 3.00% to 3.50%. The portion of the debt that represents refunded bonds were 1998 
series municipal drainage revenue bonds totaling $2,955,000 and carried interest rates ranging from 4.75% 
to 5.05% with maturity dates in 2010 through 2018.  Refunded bonds were considered a current refunding 
and resulted in a net present value benefit to the City of $245,304. 
 
In fiscal year 2005, the City defeased certain outstanding Municipal Drainage Bonds by placing the proceeds 
of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments of refunded bonds.  
Accordingly, the trust account and the defeased bonds are not included in the City’s financial statement.  At 
September 30, 2009, $2,780,000 of the defeased bonds are still outstanding. 
 
Municipal Drainage revenue bonds are covered by the arbitrage provisions of the Internal Revenue Tax Act 
of 1986 and accordingly, excess arbitrage earnings of $24,898 were estimated at September 30, 2009.  This 
amount is included in the Special Revenue Rebate fund “Due to other governments.”  The City is in 
compliance with all requirements of the bond ordinance for the year ended September 30, 2009. 
 
Restricted assets of the Municipal Drainage Fund at September 30, 2009 are as follows: 
 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,212,725
Investments  7,902,455
Accrued interest receivable  41,332
  
 $ 9,156,512

 
7. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS: 
 
A summary of interfund receivables and payables at September 30, 2009 is as follows: 
 

    
                              Due To 

 

 
General 

Fund 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds 
Internal 
Service 

Water & 
Sewer 

Environ-
mental 
Waste 
Service 

Nonmajor 
Enterprise 

Funds Total 
Due From        

General Fund $         - 506,281 113,416 - 633,654 - $1,253,351 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 756 - - - 509 - 1,265 
Internal Service 50,451 - 4,741,458 1,422 797 1,710 4,795,838 
Water and Sewer - 1,000 1,004 - - - 2,004 
Environmental Waste Services - 1,099 - - - - 1,099 
Total $51,207 508,380 4,855,878 1,422 634,960 1,710 $6,053,557 

 
 
Due to and due from entries are primarily used to account for administrative transactions. 
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CITY OF PLANO, TX 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

 
 
The City performs a complex calculation to determine the value of the charges in lieu of taxes to be paid to 
the General Fund.  This calculation is reasonably equivalent to the value of the services provided to the 
Water and Sewer and Environmental Waste Services funds and is therefore appropriately reported as an 
expense as opposed to a transfer.  During fiscal year 2009, charges in lieu of taxes were $7,739,588. 
 
Transfers between funds during the year were as follows: 
 

  Transfers In  
 

 
General  

Fund 
Debt 

Service 
Capital 

Reserve 
Municipal 
Facilities 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds 

Environ-
mental 
Waste 

Services Total 
Transfers Out        

General Fund   $                 - - 10,500,000 - 133,769 - $10,633,769 
Internal Service - - - 1,200,000 250,000 - 1,450,000 
Water and Sewer 9,870,761 - 1,200,000 - - 100,000 11,170,761 
Municipal Drainage 350,008 - - - 498,873 - 848,881 
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 553,242 834,120 - - - - 1,387,362 
Total $10,774,011 834,120 11,700,000 1,200,000 882,642 100,000 $25,490,773 

 
  

 
The City performs a cost allocation to determine the portion of indirect expenses that will be reimbursed by 
the respective business-type activities to the General Fund.  The City funds the Capital Reserve fund by 
transferring amounts from the General Fund and Water and Sewer fund each year based on a portion of 
depreciation.   
 
Transfers are primarily used to move funds to finance various programs in accordance with budgetary 
authorizations. 
 
 
8. REGIONAL SYSTEMS FOR WATER SUPPLY, WASTEWATER 
 TREATMENT, AND SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL: 
 
The City of Plano secures its water supply and sewer services from the North Texas Municipal Water District 
("District"), a district authorized by the Texas Constitution, Article XVI, Section 59; created by the Texas 
Legislature, Article 8280-141; and authorized to act by the confirming vote of the majority of the qualified 
voters in each of the cities comprising the District.  The District has police, taxation and eminent domain 
powers and is authorized to issue revenue and/or tax bonds upon approval by the Attorney General of the 
State of Texas and functions as a political subdivision of the State of Texas independent of the City.  The 
District is governed by a 17-member board (the "Board"), the City of Plano being authorized by statute to 
appoint two of those members.  The Board has full power and discretion to establish its budget and to set the 
rates for the services it provides by contracts with its member cities and customers.  The Board is 
empowered by statute and contract, or otherwise permitted by law, to discontinue a facility or service in order 
to prevent an abuse or to enforce payment of an unpaid charge, fee or rental due to the District.  A portion of 
the outstanding bonds of the District are contract revenue bonds based on contracts with certain member 
cities of the District.  The City of Plano provides for the payment of its contractual obligations with the District 
from revenues generated by its waterworks and sewer systems.  Such contractual payments provide for the 
payment of the principal and interest requirements, and the premium payment, if any, on specified 
indebtedness and associated operation and maintenance expenses of the District.  Because of the factors 
mentioned above, the District is not included in the City's basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF PLANO, TX 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

 
Water Supply 
 
On December 12, 1953, the City entered into a contract with the District whereby the District agreed to 
provide water for the benefit of the City. In return for this service, the City agreed to pay the District at a rate 
per 1,000 gallon basis, subject to minimum annual payments.  The City's annual payment for the year ended 
September 30, 2009, was $29,491,382.  The City has also contracted for water transmission facility 
improvements and pays the District for debt service for bonds issued to fund the improvements.  For fiscal 
year 2009 this payment was $856,957.  Future years’ payments to debt service are as follows: 
      

2010 $ 861,488
2011  869,232
2012  869,898
2013  873,695
2014  880,325

2015 – 2018  2,939,762
 
 
Wastewater Treatment 
 
On October 1, 1975, the City entered into a contract for wastewater treatment services with the District.  The 
District has been designated by the Texas Water Quality Board as the regional agency to provide and 
develop a Regional System for Wastewater Treatment in the general area of the East Fork of the Trinity 
River, which includes the City of Plano and other cities located in Collin, Dallas, Kaufman and Rockwall 
Counties, Texas.  Relative thereto, the City of Plano and other cities have entered into wastewater system 
contracts with the District, which provide for the establishment, operation and maintenance of a Regional 
Wastewater System for the purpose of providing facilities to adequately receive, transport, treat and dispose 
of wastewater for the cities.  In order to provide said services, the contract provides that (a) the District will 
acquire, design, construct and complete the system, repair, replace and/or extend the system to provide 
service to the cities; (b) in consideration of payments to be made under the contract, each of the cities shall 
have the right to discharge all its wastewater from its sewage system into the District's system, subject to 
certain quality requirements set forth in the contract; (c) the District will issue its bonds, in amounts and at 
times determined by the District, to provide for the wastewater treatment facilities; (d) each city agrees to pay 
its proportionate share of the annual requirement sufficient to pay or provide for the payment of an 
"Operation and Maintenance Component" and a "Bond Service Component;" (e) each city's proportionate 
share of the annual requirement shall be a percentage obtained by dividing such city's estimated contributing 
flow to the system by the total estimated contributing flow to the system by all cities during such fiscal year.  
No city will exercise oversight responsibility for the District and no city is liable for the District's debt.  The 
City of Plano's payment for the year ended September 30, 2009 was $22,531,004 net of payments to the 
City for facilities usage. 
 
 
Solid Waste Disposal 
 
On November 29, 1979, the City entered into a contract for services with the District, whereby the District 
agreed to provide a solid waste disposal system for the benefit of the City of Plano and other cities.  Each 
city agreed to pay its share of an annual requirement for the operating expenses and debt service of the 
District to be calculated in the same manner as the wastewater contract.  The City's annual payment for the 
year ended September 30, 2009 was $6,883,746. 
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CITY OF PLANO, TX 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES: 
 
The City has contractual commitments of $21,812,502 in the Capital Projects Funds, $6,544,915 in the 
Water and Sewer Fund, and $456,890 in the Municipal Drainage Fund.  These commitments are for 
construction of various projects and will be funded primarily from general obligation bond proceeds in the 
Capital Projects Funds, operating revenues in the Water and Sewer Fund and revenue bond proceeds in the 
Municipal Drainage Fund. 
 
Various claims and lawsuits are pending in which the City is involved.  Included among the various actions 
are those for which the discovery process is currently underway or which have yet to proceed to trial.  
Outside of those claims accrued by the City; it is the opinion of City management that the ultimate outcome 
of all other lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the City's financial position. 
 
The City participates in a number of federal and state assisted grant programs.  These programs are subject 
to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives.  Any liability for reimbursement which 
may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be material. 
 
10. SELF INSURANCE: 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees, and natural disasters.  The City maintains a self-insurance 
program for general liability, public officials' errors and omission, police professional liability, property loss 
and workers' compensation.  The Property/Liability Loss Internal Service Fund has been established to pay 
identified claims and judgments, maintain loss reserves and purchase insurance coverage as required.  
Claims for property loss over $100,000 per occurrence and for workers' compensation over $500,000 per 
occurrence are covered by private insurance companies.  There were no significant reductions in coverage 
in the past fiscal year and there were no settlements exceeding insurance coverage in each of the past three 
fiscal years. 
 
Group medical benefits are paid from the Health Claims Internal Service Fund, which has an annually 
negotiated stop loss provision.  Revenues are recognized from payroll deductions for employee dependent 
coverage and from City contributions for employee coverage. 
 
The liabilities for insurance claims reported in each of the funds are based on Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to 
the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the 
date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.  These liabilities 
include an estimate for incurred but not reported claims.  Change in each fund’s claims liability amount in 
fiscal 2009 and 2008 were: 
 

  Liability Current Year Claims   
  Beginning And Changes in Claim Liability 

Fund  Of Year Estimates Payments End of Year 
2009:      
Property/Liability Loss $ 3,464,051 2,820,016 2,571,093 3,712,974
Health Claims  4,078,422 17,795,454 17,897,814 3,976,062
   
  Total $ 7,542,473 20,615,470 20,468,907 7,689,036
   
2008:      
Property/Liability Loss $ 3,546,073 2,158,070 2,240,092 3,464,051
Health Claims  3,165,083 18,333,342 17,420,003 4,078,422
   
  Total $ 6,711,156 20,491,412 19,660,095 7,542,473
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CITY OF PLANO, TX 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

11. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS: 
 

In June 2008, GASB issued Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative 
Instruments, which establishes accounting and financial recognition, measurement and disclosure reporting 
requirements for derivative instruments to provide transparency to those transactions.  This statement is 
effective for the City’s financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2009.  The adoption of this 
statement has no impact on the City’s financial statements.   
 
In March 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions, which establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements to improve the usefulness of 
information about fund balance by providing clearer, more structured fund balance classifications and 
clarifying the definitions of existing governmental fund types.  Fund balance amounts will be reported in the 
following classifications: restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.  This statement is effective for 
financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2010.  The City is in the process of reviewing and 
evaluating this statement and it’s potential impact on the City’s financial statements. 
 
In April 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 56, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in the AICPA Statements on Auditing Standards.  This statement incorporates into GASB 
authoritative literature accounting and financial reporting guidance on related party transactions, going 
concern considerations and subsequent events previously only contained in the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) auditing literature.  The requirements of this statement are effective 
upon issuance and have no impact on the City’s financial statements. 
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

 
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for 
particular purposes. 
 
CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION FUND- to account for any monies taken into police custody as a result of police 
investigation.  These monies are to be spent only on law enforcement activities as provided by state statue. 
 
GRANT FUND- to account for monies received from other governmental agencies. 
 
CATV FUND- to account for monies received for local access programming, under conditions contained within 
the franchise agreement with AT&T Broadband. 
 
INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BOND AUTHORITY- to account for the fees for issuance of Industrial Revenue 
Bonds. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS- to account for 9-1-1 reserve fund monies received from wireless 
communication fees to be used for related 9-1-1 services; and intergovernmental radio fund fees collected under 
an interlocal agreement for a joint communication system between the cities of Plano, Allen and Frisco, the fees 
are used to pay maintenance expenses of the system; and wireline fees and reporting for 9-1-1 expenditures. 
 
MUNICIPAL COURT – to account for building security fund monies received from conviction of misdemeanor 
fees to be used to provide for the security and housing of municipal courts; teen court fees collected from teens 
requesting teen court, these monies are used to cover the costs of administering teen court; municipal court 
technology state fees collected with each citation that has resulted from a conviction; and judicial efficiency  
state fees collected for payment on any part of a judgment on or after the 31st date on which a judgment is 
entered where one-half is remitted to the state, four-tenths is retained locally with no restriction, while one-tenth 
is used for the purpose of improving judicial efficiency.    
 
REBATE FUND- to account for excess arbitrage earnings of the City’s bond proceeds. 
 
MEMORIAL LIBRARY FUND- to account for monies received in support of the City’s library. 
 
SEIZED ASSETS FUND- to account for the seizure and disposition of assets confiscated by local law 
enforcement agencies. 
 
LIBRARIES– to account for library training lab monies received from the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation for 
the establishment of a library training lab; and Sproles library fund monies received in support of the City’s 
library. 
 
ANIMAL SHELTER DONATIONS- to account for donations to assist the animal shelter. 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

 
The Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of 
major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary type funds). 
 
The City’s nonmajor Capital Projects Funds are as follows: 
 
DART- to account for the financing and construction of street modifications necessary to accommodate the 
public transportation system.  Funds are provided through the DART Local Assistance Program. 
 
SPRING CREEKWALK- to account for the financing and construction of the Spring Creekwalk project.  Funds 
are provided primarily through contributions by participating citizens. 
 
PARK SERVICES- to account for building permit fees exclusively for the acquisition and development of new 
neighborhood and parks. 
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Industrial
Criminal Revenue Public Safety

Investigation Grant CATV Bond Auth. Communications
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 177,646$              194,937$              39,261$                2,420$                  1,339,366$           
Investments 1,157,593             1,269,644             255,837                15,771                  8,727,684             
Receivables (net of allowance  for uncollectible)

Accounts -                             1,219                    14,230                  -                             -                             
Accrued interest 6,055                    6,641                    1,338                    82                          45,649                  
Other -                             955,228                -                             -                             -                             

Due from other funds -                             1,265                    -                             -                             -                             
Due from other governments 4,180                    570,201                -                             -                             95,030                  
Prepaid items and other assets -                             2,465                    215                        -                             -                             

Total Assets 1,345,474             3,001,600           310,881              18,273                 10,207,729         

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,041                    30,797                  31,632                  -                             15,463                  
Accrued liabilities 31                          355                        24,871                  -                             -                             
Contracts payable -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Deferred revenue -                             1,198,793             -                             -                             -                             
Due to other funds -                             508,380                -                             -                             -                             
Due to other governments -                             -                             -                             -                             179,024                
Retainage payable -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Seized assets payable -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

Total Liabilities 1,072                    1,738,325             56,503                  -                             194,487                

Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Reserved for prepaid items and other assets -                             2,465                    215                        -                             -                             
Reserved for capital projects -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Unreserved, designated for special revenue funds -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Unreserved, undesignated 1,344,402             1,260,810             254,163                18,273                  10,013,242           

Total fund balances 1,344,402             1,263,275             254,378                18,273                  10,013,242           

1,345,474$           3,001,600$          310,881$             18,273$                10,207,729$        

Special Revenue

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance
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Municipal Memorial Seized Animal Shelter
Court Rebate Library Assets Libraries Donations

883,236$              197,637$              46,120$                19,367$                25,044$                27,538$                
5,755,412             1,287,859             300,533                126,205                163,193                179,442                

340,536                -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
30,103                  6,736                    1,572                    660                        853                        938                        

-                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
-                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

4,791                    -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
-                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

7,014,078             1,492,232             348,225                146,232              189,090              207,918              

152,225                42,165                  7,659                    -                             -                             -                             
714,930                -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             

-                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
-                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
-                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
-                             962,072                -                             -                             -                             -                             
-                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
-                             -                             -                             146,232                -                             -                             

867,155                1,004,237             7,659                    146,232                -                             -                             

-                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
-                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
-                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
-                             487,995                340,566                -                             -                             -                             

6,146,923             -                             -                             -                             189,090                207,918                
6,146,923             487,995                340,566                -                             189,090                207,918                

7,014,078$           1,492,232$           348,225$              146,232$             189,090$             207,918$             

(continued)
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
(continued)

Total
Nonmajor

Spring Park Governmental
DART Creekwalk Services Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 102,321$      3,150$           745,271$     3,803,314$           
Investments 666,754        20,524           4,856,394    24,782,845           
Receivables (net of allowance  for uncollectible)

Accounts -                     -                      -                   355,985                
Accrued interest 3,487            107                 25,401         129,622                
Other -                     -                      -                   955,228                

Due from other funds -                     -                      -                   1,265                    
Due from other governments -                     -                      -                   674,202                
Prepaid items and other assets -                     -                      -                   2,680                    

Total Assets 772,562        23,781         5,627,066  30,705,141         

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable -                     -                      -                   280,982                
Accrued liabilities -                     -                      -                   740,187                
Contracts payable -                     -                      3,000           3,000                    
Deferred revenue -                     -                      -                   1,198,793             
Due to other funds -                     -                      -                   508,380                
Due to other governments -                     -                      -                   1,141,096             
Retainage payable -                     -                      2,235           2,235                    
Seized assets payable -                     -                      -                   146,232                

Total Liabilities -                     -                      5,235           4,020,905             

Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances 630,553        -                      370,538       1,001,091             
Reserved for prepaid items and other assets -                     -                      -                   2,680                    
Reserved for capital projects -                     23,781           5,251,293    5,275,074             
Unreserved, designated for special revenue funds -                     -                      -                   828,561                
Unreserved, undesignated 142,009        -                      -                   19,576,830           

Total fund balances 772,562        23,781           5,621,831    26,684,236           

772,562$      23,781$        5,627,066$ 30,705,141$        Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Capital Projects
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Industrial
Criminal Revenue Public Safety

Investigation Grant CATV Bond Auth. Communications
REVENUES
Fines and forfeitures 260,469$      -$             -$             -$             -$                      
Contributions -               -               -               -               -                       
Intergovernmental 27,478          2,319,855     -               -               78,125                  
Fees for services -               -                   421,647        -               1,298,579             
Investment income 17,404          19,014          5,853            280               151,020                
Miscellaneous 58,569          259,285        7                  -               -                       

Total revenues 363,920        2,598,154     427,507        280               1,527,724             

EXPENDITURES
General government -               -               -               -               -                       
Police 27,478 328,239        -               -               187,190                
Fire -               268,658        -               -               15,506                  
Libraries -               110,491        -               -               -                       
Development -               1,272,509     -               -               -                       
Public services and operations -               -               897,315 -               22,907                  
Sustainability & environmental services -               300,339        -               -               -                       
Capital outlay -               364,118        (1,942) -               350,452                

Total expenditures 27,478          2,644,354     895,373        -               576,055                
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 336,442        (46,200)         (467,866)       280               951,669                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in -               -               383,769        -               -                       

Total other financing sources -               -               383,769        -               -                       
Net change in fund balances 336,442        (46,200)         (84,097)         280               951,669                

Fund balances-beginning 1,007,960     1,309,475     338,475        17,993          9,061,573             
1,344,402$   1,263,275$  254,378$     18,273$       10,013,242$         Fund balances-ending

Special Revenue

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
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Municipal Memorial Animal Shelter
Court Rebate Library Libraries Donations

2,404,588$   -               -               -               -                    
-               -               51,091          1,575            67,538              
-               -               -               -               -                    

1,045,532     -               -               -               -                    
90,804          20,244          5,953            2,947            3,227                

-               3,045            -               -               -                    
3,540,924     23,289          57,044          4,522            70,765              

-               88,925 -               -               -                    
2,535,188 -               -               -               -                    

-               -               -               -               -                    
-               -               -               4,434 -                    
-               -               -               -               -                    
-               -               -               -               43,080              
-               -               -               -               -                    

7,982            -               92,991 1,300            -                    
2,543,170     88,925          92,991          5,734            43,080              

997,754        (65,636)         (35,947)         (1,212)           27,685              

-               498,873        -               -               -                    
-               498,873        -               -               -                    

997,754        433,237        (35,947)         (1,212)           27,685              
5,149,169     54,758          376,513        190,302        180,233            
6,146,923$   487,995$      340,566$      189,090$      207,918$          

(continued)
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(continued)

Total
Nonmajor

Spring Park Governmental
DART Creekwalk Services Funds

REVENUES
Fines and forfeitures -$               -$               -$             2,665,057$            
Contributions -                 -                 -               120,204                 
Intergovernmental -                 -                 -               2,425,458              
Fees for services -                 -                 75,266          2,841,024              
Investment income 11,855           366                87,969          416,936                 
Miscellaneous -                 -                 -               320,906                 

Total revenues 11,855           366                163,235        8,789,585              

EXPENDITURES
General government -                 -                 -               88,925
Police -                 -                 -               3,078,095
Fire -                 -                 -               284,164
Libraries -                 -                 -               114,925
Development -                 -                 -               1,272,509              
Public services and operations -                 -                 -               963,302
Environmental waste services -                 -                 -               300,339                 
Capital outlay -                 -                 341,697 1,156,598

Total expenditures -                 -                 341,697        7,258,857              
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures 11,855           366                (178,462)       1,530,728              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in -                 -                 -               882,642                 

Total other financing sources -                 -                 -               882,642                 
Net change in fund balances 11,855           366                (178,462)       2,413,370              

Fund balances-beginning 760,707         23,415           5,800,293     24,270,866            
772,562$       23,781$        5,621,831$  26,684,236$         

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Fund balances-ending

Capital Projects
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE-GAAP BASIS
DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Variance with
Final Budget - 

 Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
  Property taxes 36,956,430$              36,956,430$              37,052,595$       96,165$                   
  Investment income 600,000                     425,000                     368,791              (56,209)                   
  Miscellaneous 73,736                       238,425                     238,425              -                          

Total Revenues 37,630,166                37,619,855                37,659,811          39,956                     
 

EXPENDITURES:
  Principal retirement 25,645,000                25,645,000                25,645,000         -                          
  Interest and fiscal charges 15,971,305                15,216,886                15,037,063         179,823                   

Total Expenditures 41,616,305                40,861,886                40,682,063          179,823                   
  

 Deficiency Of Revenues
  Under Expenditures (3,986,139)                (3,242,031)                (3,022,252)           219,779                   

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
  Bond proceeds-refunding -                            -                            12,370,000         -                          
  Escrow payment-refunding -                            -                            (12,428,331)        -                          
  Premium from sale of bonds -                            -                            4,616                  4,616                       
  Transfers in 834,120                     834,120                     834,120              -                          

Total Other Financing Sources: 834,120                     834,120                     780,405               4,616                       

 Deficiency Of Revenues And
  Other Sources Under Expenditures (3,152,019)                (2,407,911)                (2,241,847)           224,395                   

FUND BALANCE, October 1 5,491,973                  5,491,973                  5,491,973           -                          

FUND BALANCE, September 30 2,339,954$                3,084,062$                3,250,126$          224,395$                 

 

Budgeted Amounts
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

 
Following are the nonmajor Enterprise Funds: 
 
CIVIC CENTER FUND- to account for the convention and tourism activities of the City’s Civic Center. 
 
MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSE FUND- to account for operation of the City’s golf course, including administration, 
operation and maintenance.  All costs are financed through fees charged to patrons. 
 
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FUND- to account for the rental properties of the Downtown Center projects. 
 
DOWNTOWN CENTER DEVELOPMENT FUND- to account for the construction of a multi-use project in the 
City’s downtown area. 
 
RECREATION REVOLVING FUND- to account for recreational programs and activities which are offered to 
groups and individuals on a fee basis.  Fees are adjusted periodically to cover the cost of providing each 
program.   
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Civic
Center

Municipal
Golf Course

Property
Management

Downtown Center 
Development

Recreation 
Revolving

 Total Nonmajor
Enterprise Funds 

ASSETS
    Cash and cash equivalents 375,144$            16,778$             62,260$             18,720$                       184,074$           656,976$                         
    Investments 2,416,456           109,328             405,703             121,982                       1,197,196          4,250,665                        
    Receivables - 
      Accounts 375,066              4,335                 -                     -                               11,408               390,809                           
      Accrued Interest 12,639                572                    2,122                 638                              6,262                 22,233                             
      Other -                      -                    1,551                 -                               2,252                 3,803                               
    Prepaid expenses & other assets 32,568                -                    -                     -                               16,107               48,675                             
    Capital assets:
       Land 2,359,859           595,296             1,333,325          36,999                         -                    4,325,479                        
       Buildings 11,354,841         2,427,383          171,766             -                               -                    13,953,990                      
       Improvements other than buildings 790,021              1,247,352          15,875               -                               -                    2,053,248                        
       Equipment 1,587,828           159,037             -                     -                               450,597             2,197,462                        
       Furniture and fixtures 312,206              80,381               -                     -                               73,873               466,460                           
          Less accumulated depreciation (12,672,866)        (1,963,062)         (176,529)            -                               (516,986)            (15,329,443)                     
             Total capital assets (net of 
                accumulated depreciation) 3,731,889           2,546,387          1,344,437          36,999                         7,484                 7,667,196                        
               Total assets 6,943,762           2,677,400          1,816,073          178,339                       1,424,783          13,040,357                      

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
    Accounts payable 246,088              9,171                 10,990               -                               56,364               322,613                           
    Accrued liabilities 186,484              13,111               -                     -                               57,476               257,071                           
    Deferred revenue 182,612              -                    -                     -                               504,751             687,363                           
    Due to other funds 1,501                  -                    -                     -                               209                    1,710                               
    Customer deposits -                      9,112                 10,467               -                               190,695             210,274                           
    Liability for compensated absences 58,106                17,100               -                     -                               41,965               117,171                           
       Total current liabilities 674,791              48,494               21,457               -                               851,460             1,596,202                        

Noncurrent liabilities:
    Liability for compensated absences 418,783              77,398               -                     -                               146,327             642,508                           
       Total noncurrent liabilities 418,783              77,398               -                     -                               146,327             642,508                           
         Total liabilities 1,093,574           125,892             21,457               -                               997,787             2,238,710                        

NET ASSETS
    Invested in capital assets
          (net of related debt) 3,711,977           2,546,387          1,344,437          36,999                         7,484                 7,647,284                        
    Unrestricted 2,138,211           5,121                 450,179             141,340                       419,512             3,154,363                        
    Total Net Assets 5,850,188$         2,551,508$        1,794,616$        178,339$                     426,996$           10,801,647$                    

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Civic
Center

Municipal
Golf Course

Property
Management

Downtown Center 
Development

Recreation 
Revolving

 Total Nonmajor
Enterprise Funds 

Operating revenues:
   Charges for sales and services:
       Service charges 2,430,881$         792,753$          42,309$                68,127$                        3,279,909$         6,613,979$                       
       Miscellaneous charges 2,977                  -                    -                        -                                45,845                48,822                               
          Total operating revenues 2,433,858           792,753            42,309                  68,127                          3,325,754           6,662,801                          

Operating expenses:
       Personal services 2,723,779           465,981            -                        -                                1,372,013           4,561,773                          
       Contractual services 2,987,044           198,661            30,944                  47,917                          1,572,162           4,836,728                          
       Supplies 993,009              60,002              315                       -                                232,334              1,285,660                          
       Depreciation 606,769              160,537            794                       -                                4,107                  772,207                             
       Miscellaneous 89,860                1,594                -                        -                                27,009                118,463                             
          Total operating expenses 7,400,461           886,775            32,053                  47,917                          3,207,625           11,574,831                       
             Operating income (loss) (4,966,603)          (94,022)             10,256                  20,210                          118,129              (4,912,030)                        

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
       Investment income 52,196                708                    7,048                    1,873                            19,291                81,116                               
       Hotel/motel tax 3,951,890           -                    -                        -                                -                      3,951,890                          
       Miscellaneous 5,271                  -                    -                        -                                -                      5,271                                 
          Total nonoperating revenue 4,009,357           708                    7,048                    1,873                            19,291                4,038,277                          
             Income (loss) before transfers (957,246)             (93,314)             17,304                  22,083                          137,420              (873,753)                           
Transfers out (1,187,288)          (44,550)             -                        -                                (155,524)             (1,387,362)                        
          Change in net assets (2,144,534)          (137,864)           17,304                  22,083                          (18,104)               (2,261,115)                        
       Total net assets-beginning 7,994,722           2,689,372         1,777,312             156,256                        445,100              13,062,762                       
       Total net assets-ending 5,850,188$         2,551,508$       1,794,616$           178,339$                     426,996$            10,801,647$                     

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Civic
Center

Municipal
Golf Course

Property
Management

Downtown Center 
Development

Recreation 
Revolving

Total Nonmajor
Enterprise Funds 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
  ACTIVITIES
    Cash received from customers 2,637,107$      795,947$         44,634$           68,127$                    3,343,495$      6,889,310$                      
    Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (4,059,033)       (274,070)          (21,110)            (47,917)                     (1,907,473)       (6,309,603)                      
    Cash payments to employees for services (2,717,413)       (490,301)          -                   -                            (1,324,395)       (4,532,109)                      
       Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
         operating activities (4,139,339)       31,576             23,524             20,210                      111,627           (3,952,402)                      

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES
    Hotel/motel tax 3,951,890        -                   -                   -                            -                   3,951,890                        
    Transfers to other funds (1,187,288)       (44,550)            -                   -                            (155,524)          (1,387,362)                      
    Repayments to other funds 1,501               -                   -                   -                            209                  1,710                              
       Net cash provided (used) by 
         noncapital financing activities 2,766,103        (44,550)            -                   -                            (155,315)          2,566,238                        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES
    Acquisition and construction of capital assets (132,318)          -                   -                   -                            -                   (132,318)                         
    Proceeds from insurance damages 5,271               -                   -                   -                            -                   5,271                              
       Net cash used by capital and related
         financing activities (127,047)          -                   -                   -                            -                   (127,047)                         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
    Purchase of investment securities (2,416,456)       (109,328)          (405,703)          (121,982)                   (1,197,196)       (4,250,665)                      
    Proceeds from sale and maturities of
      investment securities 607,537           19,931             63,159             17,160                      202,646           910,433                          
    Interest on investments 46,206             294                  5,317               1,319                        14,487             67,623                            
       Net cash used by 
         investing activities (1,762,713)       (89,103)            (337,227)          (103,503)                   (980,063)          (3,272,609)                      

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,262,996)       (102,077)          (313,703)          (83,293)                     (1,023,751)       (4,785,820)                      

Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 3,638,140        118,855           375,963           102,013                    1,207,825        5,442,796                        

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 375,144$         16,778$           62,260$           18,720$                    184,074$         656,976$                         

 Non-cash disclosure: 

    Increase in fair value of investments 1,893               120$                493$                156$                         1,381$             4,043$                            

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
(continued)

Civic
Center

Municipal
Golf Course

Property
Management

Downtown Center 
Development

Recreation 
Revolving

Total Nonmajor
Enterprise Funds 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
  CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

    Operating income (loss) (4,966,603)$     (94,022)$          10,256$               20,210$                    118,129$         (4,912,030)$                  

    Adjustments to reconcile operating income
       to net cash provided by operating activities:
      Depreciation 606,769           160,537           794                      -                            4,107               772,207                        
    Change in assets and liabilities:
    (Increase) decrease in-
      Accounts receivable 197,736           3,194               2,325                   -                            5,233               208,488                        
      Other receivable -                   -                   -                       -                            (301)                 (301)                              
      Prepaid expenses & other assets (7,198)              -                   -                       -                            (13,316)            (20,514)                         
    Increase (decrease) in-
      Accounts payable 18,078             (13,813)            10,149                 -                            (62,351)            (47,937)                         
      Accrued liabilities 14,666             (2,764)              -                       -                            11,969             23,871                          
      Liability for compensated absences (8,300)              (21,556)            -                       -                            36,396             6,540                            
      Customer deposits -                   -                   -                       -                            4,377               4,377                            
      Deferred revenue 5,513               -                   -                       -                            7,384               12,897                          
    Total adjustments 827,264           125,598           13,268                 -                            (6,502)              959,628                        

    Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (4,139,339)$     31,576$           23,524$               20,210$                    111,627$         (3,952,402)$                  

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

 
Internal Service Funds accounts for the financing of goods or services provided by one department for another.   
 
The City has six Internal Service Funds as follows: 
 
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE FUND- to account for the cost of operating and maintaining automotive and 
other equipment used by City departments.  Service charges are billed to departments on a monthly basis to 
cover all expenses of the fund, including depreciation  of furniture and fixtures, machinery and equipment 
necessary to provide maintenance services and for replacement of the fleet. 
 
OFFICE SERVICES FUND-to account for the cost of operating a centralized print shop, which performs printing 
and copying services, as well as interoffice mail delivery and other services, for City departments.  Monthly 
charges are billed to departments to cover costs, including depreciation of furniture and equipment necessary to 
provide services. 
 
MUNICIPAL WAREHOUSE FUND- to account for the operation of a central warehouse facility which provides 
the capability of storing and distributing in volume supplies and materials used by City departments.  An 
overhead charge is applied to the purchase price of all materials handled to cover the operating costs, including 
the cost of goods sold. 
 
TECHNOLOGY SERVICES FUND- to account for the data processing and information systems.  Charges for 
software, hardware and maintenance of the systems are billed to the user funds. 
 
PROPERTY/LIABILITY LOSS FUND- to account for the operation of a self-insurance program for general 
liability, public officials errors and omission, police professional liability, property loss and worker’s 
compensation. 
 
HEALTH CLAIMS FUND- to account for the self-insurance operation of group accident and health insurance 
coverage for all City employees.  In addition to the basic insurance coverage provided, employees may 
purchase dependent coverage through payroll deductions.  Coverage is financed by billings to the departments 
and through employee payroll deductions. 
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
 COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Equipment Office Municipal
Maintenance Services Warehouse

ASSETS
     Cash & cash equivalents 2,212,300$     125$              19,202$              
     Investments 14,414,658     -                    124,472              
     Receivables    
      Accounts -                     868                136,322              
      115 trust -                     -                    -                         
      Accrued interest 75,394            -                    651                     
      Other -                     -                    -                         
     Due from other funds -                     55,838           -                         
     Due from other governments 31                  403                -                         
     Inventories 99,859            9,303             833,620              
     Prepaid items 1,477              -                    -                         
     Restricted assets:
       Cash & cash equivalents -                     -                    -                         
        Investments -                     -                    -                         
        Accrued interest receivable -                     -                    -                         
      Capital assets:
        Land 51,515            -                    -                         
        Buildings 5,264,915       -                    -                         
        Equipment 8,686,327       297,069         117,782              
        Furniture & fixtures 42,662            449                11,200                
        Rolling equipment 56,292,557     -                    -                         
        Less accumulated depreciation (51,061,019)    (251,358)        (124,452)             
          Total capital assets (net of 
                 accumulated depreciation) 19,276,957     46,160           4,530                  
Total Assets 36,080,676     112,697         1,118,797           

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
          Accounts payable 476,798          119,650         268,709              
          Accrued liabilities 80,714            7,892             14,960                
          Due to other funds 4,740,099       105,051         418                     
          Compensated absences 37,374            1,443             19,430                
          Liability for insurance claims -                     -                    -                         
          Total current liabilities 5,334,985       234,036         303,517              
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
          Compensated absences 68,282            11,419           17,719                
          Liability for insurance claims -                     -                    -                         
Total  Liabilities 5,403,267       245,455         321,236              

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Invested in capital assets 19,176,390     46,160           4,530                  
Unrestricted (deficit) 11,501,019     (178,918)        793,031              
Total net assets (deficit) 30,677,409$   (132,758)$      797,561$            

 AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
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Property/
Technology Liability Health

Services Loss Claims Total

1,653,592$           587,363$     1,476,739$    5,949,321$     
10,775,265           3,827,419    9,622,842     38,764,656     

   
-                           2,980           2,734            142,904          
-                           -                   93,878          93,878            

56,358                  20,019         50,331          202,753          
1,898                    -                   -                    1,898              

4,740,000             -                   -                    4,795,838       
-                           -                   -                    434                 
-                           -                   -                    942,782          

12,265                  1,350           200,499        215,591          

418,400                -                   -                    418,400          
2,726,414             -                   -                    2,726,414       

14,261                  -                   -                    14,261            

11,007                  -                   -                    62,522            
488,955                -                   -                    5,753,870       

31,103,804           548,560       -                    40,753,542     
65,390                  6,735           -                    126,436          

-                           -                   -                    56,292,557     
(20,702,617)          (555,295)      -                    (72,694,741)    

10,966,539           -                   -                    30,294,186     
31,364,992           4,439,131    11,447,023    84,563,316     

425,751                50,409         95,978          1,437,295       
186,516                170,520       -                    460,602          

538                       9,772           -                    4,855,878       
56,011                  20,547         -                    134,805          

-                           2,214,870    3,976,062     6,190,932       
668,816                2,466,118    4,072,040     13,079,512     

779,968                9,630           -                    887,018          
-                           1,498,104    -                    1,498,104       

1,448,784             3,973,852    4,072,040     15,464,634     

13,965,192           -                   -                    33,192,272     
15,951,016           465,279       7,374,983     35,906,410     
29,916,208$         465,279$     7,374,983$    69,098,682$   
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN  FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Equipment Office Municipal
Maintenance Services Warehouse

REVENUES:
  Charges for services 13,817,437$     1,002,698$  3,688,169$    
  Miscellaneous 91                     9,843           16,150           
Total operating revenues 13,817,528       1,012,541    3,704,319      

EXPENSES:
  Personal services 2,430,972         245,213       563,883         
  Contractual services 872,908            292,646       36,580           
  Supplies 2,442,283         311,825       3,189,411      
  Claims expense -                    -               -                
  Depreciation 5,820,562         3,255           605                
  Other post employment benefits -                    -               -                
  Miscellaneous 9,313                917              29,894           
Total operating expenses 11,576,038       853,856       3,820,373      

Operating income (loss) 2,241,490         158,685       (116,054)       

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
  Investment income 170,908            -               421                
  Gain (loss) on capital asset disposal 460,811 -               50,770           

   Intergovernmental revenues 1,538                -               -                
  Miscellaneous 288                   -               -                
Total nonoperating revenues 633,545            -               51,191           

Income (loss) before transfers 2,875,035         158,685       (64,863)         
Transfers out -                    -               -                
    Change in net assets 2,875,035         158,685       (64,863)         

Total net assets (deficit)-beginning 27,802,374     (291,443)    862,424         
Total net assets (deficit)-ending 30,677,409$    (132,758)$   797,561$       
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Property/
Technology Liability Health

Services Loss Claims Total

14,266,227$ 3,746,443$  29,655,779$ 66,176,753$ 
5,733            74,974         -                106,791        

14,271,960   3,821,417    29,655,779   66,283,544   

5,136,403     457,060       -                8,833,531     
6,430,974     1,817,675    2,569,193     12,019,976   

893,144        18,097         -                6,854,760     
-                2,820,016    17,795,454   20,615,470   

1,472,836     -               -                7,297,258     
-                -               6,031,883     6,031,883     

2,366            1,817           -                44,307          
13,935,723   5,114,665    26,396,530   61,697,185   

336,237        (1,293,248)   3,259,249     4,586,359     

270,553        67,805         135,894        645,581        
(8,918)           -               -                502,663        

-                -               -                1,538            
9,200            -               -                9,488            

270,835        67,805         135,894        1,159,270     

607,072        (1,225,443)   3,395,143     5,745,629     
(1,450,000)    -               -                (1,450,000)    

(842,928)       (1,225,443)   3,395,143     4,295,629     

30,759,136   1,690,722    3,979,840     64,803,053 
29,916,208$ 465,279$     7,374,983$   69,098,682$
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

 Equipment Office Municipal
Maintenance Services Warehouse

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers 13,817,625$  955,506$     3,573,384$  
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (3,649,362)     (540,105)      (3,145,544)   
Cash payments to employees for services (2,429,402)     (243,423)      (572,344)      

Net cash provided (used) by operating
  activities 7,738,861      171,978       (144,504)      

      ACTIVITIES:
 Due (to) from other funds 4,740,000      105,051       -               
 Repayments (to) from other other funds 226,133         (277,029)      -               
 Transfers (to) from other funds -                 -               -               

  Grant receipts 1,538             -               -               
   Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
    financing activities 4,967,671      (171,978)      -               

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of 

capital assets (2,708,549)     -               -               
Proceeds on sale of equipment 482,812         -               50,770         
Proceeds from insurance damages 288                -               -               

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
  financing activities (2,225,449)     -               50,770         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
 Purchase of investment securities (14,414,658)   -               (124,472)      
Proceeds from sales and maturities   

of investment securities 886,274         -               33,954         
Interest on investments 84,045           -               162              
Net cash used  by investing

activities (13,444,339)   -               (90,356)        

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents (2,963,256)     -               (184,090)      

Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 5,175,556      125              203,292       

2,212,300$   125$           19,202$       

Non-cash disclosure:
Increase in fair value of investments 23,636$         $             - 86$              
Transfer in of capital assets -                 -               -               

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
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Property/
Technology Liability Health

Services Loss Claims Total

14,277,638$ 3,938,071$  29,561,565$   66,123,789$   
(7,381,546) (4,736,241) (26,490,983)   (45,943,781)   
(5,030,451)    (468,668) -                 (8,744,288)     

1,865,641     (1,266,838)   3,070,582       11,435,720     

(4,740,000)    9,369           -                 114,420          
-                -               -                 (50,896)          

(1,450,000)    -               -                 (1,450,000)     
-                -               -                 1,538              

(6,190,000)    9,369           -                 (1,384,938)     

(1,493,098)    -               -                 (4,201,647)     
-                -               -                 533,582          

9,200            -               -                 9,488              

(1,483,898)    -               -                 (3,658,577)     

(13,501,679)  (3,827,419)   (9,622,842)     (41,491,070)   
   

3,031,409     805,646       1,145,863       5,903,146       
231,273        55,393         88,257            459,130          

(10,238,997)  (2,966,380)   (8,388,722)     (35,128,794)   

(16,047,254)  (4,223,849)   (5,318,140)     (28,736,589)   

18,119,246   4,811,212    6,794,879       35,104,310     

2,071,992$   587,363$     1,476,739$     6,367,721$    

11,259$        3,704$         13,280$          51,965$          
65,707          -               -                 65,707            

(continued)

88



CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
(continued)

Equipment Office Municipal
Maintenance Services Warehouse

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss) 2,241,490$    158,685$     (116,054)$    

Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expenses 5,820,562      3,255           605              
Changes in assets and liabilities-
(Increase) decrease in
  Accounts receivable -                 (794)             (131,353)      
  Due from other funds -                 (55,838)        -               
  Due from other governments (2)                   (403)             -               
  Prepaid items (486)               215              -               
  Inventories 39,659           5,705           64,916         
Increase (decrease) in
  Accounts payable (364,031)        59,363         45,425         
  Accrued liabilities 3,971             764              (1,374)          
  Due to other funds 99                  -               418              
  Compensated absences (2,401)            1,026           (7,087)          
  Liability for insurance claims -                 -               -               
Total adjustments 5,497,371      13,293         (28,450)        

Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities 7,738,861$   171,978$    (144,504)$    
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Property/
Technology Liability Health

Services Loss Claims Total

336,237$      (1,293,248)$ 3,259,249$     4,586,359$     

1,472,836     -               -                 7,297,258       

5,140            116,251       (94,214)          (104,970)        
-                -               -                 (55,838)          
-                -               -                 (405)               

10,736          (995)             (64,374)          (54,904)          
-                -               -                 110,280          

(65,798) (326,564)      72,281            (579,324)        
15,452          563              -                 19,376            

538               403              -                 1,458              
90,500          (12,171)        -                 69,867            

-                248,923       (102,360)        146,563          
1,529,404     26,410         (188,667)        6,849,361       

1,865,641$   (1,266,838)$ 3,070,582$     11,435,720$  
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AGENCY FUNDS 

 
DEVELOPERS’ ESCROW FUND- to account for escrow received from developers.  The escrow will be used for 
construction of improvements to be made by the City. 
 
UNCLAIMED PROPERTY FUND- to account for assets under $100, which have been issued by the City but 
remain unclaimed.  Disposition is made upon claim by rightful owners. 
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

 Developers'
Escrow 

Unclaimed
Property 

Total
Agency Funds 

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 326,318$           7,727$              334,045$            
Investments 2,126,378          50,353              2,176,731           
Accrued interest 11,122               263                   11,385                
Total Assets 2,463,818          58,343              2,522,161           

LIABILITIES
Developers' escrow liability 2,463,818          -                    2,463,818           
Unclaimed property payable -                     58,343              58,343                
Total Liabilities 2,463,818$        58,343$           2,522,161$        

Agency Funds
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

 Balance
September 30, 2008 Additions Deductions

Balance
September 30, 2009

Developers' Escrow Fund
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3,579,498$                -$            3,253,180$  326,318$                   
Investments 596,637                     1,529,741   -               2,126,378                  
Accrued interest receivable 8,415                        2,707          -               11,122                       

Total assets 4,184,550$                1,532,448$ 3,253,180$  2,463,818$                

LIABILITIES
Developers' escrow liability 4,184,550                  -              1,720,732    2,463,818                  

Total liabilities 4,184,550$                -$            1,720,732$  2,463,818$                

Unclaimed Property Fund
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 48,503$                     -$            40,776$       7,727$                       
Investments 8,084                        42,269        -               50,353                       
Accrued interest receivable 114                          149           -             263                          

Total assets 56,701$                     42,418$      40,776$       58,343$                     

LIABILITIES
Unclaimed property payable 56,701                       1,642          -               58,343                       

Total liabilities 56,701$                     1,642$        -$             58,343$                     

Total Fiduciary Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3,628,001$                -$            3,293,956$  334,045$                   
Investments 604,721                     1,572,010   -               2,176,731                  
Accrued interest receivable 8,529                       2,856        -             11,385                      

Total assets 4,241,251$                1,574,866$ 3,293,956$  2,522,161$                

LIABILITIES
Developers' escrow liability 4,184,550                  -              1,720,732    2,463,818                  
Unclaimed property payable 56,701                       1,642          -               58,343                       

Total liabilities 4,241,251$                1,642$        1,720,732$  2,522,161$                

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
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COMPONENT UNITS 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD- organized to account for various financial and administrative services 
and a majority of funding provided to the Board by the City.  The Board is legally separate from the City and 
does not appoint a majority of its governing board; however, the City Manager is a designated position on the 
Board and City Council appoints one member who must be a City Council Member to serve on the Board. 
 
TIF MALL- organized to account for a tax increment financing unit for project improvements within the City.  The 
City and Taubman Realty Group Limited Partnership entered into an agreement for the development of a 
regional mall. 
 
TIF EAST SIDE- organized to account for a tax increment financing unit for improvements related to the future 
development of East Plano. 
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Economic TIF TIF
Development Mall East Side Total

ASSETS
Current:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,883,424$       -$                 764,811$            2,648,235     
Investments 12,271,614       -                   5,009,788           17,281,402   
Receivables:

Accrued interest 64,185              -                   -                      64,185          
Noncurrent:

Capital assets, net 2,074                -                   4,005,866           4,007,940     
14,221,297       -                   9,780,465           24,001,762   

Current:
Accounts payable 7,552                -                   8,730                  16,282          
Accrued liabilities 21,145              -                   -                      21,145          
Due to other governments 403                   -                   -                      403               
Compensated absences 992                   -                   -                      992               

Long-term:
Notes payable -                    6,397,476        -                      6,397,476     
Compensated absences 144,761            -                   -                      144,761        

Total Liabilities 174,853            6,397,476        8,730                  6,581,059     

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Invested in capital assets

(net of related debt) 2,074                -                   4,005,866           4,007,940     
Unrestricted 14,044,370       (6,397,476)       5,765,869           13,412,763   

14,046,444$    (6,397,476)$    9,771,735$         17,420,703$

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

Total Net Assets (Deficit)

LIABILITIES

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS

Total Assets
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

 

REVENUES
Charges for services $ 6,144,218   $ -             $ -               $ 6,144,218    
Miscellaneous 16               -             -               16                

Total revenues 6,144,234   -             -               6,144,234    

EXPENSES
Personal services 592,986      -             -               592,986       
Contractual services 3,756,967   4,740,878   2,932,535    11,430,380  
Supplies 22,250        -             -               22,250         
Depreciation 3,133          -             335,159       338,292       
Miscellaneous 177,414      -             -               177,414       

Total operating expenses 4,552,750   4,740,878   3,267,694    12,561,322  

Operating income (loss) 1,591,484   (4,740,878) (3,267,694)   (6,417,088)   

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Property taxes -              4,526,434   3,519,027    8,045,461    
Investment income 199,383      -             -               199,383       
Interest expense -              (440,499)    (46,586)        (487,085)      

Total nonoperating revenues 199,383      4,085,935   3,472,441    7,757,759    

Change in net assets 1,790,867   (654,943)    204,747       1,340,671    
Total net assets (deficit)-beginning 12,255,577 (5,742,533) 9,566,988    16,080,032  

$ 14,046,444 $ (6,397,476) $ 9,771,735  $ 17,420,703

Total
Economic

Development
TIF
Mall

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Total net assets (deficit)-ending

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS

TIF
East Side
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

 Economic TIF TIF
Development Mall East Side Total

Cash received from customers 6,144,234$       $             - $             - 6,144,234$   
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (3,958,809)        (4,085,935)  (3,700,238)  (11,744,982)
Cash payments to employees for services (576,188)          -              -              (576,188)

Net cash provided (used) by operating
  activities 1,609,237         (4,085,935)  (3,700,238)  (6,176,936)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 

Property taxes -                   4,526,434    3,519,027    8,045,461     
Net cash provided by noncapital -                   4,526,434    3,519,027    8,045,461     
financing activities

Interest expense -                   (440,499)     (46,586)       (487,085)       
Net cash used for operating and related
financing activities -                   (440,499)     (46,586)       (487,085)       

 Purchase of investment securities (12,271,614)      -              (5,009,788)  (17,281,402)  
Proceeds from sales and maturities 

of investment securities 1,784,964         -              867,899      2,652,863     
Interest on investments 144,679            -              -              144,679        

Net cash used by investing
activities (10,341,971)      -              (4,141,889)  (14,483,860)  

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents (8,732,734)        -              (4,369,686)  (13,102,420)  

10,616,158       -              5,134,497    15,750,655   

1,883,424$       $             - 764,811$     2,648,235$   

Non-cash disclosure:
Capitalize interest on note payable -$                 440,499$     46,586$      487,085$      

Cash and cash equivalents, October 1

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Economic TIF TIF
Development Mall East Side Total

Operating income (loss) 1,591,484$    (4,740,878)$ (3,267,694)$ (6,417,088)$  

Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 3,133             -               335,159       338,292
Changes in assets and liabilities-
(Increase) decrease in
  Prepaid expenses 5,257             -               -               5,257
Increase (decrease) in
  Accounts payable (7,838)            -               8,730           892
  Notes payable -                 654,943       (776,433)      (121,490)
  Accrued liabilities 16,798           -               -               16,798
  Due to other governments 403 -               -               403
Total adjustments 17,753           654,943       (432,544)      240,152

1,609,237$   (4,085,935)$ (3,700,238)$ (6,176,936)$ Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

(continued)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE1

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009  (unaudited)

Governmental activities capital assets: 2009 2008
Land 107,064,055$          106,928,486$          
Construction in progress 175,665,557            180,710,351            
Buildings 124,645,356            96,054,185              
Improvements other than buildings 96,572,951              85,244,071              
Equipment 87,634,414              79,626,177              
Public art 1,696,740                1,648,740                
Infrastructure 900,435,524            879,883,057            

Total governmental funds capital assets 1,493,714,597$      1,430,095,067$       

Investments in governmental activities capital assets by source:
General fund 320,177,663$          283,018,384$          
Park improvements fund 96,572,951              85,244,071              
Special revenue fund 814,902                   968,464                   
Capital projects fund 1,076,149,081         1,060,864,148         

1,493,714,597$      1,430,095,067$       

1This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.  
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above 
amounts.  Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental
activities in the statement of net assets.
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY1

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009  (unaudited)

Land
 Construction
in Progress Buildings

 Improvements
Other Than Buildings Equipment Public Art  Infrastructure Total

Administrative Services:
City Council -$                     -$                       -$                      -$                                4,301$             -$                   -$                         4,301$                   
Administration -                       -                         -                         -                                  78,044             -                      -                            78,044                   
Legal -                       -                         -                         -                                  119,781           -                      -                            119,781                 
City Secretary -                       -                         -                         -                                  43,804             -                      -                            43,804                   
Internal Audit -                       -                         -                         -                                  11,944             -                      -                            11,944                   
Finance -                       -                         -                         -                                  26,238             -                      -                            26,238                   
Financial Systems Administration -                       -                         -                         -                                  10,148             -                      -                            10,148                   
Accounting -                       -                         -                         -                                  122,723           -                      -                            122,723                 
Budget -                       -                         -                         -                                  117,558           -                      -                            117,558                 
Administrative Services -                       -                         -                         -                                  12,636             -                      -                            12,636                   
Purchasing -                       -                         -                         -                                  50,998             -                      -                            50,998                   
Human Resources -                       -                         -                         -                                  119,789           -                      -                            119,789                 

-                       -                         -                         -                                  717,964           -                      -                            717,964                 

Police:
Municipal Court Judge 2,780,978        -                         6,178,741         -                                  43,209             -                      -                            9,002,928              
Municipal Court Administration -                       -                         782                    -                                  474,392           -                      -                            475,174                 
Public Safety Administration -                       -                         -                         -                                  2,144,719        -                      -                            2,144,719              
Community Response -                       -                         -                         -                                  17,446             -                      -                            17,446                   
Police 4,592,859        -                         14,762,324       -                                  9,708,043        -                      -                            29,063,226            
Emergency 911 -                       -                         368,383            -                                  5,315,345        -                      -                            5,683,728              

7,373,837        -                         21,310,230       -                                  17,703,154      -                      -                            46,387,221            

Fire: -                       
Fire 7,909,347        -                         17,512,646       -                                  8,445,624        -                      -                            33,867,617            
Fire-Civilian -                       -                         -                         -                                  24,254             -                      -                            24,254                   
Fire Marshal -                       -                         -                         -                                  76,262             -                      -                            76,262                   

7,909,347        -                         17,512,646       -                                  8,546,140        -                      -                            33,968,133            

Libraries:
Library Administration -                       -                         3,052                -                                  3,040,211        -                      -                            3,043,263              
Technical Services -                       -                         -                         -                                  15,119,037      -                      -                            15,119,037            
Harrington Library 1,244,216        -                         2,759,632         -                                  684,063           -                      -                            4,687,911              
Schimelpfenig Library 1,445,885        -                         3,199,362         -                                  247,977           -                      -                            4,893,224              
Haggard Library 1,551,303        -                         3,436,684         -                                  1,625,905        -                      -                            6,613,892              
Davis Library 2,046,883        -                         4,513,662         -                                  125,855           -                      -                            6,686,400              
Parr Library 1,757,104        -                         3,867,355         -                                  -                       -                      -                            5,624,459              

8,045,391        -                         17,779,747       -                                  20,843,048      -                      -                            46,668,186            

Development: 79,989             -                         51,782              -                                  -                       -                      -                            131,771                 
Building Administration -                       -                         -                         -                                  46,009             -                      -                            46,009                   
Building Maintenance -                       -                         287,304            -                                  676,665           -                      -                            963,969                 
Custodial Services -                       -                         -                         -                                  3,251               -                      -                            3,251                     
Engineering -                       -                         -                         -                                  146,865           -                      -                            146,865                 
Capital Projects Coordination -                       -                         -                         -                                  219,754           -                      -                            219,754                 
Development -                       -                         -                         -                                  28,898             -                      -                            28,898                   
Community Services Administration -                       -                         -                         -                                  37,915             -                      -                            37,915                   
Community Development Administration -                       -                         -                         -                                  283,760           -                      -                            283,760                 
Planning 60,961             -                         -                         -                                  989,656           -                      -                            1,050,617              
Transportation Engineering -                       -                         -                         -                                  93,671             -                      -                            93,671                   
Building Inspection -                       -                         -                         -                                  401,422           -                      -                            401,422                 

140,950           -                         339,086            -                                  2,927,866        -                      -                            3,407,902              

Public Services and Operations:
Public Information -                       -                         -                         -                                  887,227           -                      -                            887,227                 
Records Management -                       -                         -                         -                                  60,470             -                      -                            60,470                   
Environmental Health -                       -                         -                         -                                  223,028           -                      -                            223,028                 
Animal Control 101,571           -                         2,409,927         -                                  334,250           -                      -                            2,845,748              

101,571           -                         2,409,927         -                                  1,504,975        -                      -                            4,016,473              

1This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.  (continued)
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above 
amounts.  Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental
activities in the statement of net assets.

Function and Activity
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY1

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 (unaudited)
(continued)

Land
 Construction
in Progress Buildings

 Improvements
Other Than Buildings Equipment Public Art  Infrastructure Total

Parks and Recreation: 57,664,013      -                         -                         -                                  -                       -                      -                            57,664,013            
Parks and Recreation Administration -                       -                         -                         -                                  219,937           -                      -                            219,937                 
Park Administration -                       -                         -                         -                                  131,460           -                      -                            131,460                 
Park Planning -                       -                         -                         -                                  202,305           -                      -                            202,305                 
Park Development 2,059,268        -                         11,700              -                                  187,558           -                      -                            2,258,526              
Park Grounds Maintenance -                       -                         215,854            -                                  837,063           -                      -                            1,052,917              
Public Buildings Grounds Maintenance -                       -                         -                         -                                  116,158           -                      -                            116,158                 
Athletic Fields Grounds Maintenance -                       -                         -                         -                                  38,888             -                      -                            38,888                   
Championship Youth Ballpark -                       -                         -                         -                                  2,686               -                      -                            2,686                     
Median Maintenance -                       -                         -                         -                                  20,061             -                      -                            20,061                   
Creative Arts 25,797             -                         555,007            -                                  30,432             -                      611,236                 
Recreation Administration -                       -                         -                         -                                  362,775           -                      -                            362,775                 
Athletics 23,790             -                         -                         -                                  85,210             -                      -                            109,000                 
Special Activities -                       -                         -                         -                                  43,660             -                      -                            43,660                   
Aquatics -                       -                         1,490,714         -                                  148,106           -                      -                            1,638,820              
Tennis Center -                       -                         85,426              -                                  7,835               -                      -                            93,261                   
Senior Services 1,861,895        -                         4,129,627         -                                  156,123           -                      -                            6,147,645              
Recreation Centers 784,700           -                         34,629,124       -                                  1,563,049        -                      -                            36,976,873            
Park Improvements 4,741,467        -                         -                         96,572,951                 -                       -                      -                            101,314,418          

67,160,930      -                         41,117,452       96,572,951                 4,153,306        -                      -                            209,004,639          

General Government: 8,332,543        -                         24,176,268       -                                  20,054,456      -                      -                            52,563,267            
Enterprise Center -                       -                         -                         -                                  16,705             -                      -                            16,705                   
Productivity Bank -                       -                         -                         -                                  52,090             -                      -                            52,090                   
Downtown Advocacy -                       -                         -                         -                                  2,168               -                      -                            2,168                     
Volunteer Services -                       -                         -                         -                                  4,296               -                      -                            4,296                     
Tax Collections -                       -                         -                         -                                  302,069           -                      -                            302,069                 
Youth Advisory Committee -                       -                         -                         -                                  7,180               -                      -                            7,180                     
Telecommunications -                       -                         -                         -                                  425,506           -                      -                            425,506                 

8,332,543        -                         24,176,268       -                                  20,864,470      -                      -                            53,373,281            

Public Works: 6,947,956        -                         -                         -                                  -                       -                      -                            6,947,956              
Public Works Administration -                       -                         -                         -                                  191,548           -                      -                            191,548                 
Streets and Traffic Administration -                       -                         -                         -                                  2,744,200        -                      -                            2,744,200              
Streets 1,051,530        -                         -                         -                                  3,211,908        -                      -                            4,263,438              
Signals -                       -                         -                         -                                  410,145           -                      -                            410,145                 
Signs and Markings -                       -                         -                         -                                  903,158           -                      -                            903,158                 
Sign Shop -                       -                         -                         -                                  186,012           -                      -                            186,012                 
Street and ROW Coordination -                       -                         -                         -                                  678,856           -                      -                            678,856                 
Infrastructure -                       -                         -                         -                                  -                       -                      900,435,524        900,435,524          

7,999,486        -                         -                         -                                  8,325,827        -                      900,435,524        916,760,837          

Construction in Progress -                       175,665,557     -                         -                                  -                       -                      -                            175,665,557          
-                       175,665,557     -                         -                                  -                       -                      -                            175,665,557          

Public Art -                       -                         -                         -                                  -                       1,696,740      -                            1,696,740              
-                       -                         -                         -                                  -                       1,696,740      -                            1,696,740              

Other:
Non-departmental -                       -                         -                         -                                  2,047,664        -                            2,047,664              

-                       -                         -                         -                                  2,047,664        -                      -                            2,047,664              

Total governmental funds capital assets 107,064,055$  175,665,557$   124,645,356$   96,572,951$               87,634,414$    1,696,740$    900,435,524$      1,493,714,597$     

1This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.  
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above 
amounts.  Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental
activities in the statement of net assets.

Function and Activity
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY1

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009  (unaudited)

Governmental Funds
Capital Assets

September 30, 2008 Additions Deductions

Governmental Funds
Capital Assets

September 30, 2009

Administrative Services:
City Council 4,301$                          -$                      -$                         4,301$                          
Administration 78,044                          -                        -                           78,044                          
Legal 118,563                       7,984                6,766                   119,781                       
City Secretary 43,804                          -                        -                           43,804                          
Internal Audit 11,944                          -                        -                           11,944                          
Finance 26,238                          -                        -                           26,238                          
Financial Systems Administration 10,148                          -                        -                           10,148                          
Accounting 122,723                       -                        -                           122,723                       
Budget 117,558                       -                        -                           117,558                       
Administrative Services 12,636                          -                        -                           12,636                          
Purchasing 50,998                          -                        -                           50,998                          
Human Resources 119,789                       -                        -                           119,789                       

716,746                       7,984                6,766                   717,964                       

Police:
Municipal Court Judge 9,003,651                    -                        723                      9,002,928                    
Municipal Court Administration 395,469                       79,705             -                           475,174                       
Public Safety Administration 2,144,719                    -                        -                           2,144,719                    
Community Response 17,446                          -                        -                           17,446                          
Police 25,901,573                  3,253,577        91,924                 29,063,226                  
Emergency 911 5,333,276                    350,452           -                           5,683,728                    

42,796,134                  3,683,734        92,647                 46,387,221                  

Fire:
Fire 30,494,008                  3,541,049        167,440               33,867,617                  
Fire-Civilian 24,254                          -                        -                           24,254                          
Fire Marshal 76,262                          -                        -                           76,262                          

30,594,524                  3,541,049        167,440               33,968,133                  

Libraries:
Library Administration 2,955,607                    87,656             -                           3,043,263                    
Technical Services 14,021,519                  1,183,755        86,237                 15,119,037                  
Harrington Library 4,686,966                    945                   -                           4,687,911                    
Schimelpfenig Library 4,829,520                    82,187             18,483                 4,893,224                    
Haggard Library 6,633,476                    4,804                24,388                 6,613,892                    
Davis Library 6,606,086                    98,414             18,100                 6,686,400                    
Parr Library 5,624,459                    -                        -                           5,624,459                    

45,357,633                  1,457,761        147,208               46,668,186                  

Development: 131,771                       -                        -                           131,771                       
Building Administration 46,009                          -                        -                           46,009                          
Building Maintenance 774,700                       189,269           -                           963,969                       
Custodial Services 3,251                            -                        -                           3,251                            
Engineering 146,865                       56,453             56,453                 146,865                       
Capital Projects Coordination 219,754                       -                        -                           219,754                       
Development 28,898                          -                        -                           28,898                          
Community Services Administration 37,915                          -                        -                           37,915                          
Community Development Administration 285,151                       -                        1,391                   283,760                       
Planning 1,210,555                    -                        159,938               1,050,617                    
Transportation Engineering 93,671                          -                        -                           93,671                          
Building Inspection 401,422                       -                        -                           401,422                       

3,379,962                    245,722           217,782               3,407,902                    

Public Services and Operations:
Public Information 889,435                       -                        2,208                   887,227                       
Records Management 60,470                          -                        -                           60,470                          
Environmental Health 227,383                       -                        4,355                   223,028                       
Animal Control 2,842,264                    8,597                5,113                   2,845,748                    

4,019,552                    8,597                11,676                 4,016,473                    

1This schedule presents only the capital asset balan (continued) (continued)
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above 
amounts.  Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental
activities in the statement of net assets.

Function and Activity
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY1

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009  (unaudited)
(continued)

Governmental Funds
Capital Assets

September 30, 2008 Additions Deductions

Governmental Funds
Capital Assets

September 30, 2009

Parks and Recreation: 62,374,297                  31,183             -                           62,405,480                  
Parks and Recreation Administration 193,623                       26,314             -                           219,937                       
Park Administration 131,460                       10,452             10,452                 131,460                       
Park Planning 202,305                       1,000                1,000                   202,305                       
Park Development 2,255,229                    4,809                1,512                   2,258,526                    
Park Grounds Maintenance 1,017,417                    133,666           98,166                 1,052,917                    
Public Buildings Grounds Maintenance 116,158                       -                        -                           116,158                       
Athletic Fields Grounds Maintenance 38,888                          93,133             93,133                 38,888                          
Championship Youth Ballpark 2,686                            -                        -                           2,686                            
Median Maintenance 20,061                          -                        -                           20,061                          
Creative Arts 611,236                       1,500                1,500                   611,236                       
Recreation Administration 362,775                       -                        -                           362,775                       
Athletics 60,500                          49,500             1,000                   109,000                       
Special Activities 43,660                          -                        -                           43,660                          
Aquatics 1,638,820                    -                        -                           1,638,820                    
Tennis Center 93,261                          -                        -                           93,261                          
Senior Services 6,147,645                    -                        -                           6,147,645                    
Recreation Centers 14,791,746                  22,193,578      8,451                   36,976,873                  
Park Improvements 85,244,071                  11,328,880      -                           96,572,951                  

175,345,838                33,874,015      215,214               209,004,639                

General Government: 46,718,339                  5,867,808        22,880                 52,563,267                  
Enterprise Center 16,705                          -                        -                           16,705                          
Productivity Bank 52,090                          -                        -                           52,090                          
Downtown Advocacy 2,168                            -                        -                           2,168                            
Volunteer Services 4,296                            -                        -                           4,296                            
Tax Collections 302,069                       -                        -                           302,069                       
Youth Advisory Committee 7,180                            -                        -                           7,180                            
Telecommunications 425,506                       -                        -                           425,506                       

47,528,353                  5,867,808        22,880                 53,373,281                  

Public Works: 6,947,956                    -                        -                           6,947,956                    
Public Works Administration 191,548                       -                        -                           191,548                       
Streets and Traffic Administration 2,744,200                    -                        -                           2,744,200                    
Streets 4,004,638                    261,140           2,340                   4,263,438                    
Signals 410,145                       8,662                8,662                   410,145                       
Signs and Markings 903,158                       -                        -                           903,158                       
Sign Shop 186,012                       -                        -                           186,012                       
Street and ROW Coordination 678,856                       -                        -                           678,856                       
Infrastructure 879,883,057                20,552,467      -                           900,435,524                

895,949,570                20,822,269      11,002                 916,760,837                

Construction in progress 180,710,351                57,910,751      62,955,545         175,665,557                
180,710,351                57,910,751      62,955,545         175,665,557                

Public Art 1,648,740                    48,000             -                           1,696,740                    
1,648,740                    48,000             -                           1,696,740                    

Other:
Non-departmental 2,047,664                    -                        -                           2,047,664                    

2,047,664                    -                        -                           2,047,664                    

1,430,095,067$           127,467,690$  63,848,160$       1,493,714,597$           

1This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.  
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above 
amounts.  Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental
activities in the statement of net assets.
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STATISTICAL SECTION 
(unaudited) 

 
 

Tables in the statistical section present detailed information as a context for understanding what 
the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary 
information says about the overall financial health of the City. 
 
 
           Pages 
 
Financial Trends - These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 
understand how the City's financial performance and well-being have changed 
over time.                               105-110      
         
Revenue Capacity - These schedules contain information to help the reader assess 
the City's most significant local revenue source, the property tax.              111-114 
              
 
Debt Capacity - These schedules present information to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's 
ability to issue additional debt in the future.                115-120 
                
Demographic and Economic Information - These schedules offer demographic and 
economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which 
the City's financial activities take place.                 121-122 
                 
Operating Information - These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to 
help the reader understand how the information in the City's financial report 
relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.             123-127              
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Federal Pass-through
CFDA Entity identifying Federal

number number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Homeland Security:
    Passed through Governor’s Division of Emergency Management
        2007 Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention Program 97.074 07-GA 58016-03 $ 152,350
        2007 Urban Areas Security Initiative 97.008 07-GA 58016-03 120,500
        2008 Urban Areas Security Initiative 97.008 08-SR 58016-01 11,141
    Passed through North Central Texas Council of Governments    
        2007 State Homeland Security Program 97.073 N/A 18,370
    Passed through Texas Engineering Extension Services

             Texas Task Force One 97.025 N/A 1,598
                 Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 303,959

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
    Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B09-MC-48-0035 1,025,412
    HOME Program 14.239 M09-MC-480234 476,601
    Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program-ARRA 14.257 S09-MY-48-0013 265
                 Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 1,502,278

               
U.S. Department of Justice:
    Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 N/A 8,539
    Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2007-DJ-BX-0167 2,333
    Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force 16.xxx N/A 34,130
                 Subtotal Direct Programs 45,002
    Passed through the Office of the Attorney General
        Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 806018 53,322
    Passed through Navarro County Sheriff’s Office
        HIDTA – North Texas 16.xxx Various 16,290
                 Total U.S. Department of Justice 114,614

U.S. Department of Transportation:
    Passed through Texas Department of Transportation-
        STEP – Comprehensive 20.600 588EGF6092 242,881
        STEP – Impaired Driving Mobilization 20.601 588EGF6013 19,935
        STEP – Click It or Ticket        20.609 588XXF6023 4,090
                 Total U.S. Department of Transportation 266,906

U.S. Department of Treasury:
    FBI Computer Crime Lab Task Force 21.xxx N/A 1,204
    Joint Terrorism Task Force 21.xxx N/A 1,750
    North Texas Asset Forfeiture Task Force 21.xxx N/A 16,559
    North Texas Financial Crimes Task Force 21.xxx N/A 7,965
                 Total U.S. Department of Treasury 27,478

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:
    Passed through the Texas Commission Environmental Quality
        City of Plano Air Quality 66.605 582-8-89283 211,586
                 Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 211,586

                  Total federal expenditures $ 2,426,821

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

Federal grantor/pass-through grantor/program title

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

September 30, 2009
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Pass-through
Entity identifying State

number Expenditures

Governor's Division of Emergency Management:
    Passed through Texas Engineering Extension Service
        Hurricane Ike-State Mutual Aid N/A $ 5,196
        Wildfires April 2009-State Mutual Aid N/A 21,950
                 Total Governor's Division of Emergency Management 27,146

Office of Attorney General:  
    Texas Crime Victims Compensation N/A 33,309
                 Total Office of the Attorney General 33,309

               
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality:
    Passed through the North Central Texas Council of Governments
        Commercial Recycling Incentive Program 08-04-G02 16,250
        Multi-Family Recycling Program 08-04-G28 12,681
        CFL Recycling 08-04-G29 15,220
        Recycle Bank Pilot Project 09-04-G19 58,995
        Compost Fair Enhancement Project 09-04-G21 25,065
                 Total Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 128,211

Texas Department of Transportation
    Rasor-Ohio to SH121 CSJ# 0918-24-159 737,411
                 Total Texas Department of Transportation 737,411

Texas Office of the Governor/Comptroller
    Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education N/A 21,944
                 Total Texas Office of the Governor/Comptroller 21,944

Texas State Library and Archives Commission
    Loan Star Libraries Grant 442-09389 124,530
    Loan Star Libraries Grant 442-10212 480
                 Total State Library and Archives Commission 125,010

                  Total state expenditures $ 1,073,031

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS

Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards

September 30, 2009

State grantor/pass-through grantor/program title
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CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS 

 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 

 
September 30, 2009 

 
 
 

(1) General 
 
 The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards includes the 

federal and state grant activity of the City of Plano, Texas (the City) and is presented on 
the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The information in these schedules is 
presented in accordance with the requirement of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Therefore, some amounts presented 
in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the 
basic financial statements.   

 
 The City’s reporting entity is defined in note 1 to the City’s basic financial statements.  

Federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies as well as 
federal and state awards passed through other government agencies are included on the 
schedule. 

 
(2) Subreceipients 
 
 The City provided approximately $322,000 and $204,000 to subrecipients from the 

Community Development Block Grant and HOME program, respectively. 
 
(3) Loans 
 
 At September 30, 2009, the amount of loans outstanding related to the Community 

Development Block Grant and HOME Program were approximately $859,000 and 
$96,000, respectively.   
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City of Plano, Texas 
 

SHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2009 

8 

 

 
 
SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 
• Material weakness identified? No 

 
• Significant deficiencies identified that are 
  Not considered to be material weaknesses? None reported 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements 
Noted? No 
 
Federal and State Awards 
 
Internal controls over major program: 
 
• Material weakness identified? No 

 
• Significant deficiencies identified that are 
  Not considered to be material weaknesses? None reported 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for 
Major program: Unqualified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
Reported in accordance with section 510(a) of 
Circular A-133? No 
 
Identification of major program: 
 
CFDA/Grant Number/State Identification Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
Major Federal Programs: 
20.600, 20.601, 20.609 Highway Safety Cluster  
14.239 Home 
 
Major State Program: 
n/a  TxDot SH-121 Razor Road 
 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish $300,000 for federal programs 
Between type A and type B programs: $300,000 for state programs 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes



City of Plano, Texas 
 

SHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2009 
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SECTION II - FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
The results of our procedures disclosed no findings to be reported for the year ended September 30, 2009. 
 

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO FEDERAL AWARDS 

 
The results of our procedures disclosed no findings to be reported for the year ended September 30, 2009. 
 
 
SECTION IV - SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 
 
There were no findings reported for the year ended September 30, 2008. 
 
 
 









 

DATE: December 8, 2009 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor & City Council 
 
FROM: James Duggan, Chairman, Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
SUBJECT: Results of Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting of December 7, 2009 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 
PUBLIC HEARING:  ZONING CASE 2009-20 
APPLICANT:  CITY OF PLANO 
 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Request to amend Section 3.300 (Exterior Wall Construction Standards for Structures) 
and Section 3.1200 (Landscaping Requirements) of Article 3 (Supplementary 
Regulations) and related sections of the Zoning Ordinance pertaining to above ground 
and/or at-grade parking structures. 
 
APPROVED: 5-1 DENIED:  TABLED:  

 
STIPULATIONS: 
 
Recommended for approval as follows: (Additions are shown as underlined text; 
deletions are shown as strike-through text.) 
 
Amend Section 3.300 (Exterior Wall Construction Standards for Structures) of Article 3 
(Supplementary Regulations) to read as follows: 
 
3.300 Exterior Wall Construction Standards for Structures 
  
Exterior wall construction for structures shall be in accordance with the standards in the 
following subsections.  For the purposes of this section, exterior wall construction refers 
to the exterior material or finish of a wall assembly.  
 
3.301 Residential Structures 
 

(1) Exterior wall construction for residential structures of three stories or less 
shall consist of a minimum of 75% masonry with no single wall face of any 
residence containing less than 50% of its exposed surface of masonry 
construction as herein specified.  The construction standard applies only to 
the first floor of a building in the following zoning districts:  
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Abbreviated Designation  Zoning District Name 

A Agricultural 

BG Downtown Business/Government 

CB-1 Central Business-1 

CE Commercial Employment 

ED Estate Development 

MF-1 Multifamily Residence-1 

MF-2 Multifamily Residence-2 

MF-3 Multifamily Residence-3 

PH Patio Home 

R Retail 

SF-A Single-Family Residence Attached 

SF-6 Single-Family Residence-6 

SF-7 Single-Family Residence-7 

SF-9 Single-Family Residence-9 

SF-20 Single-Family Residence-20 

2F Two-Family Residence 

 

Exterior wall construction for all residential uses in districts where permitted 
other than those listed above shall meet the requirements of the City of Plano 
Building Code.  
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3.302(2)  Where more than 40% of existing residential structures along both 
sides of a street and lying between the two nearest intersecting streets, do not 
meet the above minimum structure standards, then such standards shall not 
apply.  
 
3.303(3)  Standards for masonry construction in all districts shall be defined as 
that form of construction composed of stone, brick, concrete, hollow clay tile, 
concrete block or tile, or other similar building unit or materials or combination of 
these materials laid up unit by unit and set in mortar.  Brick veneer construction is 
included in the definition of masonry.  Exterior plasters as defined in the City of 
Plano Building Code and cementitious lap siding shall be acceptable masonry 
construction alternatives.  (ZC 2000-01; Ordinance No. 2000-3-28) 
 
3.305(4)  Unless specified as part of a planned development district, the above 
masonry requirements shall not apply to UR districts.  In addition, exterior 
plasters, as noted above, are not permitted in UR districts unless specified as 
part of a planned development.  (ZC 97-52; Ordinance No. 98-2-15)  

 
3.302 Nonresidential Uses 
 

(1) Except as otherwise regulated by this ordinance, exterior wall construction in 
districts permitting nonresidential uses shall be of such material that conforms 
to the International Building Code unless an alternative has been approved by 
the Building Official.  However, metal and membrane exterior walls are 
prohibited in all zoning districts with the following exception: 

 
Metal and membrane exterior wall construction is permitted in the Light 
Industrial-1 and Light Industrial-2 districts with approval of a facade plan as 
part of the site plan review process by the Planning & Zoning Commission 
only under the following conditions: 
 

(1) (a) The metal or membrane exterior wall construction is not visible
 from a public thoroughfare or residential zoning district. 

 
(2)(b) The lot containing the building is located at least 1,000 feet from 

any residential zoning district boundary line unless separated by a 
Type C or larger thoroughfare.  

(2) Special Requirements for Parking Structures.   
Except in BG and CB-1 zoning districts, all exterior walls of parking structures 
shall be architecturally designed to be integrated with the primary building on 
the site, including consistent architectural design elements and building 
materials between structures.  
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Amend Section 3.1200 (Landscaping Requirements) of Article 3 (Supplementary 
Regulations) to include the following: 
 
3.1200 Landscaping Requirements 
 
(1)   Nonresidential Landscaping Requirements 
 

(f)  Landscaping for Above Ground and/or At-Grade Parking Structures 
 

These standards shall apply to all nonresidential districts, except BG and 
CB-1, and shall be in addition to other landscaping requirements as 
required in Section 3.1200 and within the overlay districts. 

 
(i) Where an above ground and/or at-grade parking structure is  

located 100 feet or less from the adjacent street right-of-way, the 
required landscaping shall comply with the following regulations: 

 
1. A minimum ten-foot landscape edge shall be provided  

adjacent to the exterior perimeter of the parking structure.   
 

2. Within the required landscape edge, one shade tree (three- 
inch caliper minimum) shall be provided for every 50 lineal 
feet of parking structure frontage, exclusive of entry drives 
and pedestrian access points.  Ornamental trees (eight to 
ten feet height minimum) can be substituted for shade trees 
at a ratio of 2:1. 

 
3. Additionally, ten shrubs (five gallon minimum) per required 

shade tree shall be provided within the required landscape 
edge. If a decorative trellis is used as part of the façade 
structure, vines may count as part of the minimum shrub 
requirement. 

 
4. A maximum of 60% of any one species is allowed for any 

required plantings stated above. 
 

(ii) Where an above ground and/or at-grade parking structure is 
located greater than 100 feet from the adjacent street right-of-way, 
the required landscaping shall comply with the following 
regulations: 

 
1. Within a maximum of ten feet from the exterior perimeter of 

the parking structure, one shade tree (three inch caliper 
minimum) shall be provided for every 50 lineal feet of 
parking structure frontage, exclusive of entry drives and 
pedestrian access points.  Ornamental trees (eight to ten 
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feet height minimum) can be substituted for shade trees at a 
ratio of 2:1. 

 
2. A maximum of 60% of any one species is allowed for any 

required plantings stated above. 
 

The Commissioner voting in opposition believed the minimum required tree size at 
planting was insufficient. 

 
FOR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF: January 11, 2010 (To view the agenda for this 
meeting, see www.planotx.org) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 
 
BM/et 
 
 



CITY OF PLANO 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
 

December 7, 2009 
 
 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 
 

Public Hearing:  Zoning Case 2009-20 
 

Applicant:  City of Plano 
 

 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Request to amend Section 3.300 (Exterior Wall Construction Standards for Structures) 
and Section 3.1200 (Landscaping Requirements) of Article 3 (Supplementary 
Regulations) and related sections of the Zoning Ordinance pertaining to above ground 
and/or at-grade parking structures. 
 
REMARKS: 
 
This zoning case is a continuation of a November 2002 work program item per City 
Council’s request to review the aesthetic standards for parking structures and 
landscape requirements.  The project was resumed earlier this year at the Planning & 
Zoning Commission’s meeting on January 20, 2009, when staff gave a presentation that 
illustrated many different aspects of the structural and functional considerations that 
influence parking structure design.  Discussions on how function and design influence 
parking structure aesthetics, the costs of structured parking versus surface parking, and 
the impact of various aesthetic techniques and enhancements to the cost of structured 
parking were held.  
 
The Commission also discussed the appropriateness of establishing architectural 
standards for parking structures when many zoning districts and/or overlay districts do 
not have or have minimal architectural standards for buildings.  After some 
deliberations, the Commission requested staff to come up with recommendations 
requiring consistency between facade materials of the main building and parking 
structure and requiring landscaping around the base of parking structures. 
 
On October 19, 2009, the Commission considered staff’s proposal to add language to 
the Zoning Ordinance that would call for consistent materials and design elements 
between facades of the main building and parking structure, and landscaping around 
the parking structures.  In view of staff’s proposal, the Commission noted several items: 
 

 Concern regarding the potential increase in development costs given staff’s 
recommendation to require consistency between architectural design elements 



and facade materials of the main building and the parking structure as well as 
increased landscaping costs; 

 

 The subjective element of architectural review and the potential for differences in 
interpretation regarding aesthetic requirements; 

 

 Sameness of materials can become monotonous; and 
 

 Requiring consistent design elements and materials between the primary building 
and parking structure on the site, even if the parking structure is located towards 
the rear of the site particularly when adjacent to residential uses. 

 
After much discussion, the Commission called a public hearing to consider amending 
the Exterior Wall Construction Standards for Structures and Landscaping Requirements 
sections and related sections of the Zoning Ordinance regarding above ground and/or 
at-grade parking structures.  
 
Architectural Standards 
 
Currently many nonresidential zoning districts and overlay districts do not have or have 
minimal architectural standards for buildings. The Regional Employment and Regional 
Commercial zoning districts require specific materials be used for a minimum of 75% of 
each exterior elevation.  For retail corner developments, the Retail Corner Design 
Guidelines specify that shopping centers shall have attractive and uniform architectural 
treatment including consistency of design between structures, materials, and rear 
facade treatment.  However, these guidelines do not stipulate specific materials nor do 
they require a certain percentage of materials.  The Retail Corner Design Guidelines 
document is also not an ordinance. 
 
Staff recommends that Section 3.300 (Exterior Wall Construction Standards for 
Structures) of Article 3 (Supplementary Regulations) be amended as stated in the 
recommendation section of this report to include provisions that require exterior walls of 
parking structures be integrated with the primary building on the site including 
architectural design elements and building materials between structures.  This would 
still allow the developer flexibility in designing the structures on the site while providing 
for some common elements.  Additionally, as part of staff’s review of this section of the 
Zoning Ordinance, we are proposing some housekeeping cleanup related to formatting 
to better delineate those provisions applicable to residential structures versus 
nonresidential uses. 
 
Landscaping 
 
Currently, the Zoning Ordinance has landscaping requirements for below-grade open 
parking structures within the front yard of nonresidential zoned properties.  
Requirements include an 18-foot landscape edge between the structure and the street 
right-of-way, with berming and trees within the landscape edge.  There are currently no 
perimeter landscaping requirements in the Zoning Ordinance for above ground and/or 
at-grade parking structures. 
 



Staff recommends that structures located closer to the street right-of-way have more 
landscaping materials around the perimeter of the structure, compared to parking 
structures located farther away from the street right-of-way.  As parking structures are 
located farther away from the street, certain landscaping elements, such as shrubbery 
and groundcover foundation plantings, have less visual impact compared to trees. 
Landscaping provisions for parking structures would be in addition to site landscaping 
requirements that apply today. 
 
At the October 19, 2009 meeting, the Commission expressed an interest in requiring 
larger plant materials within the landscape edge proposed around parking structures.  
The Commission felt that larger plant materials would make a greater visual impact 
when taking into consideration the plant material size in relation to the parking structure 
size.  The Commission requested additional information pertaining to landscaping 
materials including differences between planting smaller versus larger materials (such 
as three-inch caliper versus six-inch caliper trees; five-gallon container shrubs versus 
15-gallon), as well as susceptibility to disease and increased mortality, overall growth 
rates, and cost. 
 
In short, when considering what minimum size of materials to plant, while planting larger 
materials such as six-inch caliper trees and 15-gallon shrubs may have a greater visual 
impact initially, overtime this becomes negated particularly with respect to trees.  
Growth is much slower initially for larger trees due to their shock recovery time needed, 
and the longer the recovery rate, the higher the mortality rate.  More importantly though, 
installing smaller plant materials initially and at greater quantities (not size), results in a 
greater visual impact and benefit within a few years than if the same financial resources 
were spent on larger plant materials at lesser quantities within that same time frame.  
Attached to this staff write-up is a memo from Russell Haas, Landscape Architect, City 
of Plano, which explains in detail the various factors that affect plant material size, 
growth patterns, and cost. 
 
Exempt Downtown Business Government (BG) and Central Business-1(CB-1) Zoning 
Districts 
 
Staff recommends that BG and CB-1 zoning districts be exempted from the proposed 
parking structure architectural standards and additional landscaping requirements for 
above ground and/or at grade parking structures. The BG district is designed to ensure 
that development and redevelopment within the district are consistent with the historical 
character of Plano’s original business district and the surrounding area, and the district 
facilitates an urban form of development.  As such, the BG district already includes 
regulations that parking structures be obscured from street views or have special 
architectural and/or landscaping treatments approved in conjunction with a preliminary 
site plan or site plan. The CB-1 district is intended to permit a concentrated business 
center similar to traditional downtown areas.  Properties zoned CB-1 are located along 
the Dallas North Tollway and include Legacy Town Center, which is zoned Planned 
Development-65-Central Business-1 (PD-65-CB-1).  PD-65-CB-1 currently regulates 
parking structures and requires that they be designed to minimize the ground level view 
of automobiles below hood lines and that parking structure facades have strong 
horizontal architectural elements. The planned development district also has 
landscaping regulations that promote an urban form of development. In addition, the 



proposed landscaping standards for parking structures are consistent with the other 
landscaping requirements in the Zoning Ordinance that facilitate a non-urban form of 
development (suburban development).   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Recommended for approval as follows: (Additions are shown as underlined text; 
deletions are shown as strike-through text.) 
 
Amend Section 3.300 (Exterior Wall Construction Standards for Structures) of Article 3 
(Supplementary Regulations) to read as follows: 
 
3.300 Exterior Wall Construction Standards for Structures 
  
Exterior wall construction for structures shall be in accordance with the standards in the 
following subsections.  For the purposes of this section, exterior wall construction refers 
to the exterior material or finish of a wall assembly.  
 
3.301 Residential Structures 
 

(1) Exterior wall construction for residential structures of three stories or less 
shall consist of a minimum of 75% masonry with no single wall face of any 
residence containing less than 50% of its exposed surface of masonry 
construction as herein specified.  The construction standard applies only to 
the first floor of a building in the following zoning districts:  
 

Abbreviated Designation  Zoning District Name 

A Agricultural 

BG Downtown Business/Government 

CB-1 Central Business-1 

CE Commercial Employment 

ED Estate Development 

MF-1 Multifamily Residence-1 

MF-2 Multifamily Residence-2 

MF-3 Multifamily Residence-3 

PH Patio Home 



R Retail 

SF-A Single-Family Residence Attached 

SF-6 Single-Family Residence-6 

SF-7 Single-Family Residence-7 

SF-9 Single-Family Residence-9 

SF-20 Single-Family Residence-20 

2F Two-Family Residence 

 

Exterior wall construction for all residential uses in districts where permitted 
other than those listed above shall meet the requirements of the City of Plano 
Building Code.  

3.302(2)  Where more than 40% of existing residential structures along both 
sides of a street and lying between the two nearest intersecting streets, do not 
meet the above minimum structure standards, then such standards shall not 
apply.  
 
3.303(3)  Standards for masonry construction in all districts shall be defined as 
that form of construction composed of stone, brick, concrete, hollow clay tile, 
concrete block or tile, or other similar building unit or materials or combination of 
these materials laid up unit by unit and set in mortar.  Brick veneer construction is 
included in the definition of masonry.  Exterior plasters as defined in the City of 
Plano Building Code and cementitious lap siding shall be acceptable masonry 
construction alternatives.  (ZC 2000-01; Ordinance No. 2000-3-28) 
 
3.305(4)  Unless specified as part of a planned development district, the above 
masonry requirements shall not apply to UR districts.  In addition, exterior 
plasters, as noted above, are not permitted in UR districts unless specified as 
part of a planned development.  (ZC 97-52; Ordinance No. 98-2-15)  

 
3.302 Nonresidential Uses 
 

(1) Except as otherwise regulated by this ordinance, exterior wall construction in 
districts permitting nonresidential uses shall be of such material that conforms 
to the International Building Code unless an alternative has been approved by 
the Building Official.  However, metal and membrane exterior walls are 
prohibited in all zoning districts with the following exception: 

 



Metal and membrane exterior wall construction is permitted in the Light 
Industrial-1 and Light Industrial-2 districts with approval of a facade plan as 
part of the site plan review process by the Planning & Zoning Commission 
only under the following conditions: 
 

(1) (a) The metal or membrane exterior wall construction is not visible
 from a public thoroughfare or residential zoning district. 

 
(2)(b) The lot containing the building is located at least 1,000 feet from 

any residential zoning district boundary line unless separated by a 
Type C or larger thoroughfare.  

 
(2) Special Requirements for Parking Structures.   

 
Except in BG and CB-1 zoning districts, all exterior walls of parking structures 
shall be architecturally designed to be integrated with the primary building on 
the site, including consistent architectural design elements and building 
materials between structures.  

 

Amend Section 3.1200 (Landscaping Requirements) of Article 3 (Supplementary 
Regulations) to include the following: 
 
3.1200 Landscaping Requirements 
 
(1)   Nonresidential Landscaping Requirements 
 

(f)  Landscaping for Above Ground and/or At-Grade Parking Structures 
 

These standards shall apply to all nonresidential districts, except BG and 
CB-1, and shall be in addition to other landscaping requirements as 
required in Section 3.1200 and within the overlay districts. 

 
(i) Where an above ground and/or at-grade parking structure is  

located 100 feet or less from the adjacent street right-of-way, the 
required landscaping shall comply with the following regulations: 

 
1. A minimum ten-foot landscape edge shall be provided  

adjacent to the exterior perimeter of the parking structure.   
 

2. Within the required landscape edge, one shade tree (three- 
inch caliper minimum) shall be provided for every 50 lineal 
feet of parking structure frontage, exclusive of entry drives 
and pedestrian access points.  Ornamental trees (eight to 
ten feet height minimum) can be substituted for shade trees 
at a ratio of 2:1. 

 
3. Additionally, ten shrubs (five gallon minimum) per required 

shade tree shall be provided within the required landscape 



edge. If a decorative trellis is used as part of the façade 
structure, vines may count as part of the minimum shrub 
requirement. 

 
4. A maximum of 60% of any one species is allowed for any 

required plantings stated above. 
 

(ii) Where an above ground and/or at-grade parking structure is 
located greater than 100 feet from the adjacent street right-of-way, 
the required landscaping shall comply with the following 
regulations: 

 
1. Within a maximum of ten feet from the exterior perimeter of 

the parking structure, one shade tree (three inch caliper 
minimum) shall be provided for every 50 lineal feet of 
parking structure frontage, exclusive of entry drives and 
pedestrian access points.  Ornamental trees (eight to ten 
feet height minimum) can be substituted for shade trees at a 
ratio of 2:1. 

 
2. A maximum of 60% of any one species is allowed for any 

required plantings stated above. 
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M E M O 
 
 
 
DATE: December 3, 2009 
 
TO: Planning & Zoning Commissioners 
 
FROM: Russell Haas, Landscape Architect 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 6 – Zoning Case 2009-20 
 Supplemental Landscape Materials Information 
 
 

 
The following information is provided for consideration in response to the Commission’s 
questions regarding landscape materials and the various factors that affect plant 
material size, growth patterns, and cost. 
 
Plant Material Survival/Recovery 
 
Shade trees, evergreen and deciduous, are specified either container grown or ball and 
burlaped (B&B).  The specification is by either caliper inch for B&B, or container size 
with the container specification often stating an appropriate caliper inch.  Above ground 
they are otherwise essentially the same tree. 
 
The biggest difference between the B&B and container grown tree is the size and 
completeness of the root mass.  This affects survival and recovery from transplant 
shock.  Because the container grown tree, which is grown in every increasingly larger 
containers, has a complete root system as compared to a B&B tree, which has left 
much of its root mass in the ground when harvested, the container grown tree has a 
higher survival rate and a quicker recovery rate.  For container grown, the size of a root 
mass and the associated weight and time involved in its growing and maintenance 
tends to limit the maximum size of tree available.  It is rare to find a container grown tree 
over 6-inch caliper.   
 
When a B&B tree is harvested, the digging process requires an increasingly larger root 
ball, usually nine to 12 inches of ball per one inch caliper of tree.  An increasingly 
percentage of roots will be lost as the tree size increases since it is difficult to dig up all 
the roots associated with larger trees.  Typically, the smaller the B&B tree, the higher 
the percentage of root mass preserved.  The more root mass preserved, the greater the 
survivability and quicker the recovery time.   
 
A rule of thumb is for every caliper inch of a given size tree above three inches, the 
recovery time is at least one year.  If a 3-inch caliper tree recovers in one year, you can 
anticipate an additional year for a 4-inch caliper tree, planted at the same time to 



Page 2 of 3 
 

recover enough root mass to begin producing  top growth.   As a result, after one year 
the 3-inch caliper tree will be very near the same size as the 4-inch caliper tree.  A 5-
inch caliper tree typically requires two years to recover. 
 
Additionally, trees are usually purchased for immediate installation or speculation for 
future use and allowed to continue to grow.  While sitting in the nursery yard, the tree 
has to be maintained and this increases costs due to labor, pruning, etc.  The larger and 
longer the tree sits, the more likely problems and costs can occur.  
 
Shrubbery performs similar to container grown trees, as well as size availability.  
Shrubbery is typically container grown so its size is listed by gallons and its root system 
is fairly complete.  As the plant grows, it then must be transplanted to larger gallon 
containers thus increasing labor and maintenance costs.  From a recovery standpoint, 
shrubs will recover well since their root system is intact.  Typical shrubbery size at 
planting is 5-gallon yet 7-gallon shrubs seem to be increasingly popular.  However, 
within a year, the 5-gallon shrub will achieve the size of the 7-gallon shrub.  Additionally, 
the challenge with larger containers sizes is that there is less availability and increased 
costs.  Larger container grown shrubs are those that likely will grow to tree form (such 
as yaupon holly and ligustrum).      
 
Cost  
 
The initial cost of container trees is usually higher than a comparable B&B due to higher 
overhead and wholesale cost, but once other factors are involved (i.e. maintenance, 
labor, etc.) the final installation unit cost is competitive.  
 
In addition to the cost of maintaining the tree, another factor affecting cost and size is 
the tree installation process.  A 3-inch caliper tree can still be “man handled” by a 
couple of workers.  However, once a tree exceeds this size, there is a need for the more 
expensive use of mechanical devices such as hoist and cranes to extract and move the 
tree. As a result, beyond a 3-inch caliper size, the unit cost rises at an increasing rate. 
As a rule of thumb, “designer costs” are listed below which shows a significant cost 
difference between a 3-inch caliper tree versus a 6-inch caliper tree. 
 
3-inch caliper tree $325 
4-inch caliper tree $475 
5-inch caliper tree $800 
6-inch caliper tree $1400 
 
Since a majority trees installed in this area are B&B, the unit cost of the two (i.e. 
container grown versus B&B) is less important.  What is important is the desired visual 
impact of the landscape plantings over time and how it fits in the project budget using 
B&B trees. 
 
For example, if a developer has an initial budget of $3,000 for landscaping associated 
with a parking structure, he can plant three 6-inch caliper trees or eight 3-inch caliper 
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trees. Assuming a 100% survival rate, the two larger trees might have the greater visual 
impact initially, but after two years, it can be expected that the 3-inch caliper trees will 
have recovered and can range from 4-inch to 5-inch caliper and have an increased and 
healthier top growth, while the two 6-inch caliper trees will probably just be recovering 
and still be 6-inch caliper. In four years they could all be pretty much the same size. 
 
In summary, when considering what minimum size of materials to plant, while planting 
larger materials such as 6-inch caliper trees and 15-gallon shrubs may have a greater 
visual impact initially, overtime this becomes negated particularly with respect to trees.  
Growth is much slower initially for larger trees due to their shock recovery time needed, 
and the longer the recovery rate, the higher the mortality rate.  More importantly though, 
installing smaller plant materials initially and at greater quantities (not size), results a 
greater visual impact and benefit within a few years than if the same financial resources 
were spent on larger plant materials at lesser quantities within that same time frame. 
 
. 
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 (Zoning Case 2009-20) 

 
 
An ordinance of the City of Plano, Texas, amending Section 3.300 (Exterior Wall 
Construction Standards for Structures) and Section 3.1200 (Landscaping 
Requirements) of Article 3 (Supplementary Regulations) and related sections of 
the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City, Ordinance No. 2006-4-24, as 
heretofore amended, pertaining to above ground and/or at-grade parking 
structures; and providing a penalty clause, a repealer clause, a savings clause, a 
severability clause, and an effective date. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Secretary of Plano, Texas, directed that notices of a hearing 
be issued, as required by the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Plano and laws of the 
State of Texas, at a meeting of the City Council, to be held on the 11th day of January, 
2010, for the purpose of considering a change in the Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Secretary of the said City accordingly caused to be issued 
and published the notices required by its Zoning Ordinance and laws of the State of 
Texas applicable thereto, the same having been published in a paper of general 
circulation in the City of Plano, Texas, at least fifteen (15) days prior to the time set for 
such hearing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of said City, pursuant to such notice, held its public 
hearing and heard all persons wishing to be heard both for and against the aforesaid 
change in the Zoning Ordinance, on the 11th day of January, 2010; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council is of the opinion and finds that such change would 
not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or general welfare, and will promote the 
best and most orderly development of the properties affected thereby, and to be 
affected thereby, in the City of Plano, and as well, the owners and occupants thereof, 
and the City generally. 
 
 IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PLANO, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section I

  

.    Section 3.300 (Exterior Wall Construction Standards for Structures)    
of Article 3 (Supplementary Regulations) of the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance No. 
2006-4-24, as the same has been heretofore amended, is hereby further amended 
pertaining to above ground and/or at-grade parking structures, such section to read in 
its entirety as follows: 
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3.300 Exterior Wall Construction Standards for Structures 
  
Exterior wall construction for structures shall be in accordance with the standards in the 
following subsections.  For the purposes of this section, exterior wall construction refers 
to the exterior material or finish of a wall assembly.  
 
3.301 Residential Structures 
 

(1) Exterior wall construction for residential structures of three stories or less 
shall consist of a minimum of 75% masonry with no single wall face of any 
residence containing less than 50% of its exposed surface of masonry 
construction as herein specified.  The construction standard applies only to 
the first floor of a building in the following zoning districts:  

 

Abbreviated Designation  Zoning District Name 

A Agricultural 

BG Downtown Business/Government 

CB-1 Central Business-1 

CE Commercial Employment 

ED Estate Development 

MF-1 Multifamily Residence-1 

MF-2 Multifamily Residence-2 

MF-3 Multifamily Residence-3 

PH Patio Home 

R Retail 

SF-A Single-Family Residence Attached 

SF-6 Single-Family Residence-6 
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SF-7 Single-Family Residence-7 

SF-9 Single-Family Residence-9 

SF-20 Single-Family Residence-20 

2F Two-Family Residence 

Exterior wall construction for all residential uses in districts where permitted 
other than those listed above shall meet the requirements of the City of 
Plano Building Code.  

(2) Where more than 40% of existing residential structures along both sides of a 
street and lying between the two nearest intersecting streets, do not meet 
the above minimum structure standards, then such standards shall not apply.  

 
(3) Standards for masonry construction in all districts shall be defined as that 

form of construction composed of stone, brick, concrete, hollow clay tile, 
concrete block or tile, or other similar building unit or materials or 
combination of these materials laid up unit by unit and set in mortar.  Brick 
veneer construction is included in the definition of masonry.  Exterior plasters 
as defined in the City of Plano Building Code and cementitious lap siding 
shall be acceptable masonry construction alternatives.  (ZC 2000-01; 
Ordinance No. 2000-3-28) 

 
(4) Unless specified as part of a planned development district, the above 

masonry requirements shall not apply to UR districts.  In addition, exterior 
plasters, as noted above, are not permitted in UR districts unless specified 
as part of a planned development.  (ZC 97-52; Ordinance No. 98-2-15)  

 
3.302 Nonresidential Uses 
 

(1) Except as otherwise regulated by this ordinance, exterior wall construction in 
districts permitting nonresidential uses shall be of such material that 
conforms to the International Building Code unless an alternative has been 
approved by the Building Official.  However, metal and membrane exterior 
walls are prohibited in all zoning districts with the following exception: 

 
Metal and membrane exterior wall construction is permitted in the Light 
Industrial-1 and Light Industrial-2 districts with approval of a facade plan as 
part of the site plan review process by the Planning & Zoning Commission 
only under the following conditions: 
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(a) The metal or membrane exterior wall construction is not visible from a 

public thoroughfare or residential zoning district. 
 
(b) The lot containing the building is located at least 1,000 feet from any 

residential zoning district boundary line unless separated by a Type C or 
larger thoroughfare.  

 
(2) Special Requirements for Parking Structures.  

 
Except in BG and CB-1 zoning districts, all exterior walls of parking 
structures shall be architecturally designed to be integrated with the primary 
building on the site, including consistent architectural design elements and 
building materials between structures.  

 
Section II

 

.  Section 3.1200 (Landscaping Requirements) of Article 3 
(Supplementary Regulations) the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance No. 2006-4-24, as 
the same has been heretofore amended, is hereby further amended pertaining to above 
ground and/or at-grade parking structures, such portions of the section to read as 
follows: 

3.1200 Landscaping Requirements 
 
(1)   Nonresidential Landscaping Requirements 
 

(f)  Landscaping for Above Ground and/or At-Grade Parking Structures 
 

These standards shall apply to all nonresidential districts, except BG and 
CB-1, and shall be in addition to other landscaping requirements as 
required in Section 3.1200 and within the overlay districts. 

 
(i) Where an above ground and/or at-grade parking structure is  

located 100 feet or less from the adjacent street right-of-way, the 
required landscaping shall comply with the following regulations: 

 
1. A minimum ten-foot landscape edge shall be provided  

adjacent to the exterior perimeter of the parking structure.   
 

2. Within the required landscape edge, one shade tree (three- 
inch caliper minimum) shall be provided for every 50 lineal 
feet of parking structure frontage, exclusive of entry drives 
and pedestrian access points.  Ornamental trees (eight to 
ten feet height minimum) can be substituted for shade trees 
at a ratio of 2:1. 
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3. Additionally, ten shrubs (five gallon minimum) per required 
shade tree shall be provided within the required landscape 
edge. If a decorative trellis is used as part of the facade 
structure, vines may count as part of the minimum shrub 
requirement. 

 
4. A maximum of 60% of any one species is allowed for any 

required plantings stated above. 
 

(ii) Where an above ground and/or at-grade parking structure is 
located greater than 100 feet from the adjacent street right-of-way, 
the required landscaping shall comply with the following 
regulations: 

 
1. Within a maximum of ten feet from the exterior perimeter of 

the parking structure, one shade tree (three inch caliper 
minimum) shall be provided for every 50 lineal feet of 
parking structure frontage, exclusive of entry drives and 
pedestrian access points.  Ornamental trees (eight to ten 
feet height minimum) can be substituted for shade trees at a 
ratio of 2:1. 

 
2. A maximum of 60% of any one species is allowed for any 

required plantings stated above. 
 
 Section III

 

.  All provisions of the ordinances of the City of Plano in conflict with 
the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, and all other provisions of the 
Ordinances of the City of Plano, not in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, 
shall remain in full force and effect. 

 Section IV

 

.  The repeal of any ordinance or part of ordinances affectuated by the 
enactment of this Ordinance shall not be construed as abandoning any action now 
pending under or by virtue of such ordinance or as discontinuing, abating, modifying or 
altering any penalty accruing or to accrue, or as affecting any rights of the municipality 
under any section or provisions of any ordinance at the time of passage of this 
Ordinance. 

 Section V

 

.  Any person, firm or corporation found to be violating any term or 
provision of this Ordinance, shall be subject to a fine in accordance with Section 1-4(a) 
of the City Code of Ordinances for each offense.  Every day a violation continues shall 
constitute a separate offense. 

 Section VI.  It is the intention of the City Council that this Ordinance, and every 
provision hereof, shall be considered severable and the invalidity or partial invalidity of 
any section, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity of any 
other portion of this Ordinance. 
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Section VII

 

.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 
passage and publication as required by law. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 11th DAY OF JANUARY, 2010. 
 
  

 Phil Dyer, MAYOR 
ATTEST:  
  

Diane Zucco, CITY SECRETARY  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
  

Diane C. Wetherbee, CITY ATTORNEY  
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DATE: December 22, 2009 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor & City Council 
 
FROM: James Duggan, Chairman, Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
SUBJECT: Results of Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting of December 21, 2009 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 - PUBLIC HEARING 
ZONING CASE 2009-21 
APPLICANT:  RUTLEDGE HAGGARD 
 
Request to rezone 9.3± acres located at the southeast corner of Spring Creek Parkway 
and Communications Parkway from Agricultural to Regional Employment. 
 

APPROVED: 8-0 DENIED:  TABLED:  

 
LETTERS RECEIVED WITHIN 200 FOOT NOTICE AREA: SUPPORT:  2  OPPOSE:   0  
 
LETTERS RECEIVED OUTSIDE 200 FOOT NOTICE AREA:  SUPPORT:   0  OPPOSE:  0  
 
PETITION(s) RECEIVED:    N/A     # OF SIGNATURES:    N/A     

 
STIPULATIONS: 
 
Recommended for approval as submitted. 
 

FOR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF: January 11, 2010 (To view the agenda for this 
meeting, see www.planotx.org) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 
 
EH/dc 
 

xc: Rutledge Haggard, Acres of Sunshine, Ltd. 
 Eric Weiner, SG Development 
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CITY OF PLANO 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
 

December 21, 2009 
 
 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 
 

Public Hearing:  Zoning Case 2009-21 
 

Applicant:  Rutledge Haggard 
 

 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Request to rezone 9.3± acres located at the southeast corner of Spring Creek Parkway 
and Communications Parkway from Agricultural to Regional Employment. 
 
REMARKS: 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone an undeveloped 9.3± acre tract from Agricultural 
(A) to Regional Employment (RE).  A companion specific use permit request (Zoning 
Case 2009-22) for a long-term care facility, as well as a companion preliminary site 
plan for a long-term care facility and medical office development, accompany this 
request. 
 
The subject property is currently being used for agricultural purposes.  The existing A 
district is intended to provide for farming, dairying, pasturage, horticulture, animal 
husbandry, and the necessary accessory uses for the packing, treating, or storing of 
produce.  It is anticipated that all A districts will be changed to other zoning 
classifications as the city proceeds toward full development. 
 
This property was annexed by the city in 1999 and at that time it was given the A 
zoning designation.  The A zoning was put in place with the intention that the property 
would be rezoned once an applicant decided to develop the property. 
 
The requested RE district is intended to provide for office and limited manufacturing 
uses that are consistent with the regional status of certain tollways and expressways 
serving Plano and surrounding communities.  Some retail uses are also appropriate 
when developed in conjunction with the primary uses.  The district’s standards are 
designed to ensure compatibility between the various uses within a corridor and 
surrounding residential neighborhoods.  The requested zoning is consistent with 
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existing RE zoning along the Dallas North Tollway corridor, south of Spring Creek 
Parkway. 
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning 
 
The property to the south and east of this tract is currently undeveloped and is also 
zoned RE.  To the north, across Spring Creek Parkway, a Type B+ thoroughfare, the 
property is undeveloped, and zoned Commercial Employment (CE).  To the west, 
across Communications Parkway, a Type C Thoroughfare, is an existing single-family 
subdivision, Wolf Creek Estates 3, and is zoned Planned Development-464-Multifamily 
Residence-2 (PD-464-MF-2). 
 
Conformance to the Comprehensive Plan 
 
Future Land Use Plan - The Future Land Use Plan designates this property as Major 
Corridor Development (MCD).  This request is in conformance with the Future Land 
Use Plan. 
 
Adequacy of Public Facilities - Water and sanitary sewer services are available via 
extensions of existing services from Spring Creek Parkway and Communications 
Parkway. 
 
Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) - A TIA is not required for this rezoning request.  
Existing traffic models for the City of Plano anticipated the rezoning of this property to a 
zoning district consistent with the Future Land Use Plan designation. 
 
Summary 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone an undeveloped 9.3± acre tract from A to RE to 
allow for future long-term care facility (subject to approval of a specific use permit) and 
office development.  The Zoning Ordinance specifically states that A zoning is 
anticipated to change as the city develops.  The request is in conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan and is consistent with the existing RE zoning of the properties to 
the east and south of the subject property. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Recommended for approval as submitted. 
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 (Zoning Case 2009-21) 
 
 
An Ordinance of the City of Plano amending the Comprehensive Zoning 
Ordinance of the City, Ordinance No. 2006-4-24, as heretofore amended, so as to 
rezone 9.3± acres out of the Henry B. Miller Survey, Abstract No. 614, located at 
the southeast corner of Spring Creek Parkway and Communications Parkway, in 
the City of Plano, Collin County, Texas, from Agricultural to Regional 
Employment; directing a change accordingly in the official zoning map of the 
City; and providing a penalty clause, a repealer clause, a savings clause, a 
severability clause, and an effective date. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Secretary of Plano, Texas, directed that notices of a hearing 
be issued, as required by the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Plano and laws of the 
State of Texas, at a meeting of the City Council, to be held on the 11th day of January, 
2010, for the purpose of considering rezoning 9.3± acres out of the Henry B. Miller 
Survey, Abstract No. 614, located at the southeast corner of Spring Creek Parkway and 
Communications Parkway, in the City of Plano, Collin County, Texas, from Agricultural 
to Regional Employment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Secretary of the said City accordingly caused to be issued 
and published the notices required by its Zoning Ordinance and laws of the State of 
Texas applicable thereto, the same having been published in a paper of general 
circulation in the City of Plano, Texas, at least fifteen (15) days prior to the time set for 
such hearing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of said City, pursuant to such notice, held its public 
hearing and heard all persons wishing to be heard both for and against the aforesaid 
change in the Zoning Ordinance, on the 11th day of January, 2010; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council is of the opinion and finds that such rezoning would 
not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or general welfare, and will promote the 
best and most orderly development of the properties affected thereby, and to be 
affected thereby, in the City of Plano, and as well, the owners and occupants thereof, 
and the City generally. 
 
 IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PLANO, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section I.  The Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance No. 2006-4-24, as the same 
has been heretofore amended, is hereby further amended so as to rezone 9.3± acres 
out of the Henry B. Miller Survey, Abstract No. 614, located at the southeast corner of 
Spring Creek Parkway and Communications Parkway, in the City of Plano, Collin 
County, Texas, from Agricultural to Regional Employment, said property being 
described in the legal description on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
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  Section II.  It is directed that the official zoning map of the City of Plano (which is 
retained in electronic record format) be changed to reflect the zoning classification 
established by this Ordinance. 
 
 Section III.  All provisions of the ordinances of the City of Plano in conflict with 
the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, and all other provisions of the 
Ordinances of the City of Plano not in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Section IV.  The repeal of any ordinance or part of ordinances affectuated by the 
enactment of this Ordinance shall not be construed as abandoning any action now 
pending under or by virtue of such ordinance or as discontinuing, abating, modifying or 
altering any penalty accruing or to accrue, or as affecting any rights of the municipality 
under any section or provisions of any ordinance at the time of passage of this 
Ordinance. 
 
 Section V.  Any person, firm or corporation found to be violating any term or 
provision of this Ordinance, shall be subject to a fine in accordance with Section 1-4(a) 
of the City Code of Ordinances for each offense.  Every day a violation continues shall 
constitute a separate offense. 
 
 Section VI.  It is the intention of the City Council that this Ordinance, and every 
provision hereof, shall be considered severable, and the invalidity or partial invalidity of 
any section, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity of any 
other portion of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section VII. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 
passage and publication as required by law. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 11TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2010. 
 
 

  

 Phil Dyer, MAYOR 

ATTEST:  

  

Diane Zucco, CITY SECRETARY  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

  

Diane C. Wetherbee, CITY ATTORNEY  
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EXHIBIT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
SITUATED in the State of Texas, County of Collin, and City of Plano, being part of the 
Henry B. Miller Survey, Abstract No. 614, being part of an 11.385 acre tract as recorded 
in Volume 4,227, Page 835 of the Collin County Land Records with said premises being 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2-inch iron rod found marking the southwest corner of said 11.385 
acre tract, a northwest corner of a 37.721 acre tract as recorded in Volume 5,424, Page 
2,914 of the Collin County Land Records, and being in the east right-of-way line of 
Communications Parkway; 
 
THENCE with the south line of said 11.385 acre tract, and a north line of said 37.721 
acre tract, south 89° 38’ 16” East, 55.04 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
 
THENCE with a west line of said premises, the east line of said 1.852 acre tract, and 
the east right-of-way line of said Communications Parkway as follows:  North 00° 55’ 
11” East, 452.38 feet to a 60D nail set; North 04° 44’ 01” East, 150.33 feet to a 1/2-inch 
Roome capped iron rod set; North 00° 55’ 11” East, 175.00 feet to a 1/2-inch Roome 
capped iron rod set marking a northwest corner of said premises, an interior corner of 
said 1.852 acre tract and the southwest corner of a corner clip; 
 
THENCE with a northwest line of said premises, the southeast line of said corner clip 
along a southeast line of said 1.852 acre tract, and the southeast right-of-way line of 
said Communications Parkway, North 45° 36’ 52” East, 35.54 feet to a 1/2-inch Rome 
capped iron rod set marking an interior corner of said premises, the northeast corner of 
said corner clip, an interior corner of said 1.852 acre tract, and being in the south right-
of-way line of Spring Creek Parkway; 
 
THENCE with the north line of said premises, a south line of said 1.852 acre tract and 
the south right-of-way line of said Spring Creek Parkway, South 89° 41’ 26” East, 
467.46 feet to a 1/2-inch Roome capped iron rod set marking the northeast corner of 
said premises, the southeast corner of said 1.852 acre tract, and being in the west line 
of the aforementioned 37.721 acre tract; 
 
THENCE with the east line of said 11.385 acre tract and the west line of said 37.721 
acre tract, South 00° 13’ 12” West, 802.70 feet to a 1/2-inch Roome capped iron rod set 
marking the southeast corner of said 11.385 acre tract, said premises and an interior 
corner of said 37.721 acre tract; 
 
THENCE with the south line of said 11.385 acre tract, said premises and a north line of 
said 37.721 acre tract, North 89° 38’ 16” West, 512.25 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and CONTAINING 403,663 square feet or 9.27 acres of land.  
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Z:PAC/01/11/10-CC 

 
DATE: December 22, 2009 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor & City Council 
 
FROM: James Duggan, Chairman, Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
SUBJECT: Results of Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting of December 21, 2009 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7A - PUBLIC HEARING 
ZONING CASE 2009-22 
APPLICANT:  ACRES OF SUNSHINE, LTD. 
 
Request for a Specific Use Permit for Long-term Care Facility on 6.1± acres located on 
the east side of Communications Parkway, 290± feet south of Spring Creek Parkway.  
Zoned Agricultural. 
 
APPROVED: 8-0 DENIED:  TABLED:  

 
LETTERS RECEIVED WITHIN 200 FOOT NOTICE AREA: SUPPORT:   1  OPPOSE:   0  
 
LETTERS RECEIVED OUTSIDE 200 FOOT NOTICE AREA:  SUPPORT:  0  OPPOSE:   0  
 
PETITION(s) RECEIVED:    N/A     # OF SIGNATURES:    N/A     

 
STIPULATIONS: 
 
Recommended for approval subject to City Council approval of Zoning Case 2009-21. 
 

FOR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF: January 11, 2010 (To view the agenda for this 
meeting, see www.planotx.org) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 
 
EH/dc 
 



CITY OF PLANO 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
 

December 21, 2009 
 
 
 

Agenda Item No. 7A 
 

Public Hearing:  Zoning Case 2009-22 
 

Applicant:  Acres of Sunshine, Ltd. 

 

 
DESCRIPTION: 
 
Request for a Specific Use Permit for Long-term Care Facility on 6.1± acres located on 
the east side of Communications Parkway, 290± feet south of Spring Creek Parkway.  
Zoned Agricultural. 
 
REMARKS: 
 
The requested zoning is a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Long-term Care Facility.  A 
long-term care facility is defined as a development providing in-patient health care, 
personal care, or rehabilitative services over a long period of time to persons chronically 
ill, aged, or disabled due to injury or disease.  The purpose and intent of an SUP is to 
authorize and regulate a use not normally permitted in a district which could be of 
benefit in a particular case to the general welfare, provided adequate development 
standards and safeguards are established for such use during the review of an SUP 
application.   
 
The subject property is currently zoned Agricultural (A).  The A zoning does not allow for 
long-term care facilities or other similar uses.  The applicant is requesting that the 
property be rezoned to Regional Employment (RE), as explained in companion Zoning 
Case 2009-21.  This SUP request is contingent upon the approval of Zoning Case 
2009-21 by City Council.   
 
A preliminary site plan, Haggard Stonegate Addition, Block A, Lots 1 & 2, accompanies 
this request.  The applicant is proposing to develop the southern lot, Lot 2, as the long-
term care facility. 
 
The long-term care facility use is complimentary to the adjacent residential use and 
should provide a buffer between the existing residential subdivision and the Dallas 
North Tollway.  The subject property is approximately 1,200 feet west of the tollway, 
which should provide adequate separation to allow for a livable environment for the 
future residents of the facility.  The site will derive its primary access from 



Communications Parkway, and in the future, it will have access to Spring Creek 
Parkway via the adjacent property to the north.  Additionally, since this site does not 
have frontage on the tollway nor an arterial roadway, the requested use is appropriate 
because it does not rely upon visibility, unlike other uses currently allowed within the 
requested RE zoning district.  For these reasons, staff believes this is an appropriate 
location for a long-term care facility. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Recommended for approval subject to City Council approval of Zoning Case 2009-21. 
 
 



AREA OF REQUEST 

RE 

E 

I 


CE 
i 


Zoning Case #: 2009-22 


Existing Zoning: AGRICULTURAU 
DALLAS NORTH TOLLWAY OVERLAY DISTRICT 

o 200' Notification Buffer 
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 (Zoning Case 2009-22) 

 
 
An Ordinance of the City of Plano, Texas, amending the Comprehensive Zoning 
Ordinance of the City, Ordinance No. 2006-4-24, as heretofore amended, granting 
Specific Use Permit No. 603 so as to allow the additional use of Long-term Care 
Facility on 6.1± acres of land out of the Henry B. Miller Survey, Abstract No. 614, 

located on the east side of Communications Parkway, 290± feet south of Spring 
Creek Parkway, in the City of Plano, Collin County, Texas, presently zoned 
Agricultural; directing a change accordingly in the official zoning map of the City; 
and providing a penalty clause, a repealer clause, a savings clause, a severability 
clause, and an effective date. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Secretary of Plano, Texas, directed that notices of a hearing 
be issued, as required by the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Plano and laws of the 
State of Texas, at a meeting of the City Council, to be held on the 11th day of January, 
2010, for the purpose of considering granting Specific Use Permit No. 603 for the 
additional use of Long-term Care Facility on 6.1± acres of land out of the Henry B. Miller 

Survey, Abstract No. 614, located on the east side of Communications Parkway, 290± 

feet south of Spring Creek Parkway, in the City of Plano, Collin County, Texas, 
presently zoned Agricultural; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Secretary of the said City accordingly caused to be issued 
and published the notices required by its Zoning Ordinance and laws of the State of 
Texas applicable thereto, the same having been published in a paper of general 
circulation in the City of Plano, Texas, at least fifteen (15) days prior to the time set for 
such hearing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of said City, pursuant to such notice, held its public 
hearing and heard all persons wishing to be heard both for and against the aforesaid 
change in the Zoning Ordinance, on the 11th day of January, 2010; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council is of the opinion and finds that the granting of 
Specific Use Permit No. 603 for the additional use of Long-term Care Facility on 6.1± 

acres of land out of the Henry B. Miller Survey, Abstract No. 614, located on the east 

side of Communications Parkway, 290± feet south of Spring Creek Parkway, in the City 
of Plano, Collin County, Texas, would not be detrimental or injurious to the public 
health, safety and general welfare, or otherwise offensive to the neighborhood; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property is currently zoned Agricultural and granting of Specific 
Use Permit No. 603 for the additional use of Long-term Care Facility is contingent upon 
City Council approval of companion zoning request 2009-21 rezoning the subject 
property from Agricultural to Regional Employment, such that the Regional Employment 
district allows Long-term Care Facility as an additional use subject to approval of a 
specific use permit; and 
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WHEREAS, the City Council is of the opinion and finds that such change will 

promote the best and most orderly development of the properties affected thereby, and 
to be affected thereby, in the City of Plano, and as well, the owners and occupants 
thereof, and the City generally. 
 
 IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PLANO, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section I.  The Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance No. 2006-4-24, as the same 
has been heretofore amended, is hereby further amended so as to grant Specific Use 
Permit No. 603 for the additional use of Long-term Care Facility on 6.1± acres of land 

out of the Henry B. Miller Survey, Abstract No. 614, located on the east side of 

Communications Parkway, 290± feet south of Spring Creek Parkway, in the City of 
Plano, Collin County, Texas, presently zoned Agricultural, said property being more fully 
described on the legal description in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 

Section II.  That the granting of Specific Use Permit No. 603 for the additional 
use of Long-term Care Facility is subject to City Council approval of companion zoning 
request 2009-21 rezoning the subject property from Agricultural to Regional 
Employment. 
 
 Section III.  It is directed that the official zoning map of the City of Plano (which 
is retained in electronic record format) be changed to reflect the zoning classification 
established by this Ordinance. 
 
 Section IV.  All provisions of the ordinances of the City of Plano in conflict with 
the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, and all other provisions of the 
Ordinances of the City of Plano not in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Section V.  The repeal of any ordinance or part of ordinances affectuated by the 
enactment of this Ordinance shall not be construed as abandoning any action now 
pending under or by virtue of such ordinance or as discontinuing, abating, modifying or 
altering any penalty accruing or to accrue, or as affecting any rights of the municipality 
under any section or provisions of any ordinance at the time of passage of this 
Ordinance. 
 
 Section VI.  Any person, firm or corporation found to be violating any term or 
provision of this Ordinance, shall be subject to a fine in accordance with Section 1-4(a) 
of the City Code of Ordinances for each offense.  Every day a violation continues shall 
constitute a separate offense. 
 
 Section VII.  It is the intention of the City Council that this Ordinance, and every 
provision hereof, shall be considered severable, and the invalidity or partial invalidity of 
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any section, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity of any 
other portion of this Ordinance. 
 

Section VIII.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 
passage and publication as required by law. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 11TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2010. 
 
 

  

 Phil Dyer, MAYOR 

ATTEST:  

  

Diane Zucco, CITY SECRETARY  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

  

Diane C. Wetherbee, CITY ATTORNEY  
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EXHIBIT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
SITUATED in the State of Texas, County of Collin and City of Plano, being part of the 
Henry B. Miller Survey, Abstract No. 614, being part of an 11.385 acre tract as recorded 
in Volume 4,227, Page 835 of the Collin County Land Records with said premises being 
more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2-inch iron rod found marking the southwest corner of said 11.385 
acre tract, a northwest corner of a 37.721 acre tract as recorded in Volume 5,424, Page 
2,914 of the Collin County Land Records, and being in the east right-of-way line of 
Communications Parkway; 
 
THENCE with the south line of said 11.385 acre tract, and a north line of said 37.721 
acre tract, South 89° 38’ 16” East, 55.04 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
 
THENCE with a west line of said premises, the east line of said 1.852 acre tract, and 
the east right-of-way line of said Communications Parkway as follows:  North 00° 55’ 
11” East, 452.38 feet to a 60D nail set; North 04° 44’ 01” East, 71.67 feet to a point for 
corner; 
 
THENCE South 89° 46’ 38” East, 501.09 feet to a point for corner on the west line of the 
aforementioned 37.721 acre tract; 
 
THENCE with the east line of said 11.385 acre tract and the west line of said 37.721 
acre tract, South 00° 13’ 12” West, 525.07 feet to a 1/2-inch Roome capped iron rod set 
marking the southeast corner of said 11.385 acre tract, said premises and an interior 
corner of said 37.721 acre tract; 
 
THENCE with the south line of said 11.385 acre tract, said premises and a north line of 
said 37.721 acre tract, North 89° 38’ 16” West, 512.25 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and CONTAINING 266,805 square feet or 6.125 acres of land. 
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  REV 06/09 

CITY OF PLANO  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

CITY SECRETARY’S USE ONLY  Initials Date 
  Consent   Regular Statutory

Purchasing   

Council Meeting Date: 1/11/10 Budget   

Department: Finance Legal   

Department Head Denise Tacke Assistant City Manager   

Dept Signature:  Deputy City Manager   

 City Manager   

Agenda Coordinator (include phone #): Katherine Crumbley - x7479 

ACTION REQUESTED:   ORDINANCE   RESOLUTION   CHANGE ORDER   AGREEMENT

   APPROVAL OF BID  AWARD OF CONTRACT   OTHER       

CAPTION 

A resolution of the City Council of the City of Plano, Texas, approving the terms and conditions of an Economic 
Development Incentive Agreement by and between the City of Plano, Texas and Scarbrough, Medlin & 
Associates, Inc., a Texas corporation; authorizing its execution by the City Manager or his designee and 
providing an effective date.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

  NOT APPLICABLE   OPERATING EXPENSE   REVENUE   CIP 

 
FISCAL YEAR: 

 
2010 

Prior Year 
(CIP Only) 

Current 
Year 

Future 
Years 

 
TOTALS 

Budget 0 12,391,869 0 12,391,869

Encumbered/Expended Amount 0 -4,509,398 -4,024,677 -8,534,075

This Item 0 -25,000 0 -25,000

BALANCE    0 7,857,471 -4,024,677 3,832,794

FUND(S):       

COMMENTS: STRATEGIC PLAN GOAL:  PROVIDING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES RELATES 
TO THE CITY'S GOAL OF DIVERSE BUSINESS  CENTER 

SUMMARY OF ITEM 

A request from Scarbrough, Medlin & Associates, Inc. for an Economic Development incentive to relocate its 
business and commercial activities to the City, thereby generating additional local sales tax revenues and 
increasing ad valorem tax values to the City.  Scarbrough, Medlin & Associates agrees to occupy not less than 
13,500 sq. ft by 1/1/10 and create or transfer 40 jobs by 1/1/10 with the possibility of an additional 10 jobs by; 
1/1/12. 

 

 

List of Supporting Documents: Other Departments, Boards, Commissions or Agencies 

Economic  Development Incentive Agreement       



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 
 
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Plano, Texas, approving the terms and conditions of 
an Economic Development Incentive Agreement by and between the City of Plano, Texas and 
Scarbrough, Medlin & Associates, Inc., a Texas corporation; authorizing its execution by the City 
Manager or his designee and providing an effective date.  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented a proposed Economic Development Incentive 
Agreement By and Between the City of Plano, Texas and Scarbrough, Medlin & Associates, Inc., a Texas 
corporation, a substantial copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”

 

 and incorporated herein by 
reference (hereinafter called “Agreement”); and, 

WHEREAS, upon full review and consideration of the Agreement, and all matters attendant and 
related thereto, the City Council is of the opinion that the terms and conditions thereof should be 
approved, and that the City Manager or his designee shall be authorized to execute it on behalf of the City 
of Plano. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

PLANO, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section I

 

. The terms and conditions of the Agreement, having been reviewed by the City 
Council of the City of Plano and found to be acceptable and in the best interests of the City of Plano and 
its citizens, are hereby in all things approved. 

Section II

 

. The City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute the Agreement 
and all other documents in connection therewith on behalf of the City of Plano, substantially according to 
the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement. 

Section III
 

. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED this the 11th day of January, 2010. 
 
 

________________________________ 
Phil Dyer, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Diane Zucco, CITY SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Diane C. Wetherbee, CITY ATTORNEY 



 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

This Economic Development Incentive Agreement ("Agreement") is made by and 
between the City of Plano, Texas (the "City") and Scarbrough, Medlin & Associates, Inc., a 
Texas corporation ("Company"), acting by and through its respective authorized officers and 
representatives. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Company is an independent insurance agency specializing in the handling 
of medium-to-large commercial accounts; and 

WHEREAS, the Company has advised the City that a contributing factor that would 
induce the Company to maintain its business and commercial activities in and to the City, 
thereby generating local sales tax revenues and ad valorem tax values for the City, would be an 
agreement by the City to provide an economic development grant to the Company; and 

WHEREAS, the Company agrees to occupy not less than a total of 13,500 square feet of 
commercial space located at 5700 Granite Parkway, Suite 500, Plano, Texas 75024 (the 
"Property") and to retain, transfer or create up to 50 Job Equivalents on the Property and 
maintain those positions for the remainder of the term of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Company intends to maintain its current business personal property 
values of $122,470.00 and add an additional $10,000.00 of business personal property and 
$10,000.00 of real property improvements to the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the real property improvements to the Property and the retention, creation 
or transfer of up to 50 Job Equivalents at the Property within the City will promote economic 
development, stimulate commercial activity and enhance the tax base and economic vitality of 
the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City has adopted programs for promoting economic development; and 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized by TEX. LOC. GOV'T CODE §380.001 et seq. to 
provide economic development grants to promote local economic development and to stimulate 
business and commercial activity in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that making an economic development grant to the 
Company in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement will further the 
objectives of the City, will benefit the City and the City's inhabitants and will promote local 
economic development and stimulate business and commercial activity in the City; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the premises, mutual 
covenants and agreements contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the 



 

 

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties, intending to be legally 
bound, hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

Article 1 
Definitions 

For purposes of this Agreement, each of the following terms shall have the meaning set 
forth herein unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 

"Commencement Date" shall mean the earlier of the date of occupancy of 
the Property by the Company or January 1, 2010, whichever occurs first. 

"Effective Date" shall mean the last date on which all of the parties hereto 
have executed this Agreement. 

"Event of Force Majeure" shall mean any contingency or cause beyond the 
reasonable control of a party including, without limitation, acts of God or the 
public enemy, war, riot, civil commotion, insurrection, government or de facto 
governmental action (unless caused by the intentionally wrongful acts or 
omissions of the party), fires, explosions or floods, strikes, slowdowns or work 
stoppages any of which event(s) directly impact the Company's operations in the 
City. 

"Job Equivalent" shall mean one or more Company job positions located 
at the Property, individually or when combined, total 2080 hours (inclusive of 
holidays, vacation and sick leave) annually.   

Article 2 
Term 

The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Commencement Date and continue until 
December 31, 2019, unless sooner terminated as provided herein. 

Article 3 
Obligations of Company 

In consideration for the grant of public funds as set forth in Section 4.01 below, the 
Company agrees to the following: 

(a) Occupy not less than 13,500 square feet of commercial space on the 
Property on or before January 1, 2010; 

(b) Create or transfer 40 Job Equivalents to the Property on or before January 
1, 2010; 

(c) May create or transfer up to an additional 10 Job Equivalents (50 total)  to 
the Property on or before January 1, 2012 ; and 



 

 

(d) Use reasonable efforts to place all Company-managed hotel room nights, 
related to the Company's business activities, at facilities located in the City of Plano. 

Article 4 
Economic Development Grant 

4.01 Grant.  The City agrees to provide the Company a cash grant of up to Twenty-
Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) for the occupancy of 13,500 square feet of commercial 
space on the Property and the transfer or creation of up to 50 Job Equivalent positions on the 
Property in accordance with Article 3 above. The Company agrees to maintain the transferred or 
created Job Equivalents throughout the term of this Agreement as provided in Section 4.03 
below. 

4.02 Grant Payments.  Except as otherwise indicated, the Company shall be entitled 
to payments of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00) from the City under this Agreement 
within thirty (30) days after the Company verifies to the City, using the Initial Certification form 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A", that the Company has met its obligations as set forth in Article 3 
(a) and (b) above. In order to receive payment under this Agreement, Company's initial 
certification verifying compliance with Article 3 (a) and (b) above must be filed with the City on 
or before  April 1 , 2010.  The Company shall be entitled to a second payment of up to Five  
Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) from the City under this Agreement within thirty (30) days after 
the Company verifies to the City, using the Initial Certification form attached hereto as Exhibit 
"A", that the Company has met the conditions set forth in Article 3 (c)  above. In order to receive 
payment, Company's initial certification verifying compliance with Article 3 (c) above must be 
filed with the City on or before  April 1 , 2012.   

4.03 Refunds.   

(a) In the event the Company allows Job Equivalents at the Property to fall 
below the number of Job Equivalents for which it has received a grant payment for more than 
one hundred eighty (180) consecutive days during the term of this Agreement, not the result of 
an Event of Force Majeure, the Company shall refund to the City an amount equal to Five 
Hundred Dollars ($500.00) for each lost Job Equivalent. For purposes of determining whether 
the City is due a refund under this section, the Company's Chief Financial Officer shall certify to 
the City by January  31, 2011 and by January 31st of each year thereafter during the term of this 
Agreement the actual number of Job Equivalents at the Property for the preceding calendar year, 
using the Certification form attached as Exhibit "B". All refunds under this Agreement shall be 
due within thirty (30) days of written demand for payment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Company shall never be required to refund to the City, in the aggregate, any amount in excess of 
the total grant amount set forth in Section 4.01. 

(b) In the event the Company, at any time during the term of this Agreement, 
is convicted of a violation under 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a(f) regarding the unlawful employment 
of undocumented workers, it shall reimburse the City all grant funds paid pursuant to this 
Agreement together with interest charged from the date of payment of the funds at the statutory 
rate for delinquent taxes as determined by V.T.C.A., Tax Code § 33.01 but without the addition  



 

 

of penalty. Repayment of grant funds and interest shall be due not later than one hundred twenty 
(120) days after the date the City notifies the Company of the conviction. 

Article 5 
Termination 

5.01 This Agreement terminates upon any one or more of the following: 

(a) By mutual written agreement of the parties; 

(b) Upon expiration of the term of this Agreement; 

(c) By either party upon written notice to the other, if the other party defaults 
or breaches any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement and such default or breach is not 
cured within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof (provided that such 30-day period shall 
be extended if the default is of a nature that cannot reasonably be cured within such 30-day 
period and further provided that the remedy is being diligently pursued); and 

(d) By either party upon written notice to the other if any subsequent federal 
or state legislation or any decision of a court of competent jurisdiction declares or renders this 
Agreement invalid, illegal or unenforceable, provided that such termination notice shall set forth 
an explanation of the terminating party's basis for termination under this subsection (d). 

5.02 Effect of Termination.  The rights, responsibilities and liabilities of the parties 
under this Agreement shall be extinguished upon the applicable effective date of termination of 
this Agreement, except for any obligations that accrue prior to such termination or as otherwise 
provided herein. All rights and obligations set forth above in this Section 5.02 shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement. 

Article 6 
Miscellaneous 

6.01 Binding Agreement.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement are binding 
upon the successors and permitted assigns of the parties. This Agreement may not be assigned 
without the express written consent of the non-assigning party, except that the Company may 
assign this Agreement without obtaining the City's consent (a) to one of its affiliates, (b) to its 
parent or (c) to any person or entity that directly or indirectly acquires, through merger, sale of 
stock, purchase or otherwise, all or substantially all of the assets of the Company. 

6.02 No Joint Venture.  It is acknowledged and agreed by the parties that the terms of 
this Agreement are not intended to and shall not be deemed to create a partnership or joint 
venture among the parties. Neither party shall have any authority to act on behalf of the other 
party under any circumstances by virtue of this Agreement. 

6.03 Authorization.  Each party represents that it has full capacity and authority to 
grant all rights and assume all obligations that are granted and assumed under this Agreement. 



 

 

6.04 Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be 
deemed received three (3) days thereafter sent by United States Mail, postage prepaid, certified 
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the party at the address set forth below (or such other 
address as such party may subsequently designate in writing) or on the day actually received if 
sent by courier or otherwise hand delivered. 

If intended for the City: City of Plano, Texas 
 Attn:  Thomas H. Muehlenbeck, City Manager 
 1520 Avenue K 
 P.O. Box 860358 
 Plano, Texas 75086-0358 

With a copy to: City of Plano, Texas  
 Attn:  Diane Wetherbee, City Attorney 
 1520 Avenue K  
 P. O. Box 860358  
 Plano, Texas 75086-0358 

If intended for the Company: Scarbrough, Medlin & Associates, Inc. 
 Attn:  Donald R. Medlin, President 
 5700 Granite Parkway, Suite 500 
 Plano, Texas 75024 
  
6.05 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is the entire Agreement between the parties 

with respect to the subject matter covered in this Agreement. There is no other collateral oral or 
written agreement between the parties that in any manner relates to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. 

6.06 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Texas, without giving effect to any conflicts of law rule or principle 
that might result in the application of the laws of another jurisdiction. Venue for any action 
concerning this Agreement, the transactions contemplated hereby or the liabilities or obligations 
imposed hereunder shall be in the State District Court of Collin County, Texas. 

6.07 Amendment.  This Agreement may only be amended by the mutual written 
agreement of the parties. 

6.08 Legal Construction.  In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, 
such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions, and it is the 
intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each provision that is found to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable, a provision shall be added to this Agreement which is legal, valid and 
enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible to the provision found to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable. 

6.09 Recitals.  The recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein. 



 

 

6.10 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. Each of the 
counterparts shall be deemed an original instrument, but all of the counterparts shall constitute 
one and the same instrument. 

6.11 Survival of Covenants.  Any of the representations, warranties, covenants, and 
obligations of the parties, as well as any rights and benefits of the parties, pertaining to a period 
of time following the termination of this Agreement shall survive termination. 

6.12 Dispute Resolution.  Any controversy or claim arising from or relating to this 
Agreement, or a breach thereof shall be subject to non-binding mediation, as a condition 
precedent to the institution of legal or equitable proceedings by any party. The parties shall 
endeavor to resolve their claims by mediation that, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, 
shall be in accordance with the American Arbitration Association's Commercial Mediation Rules 
in effect at the time of mediation. Request for mediation shall be filed concurrently with the 
other party. Mediation shall proceed in advance of legal or equitable proceedings, which shall be 
stayed pending mediation for a period of sixty (60) days from the date of filing for mediation, 
unless stayed for a longer period of time by agreement of the parties. The party requesting the 
mediation shall bear all costs related to the mediation. The mediation shall be held in Collin 
County, Texas, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in 
mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any Court having jurisdiction thereof. 

6.13. Time is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence in this Agreement. 

EXECUTED on this the 11th day of January, 2010. 

ATTEST: CITY OF PLANO, TEXAS, a home rule municipal 
corporation 

 

 

  By:   ______    
Diane Zucco, CITY SECRETARY Thomas H. Muehlenbeck 
 CITY MANAGER 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
      
Diane C. Wetherbee, CITY ATTORNEY 
 



 

 

 
ATTEST: SCARBROUGH, MEDLIN & ASSOCIATES, 

INC., a Texas corporation 
 
  
 
  By:       
  Donald R. Medlin 
  President 



 

 

EXHIBIT "A" 

INITIAL CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE* 

I hereby certify that Company has occupied not less than 13,500 square feet of 
commercial space on the Property and has retained, transferred or added (40/10) new Job 
Equivalent positions to the Property. Scarbrough, Medlin & Associates, Inc., is in compliance 
with subsections ((a) and (b)/(c)) of Article 3 of the Agreement and is entitled to receive payment 
under the terms of that Agreement. 

ATTEST:  Scarbrough, Medlin & Associates, Inc., a 
Texas corporation 

 
 
 
   By:       
    Name: 
    Chief Financial Officer 

________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: 
 
This Certificate of Compliance should be mailed to: 
 
 City of Plano 
 Finance Department 
 P.O. Box 860358 
 Plano, Texas 75086-0358 
 

 

 

*This form may be modified and used for the initial certification of the additional 10 jobs as 
specified in Article 3 (c) above.



 

 

EXHIBIT "B" 

ANNUAL CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 

I hereby certify that Scarbrough, Medlin & Associates, Inc., is in compliance with each 
applicable term as set forth in Article 3 of the Agreement as of __________________. The term 
of the Agreement is January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2019. The number of new, 
transferred or retained Job Equivalents, calculated as set forth in the Agreement and maintained 
pursuant to the Agreement since its inception, has not fallen below ________ for more than 
one hundred eighty (180) consecutive days and is ________ as of the date of this Certificate 
of Compliance. If the number herein reported is below the number required to be maintained 
pursuant to the Agreement, I certify that the City of Plano has been refunded the appropriate 
amount as required by Section 4.03 of the Agreement. This form is due on January 31st of 
each year the Agreement is in force. 

 

 

ATTEST:  Scarbrough, Medlin & Associates, Inc., a 
Texas corporation 

 
 
 
   By:       
    Name: 
    Chief Financial Officer 

________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
NOTE: 
 
This Certificate of Compliance should be mailed to: 
 
 City of Plano 
 Finance Department 
 P.O. Box 860358 
 Plano, Texas 75086-0358 
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